
 

 

 
 

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA 
www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

 
Committee: Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee 
 

Date:  Wednesday 27 September 2023 
 

Time: 6.30 pm 
 
Venue: Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxon OX15 4AA 
 
Membership 
 

Councillor Lynn Pratt 
(Chairman) 

Councillor Simon Holland (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Besmira Brasha Councillor Andrew Crichton 
Councillor Donna Ford Councillor Harry Knight 
Councillor Simon Lytton Councillor Ian Middleton 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members     
  
 

2. Declarations of Interest      
 
Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which 
they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting. 
 
 

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting      
 
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the 
meeting. 
 
 

4. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 12)    
 
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
26 July 2023. 
 
 

5. Chairman's Announcements      
 
To receive communications from the Chairman. 
 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/


6. Statement of Accounts 2021/22  (Pages 13 - 192)    
 
Report of the Assistant Director of Finance 
 
Purpose of report 

 
To ask Members to note the draft statement of accounts for 2021/22 and the draft 
Audit Results Report of the external auditors.  The technical changes to the 
statement of accounts between the draft published in July 2022 and this version are 
detailed in the report.  The audit is not yet complete, but no further material changes 
to the statement are anticipated.  A draft of the Letter of Representation has also 
been provided for the Committee to note. 

 
Recommendations 
              
The meeting is recommended to: 
 
1.1 Note the revised Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 

at Appendix 1 and Balance Sheet at Appendix 2 in comparison to the 
published Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 (Appendix 3) and the 
documents be endorsed along with necessary changes to supporting 
statements and notes.  
 

1.2 Agree that, once the final audit opinion is received, the Assistant Director 
Finance (S151 Officer), in consultation with the Chair of the Accounts, Audit 
and Risk Committee (or Vice Chair in case the Chairman is unavailable), be 
authorised to make any further material changes to the accounts agreed with 
the auditors and sign the accounts.  Any further changes will be brought to 
the Committee’s attention. 
 

1.3 Agree that the Assistant Director of Finance, in consultation with the Chair of 
the Committee (or Deputy Chair in their absence), can make any further 
changes to the letters of representation agreed with the auditors that may 
arise during completion of the audit. Any further changes will be brought to 
the Committee’s attention. 
 

 
7. External Audit update      

 
Verbal update from the External Auditor. 
 
 

8. Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/24  (Pages 193 - 204)    
 
Report of the Assistant Director of Finance 
 
Purpose of report 
 
The report presents the Internal Audit progress report for 2023/24. Two audits have 
now been completed: Community Development Projects and Climate, both with 
overall conclusions of Amber. Community Development Projects has been finalised 
and the executive summary is included within this report. The plan to address the 
actions required have been agreed with senior management and implementation of 
those actions are in progress. The audit of Climate is at draft report stage and the 
action plan is currently being agreed with senior management. The executive 



summary from the audit will be brought in the next update to the committee. There 
are three audits currently being undertaken and the remaining three are planned in 
for later in the year.  
 
The implementation status of previously agreed management actions continues to 
be positive across the organisation, with good rates of implementation and evidence 
that other actions are being actively progressed. 
 
Recommendations 
              
The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To note the progress with the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan and the outcome of 

the completed audits. 
 

 
9. Risk Monitoring Report July 2023  (Pages 205 - 218)    

 
Report of Assistant Director – Customer Focus 

 
Purpose of report 

 
To update the committee on how well the council is managing its Strategic Risks.  
 
Recommendations 
              
The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To note the Risk Monitoring Report for July 2023. 

 
 

10. Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Report 2022/23  
(Pages 219 - 230)    
 
Report of the Monitoring Officer 
 
Purpose of report 

 
To provide Council with the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s 
annual report on Cherwell District Council for the financial year 2022/23. 
 
Recommendations 
              
The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To receive the report and comment on the Local Government and Social 

Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review of Cherwell District Council for 2022/23. 
 

 
11. Urgent Business      

 
The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business 
being admitted to the agenda. 
 
 



12. Work Programme  (Pages 231 - 232)    
 
To consider and review the Work Programme.  
 
 

Councillors are requested to collect any post from their pigeon 
hole in the Members Room at the end of the meeting. 

 
 

Information about this Meeting 
 
Apologies for Absence  
Apologies for absence should be notified to democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk or 01295 
221534 prior to the start of the meeting. 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the 
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item. 
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
 
When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest 
available fire exit.  Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 

Access to Meetings 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
Mobile Phones 
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
Please contact Natasha Clark or David Rogers, Democratic and Elections 
democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk, 01295 221534  
 
 
Yvonne Rees 
Chief Executive 
 
Published on Tuesday 19 September 2023 
 

 
 

mailto:democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


Cherwell District Council 
 

Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee held at 
Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxon OX15 4AA, on 26 July 2023 at 
6.30 pm 
 
Present: 
 
Councillor Lynn Pratt (Chairman)  
Councillor Simon Holland (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Andrew Crichton 
Councillor Donna Ford 
Councillor Simon Lytton 
Councillor Ian Middleton 
Harry Lawson (Independent Person – no voting rights) 
Sarah Thompson (Independent Person – no voting rights) 
 
Substitute Members: 
 
Councillor Sean Woodcock (in place of Councillor Besmira Brasha) 
 
Apologies for absence: 
 
Councillor Besmira Brasha 
Councillor Harry Knight 
  
Also Present: 
 
Councillor Sandy Dallimore, Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services 
  
Also Present Virtually: 
 
Councillor Barry Wood, Leader of the Council 
 
Officers:  
 
Sarah Cox, Chief Internal Auditor 
Sandra Ganpot, Benefits Services and Performance Manager 
Joanne Kaye, Head of Finance and Deputy S151 Officer 
Jacey Scott, Revenues and Benefits Manager 
Declan Brolly, Counter Fraud Team Manager (Internal Audit) 
Katherine Kitashima, Audit Manager 
Sharon Hickson, Democratic and Elections Officer 
 
Officers Attending Virtually: 
 
Shahin Ismail, Interim Legal Services Manager 
Shona Ware, Assistant Director of Customer Focus 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee - 26 July 2023 

  

 
 
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

4 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting  
 
There were no petitions or requests to address the meeting. 
 
 

5 Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meetings of the Committee held on 22 March 2023 and 23 
May 2023 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 
 

6 Chairman's Announcements  
 
In relation to agenda item 10, the Chairman advised the Committee that Ernst 
& Young, the council’s External Auditors would not be providing an update. 
The meeting would therefore move straight from item 9 to item 11. 
 
 

7 Urgent Business  
 
There were no items of urgent business.  
 
 

8 Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction Risk Based Verification  
 
The Assistant Director Finance submitted a report that provided Members with 
details of the Risk Based Verification (RBV) policy and to seek approval for 
the reviewed RBV Policy for 2023/24. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the report be noted 

 
(2) That having given  due consideration, the Risk Based Verification 

Policy for the financial year 2023/2024 be approved. 
 
 

9 Annual Governance Statement 2022-23  
 
The Assistant Director Law and Governance submitted a report setting out the 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for the Council for 2022-23 for 
approval. The AGS summarised the key governance issues for the Council 
and the actions required to address these. 

Page 6



Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee - 26 July 2023 

  

 
In introducing the report, the Interim Legal Services Manager advised that the 
AGS is required to be approved by those charged with governance, the 
Accounts Audit & Risk Committee, under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That, subject to the Monitoring Officer making any necessary 

amendments in the light of comments made by the Committee, after 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, the Chief Executive and the 
Section 151 Officer that the Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 be 
approved. 

 
(2) That the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive be authorised to 

sign the Annual Governance Statement on behalf of Cherwell District 
Council. 

 
 

10 Risk Monitoring Report Quarter 1, 2023  
 
The Assistant Director, Customer Focus submitted a report that updated the  
Committee on how well the council was managing its Strategic Risks and to 
seek the committee’s views on the Council’s Risk Management Strategy. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the Risk Monitoring Report for Quarter 1 2023 be noted 

 
(2) That the Councils current Risk Management Strategy  2022/23 be 

noted and no improvements or comments be referred to Executive for 
consideration. 

 
 

11 External Audit Update  
 
As advised under the Chairman’s announcements, External Audit had advised 
they would not be providing a verbal item to the meeting. 
 
 

12 Annual Report of the Chief Internal Auditor 2022/23  
 
The Chief Internal Auditor submitted a report which summarised the outcome 
of the Internal Audit work in 2022/23, and provided an opinion on the Council's 
System of Internal Control. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That, having given due consideration, the Annual Report of the Chief 

Internal Auditor 2022/23 be endorsed 
 

Page 7



Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee - 26 July 2023 

  

13 Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2023/24  
 
The Chief Internal Auditor submitted a report which presented the internal 
Audit Strategy and Plan for 2023/24. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2023/24 be noted. 
 
 

14 Internal Audit Charter  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance submitted a report on the Internal Charter 
and Internal Audit Quality Assurance programme for 2023/24. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That, having given due consideration, the Internal Audit Charter be 

approved. 
 
(2) That the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme be noted. 
 
 

15 Update on Counter Fraud Annual Plan 2022/23 and presenting the 
Counter Fraud Annual Plan 2023/24  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance submitted a report which summarised the 
activity against the Annual Plan for the Counter-Fraud service at CDC for 
2022/23, which was previously presented to the Accounts, Audit & Risk at the 
July 2022 meeting.  The report also presented the new Counter Fraud Plan 
for the year 2023/24. 
 
The Plan supported the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy by 
ensuring that the Council has in place proportionate and effective resources 
and controls to prevent and detect fraud as well as investigate those matters 
that do arise. 
 
In introducing the report, the Chief Internal Auditor highlighted to members 
that a large piece of work carried out for Cherwell, the  National Fraud 
Initiative was close to conclusion, Figures and details would be reported to the 
committee at the November meeting of the Committee. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the summary of activity against the Annual Counter Fraud Plan for 

2022/23 be noted. 
 
(2) That the Counter Fraud Plan for 2023/24 be noted. 
 
 

Page 8



Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee - 26 July 2023 

  

16 Treasury Management Report - Annual Performance Report 2022/23 
(March 2023)  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance & S151 Officer submitted a report that gave 
information on treasury management performance and compliance with 
treasury management policy for 2022-23 as required by the Treasury 
Management Code of Practice 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the Treasury Management Report – Annual Performance Report 

2022/23 be noted. 
 
 

17 Treasury Management Report - Q1 2023/24 (June 2023)  
 
 
The Assistant Director of Finance & S151 Officer submitted a report that gave 
information on the treasury management performance and compliance with 
treasury management policy for 2023-24 as required by the Treasury 
Management Code of Practice. 
 
All treasury management activities undertaken to date during the financial 
year 2023-24 complied with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Council’s 
approved Treasury Management Strategy, and all Prudential Indicators were 
met during the reporting period. 
 
Over the course of the year, there was an overall forecast underspend of 
£0.376m. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the Q1 2023/24 Treasury Management Report be noted. 
 
(2) That the strategy for future borrowing requirements be noted 
 
 

18 2022/23 Accounting Policies  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance and S151 Officer submitted a report for the 
Committee to review and approve the Accounting Policies for inclusion in the 
2022/23 Statement of Accounts. The Council was required to set accounting 
policies which set out the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules, and 
practices applied by an authority in preparing and presenting financial 
statements. The accounting policies describe how the Council has interpreted 
and applied the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. There have 
been no material changes to the Accounting Policies. 
 
In addition, the Committee was advised and requested to note that the 
2022/23 Draft Statement of Accounts were not published by the 31 May 2023 
deadline, due to delays in the audit of the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts. 

Page 9



Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee - 26 July 2023 

  

 
Resolved 
 
(1) That having given due consideration, the accounting policies as 

approved by the Chief Finance Officer be approved 
 

(2) That it be noted the 2022/23 Draft  Statement of Accounts were not 
published by the 31 May deadline be noted. 

 
 

19 Support to Subsidiaries  
 
The Assistant Director of Finance & S151 Officer submitted a report that 
informed the Committee of the overall level of support provided to the councils 
subsidiaries and how this is considered as part of the external audit. 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the report be noted. 
 
 

20 Work Programme  
 
 The Head of Finance updated the Committee on the work programme 
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the work Programme be noted 
 
 

21 Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
Resolved 
 
That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public and 
press be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business on 
the grounds that, if the public and press were present, it would be likely that 
exempt information falling under the provisions of Schedule 12A, Part I, 
Paragraph 3 would be disclosed to them, and that in all the circumstances of 
the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information. 
 
 

22 Support to Subsidiaries - exempt appendix  
 
Resolved 
 
(1) That the exempt appendix be noted. 
 
 
The meeting ended at 8.20 pm 

Page 10



Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee - 26 July 2023 

  

 
 
Chairman: 
 
Date: 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Cherwell District Council 
 
Accounts Audit and Risk Committee 
 
27 September 2023 
 

Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

Report of the Assistant Director of Finance 
 
 
This report is public 
 

Purpose of report 
 

To ask Members to note the draft statement of accounts for 2021/22 and the draft Audit 
Results Report of the external auditors.  The technical changes to the statement of 
accounts between the draft published in July 2022 and this version are detailed in the 
report.  The audit is not yet complete, but no further material changes to the statement are 
anticipated.  A draft of the Letter of Representation has also been provided for the 
Committee to note. 

 

1.0 Recommendations 

              
The meeting is recommended to: 
 
1.1 Note the revised Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) at 

Appendix 1 and Balance Sheet at Appendix 2 in comparison to the published Draft 
Statement of Accounts 2021/22 (Appendix 3) and the documents be endorsed 
along with necessary changes to supporting statements and notes.  
 

1.2 Agree that, once the final audit opinion is received, the Assistant Director Finance 
(S151 Officer), in consultation with the Chair of the Accounts, Audit and Risk 
Committee (or Vice Chair in case the Chairman is unavailable), be authorised to 
make any further material changes to the accounts agreed with the auditors and 
sign the accounts.  Any further changes will be brought to the Committee’s 
attention. 
 

1.3 Agree that the Assistant Director of Finance, in consultation with the Chair of the 
Committee (or Deputy Chair in their absence), can make any further changes to the 
letters of representation agreed with the auditors that may arise during completion 
of the audit. Any further changes will be brought to the Committee’s attention. 
 

2.0 Introduction 

 
2.1 The Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with all relevant 

statutory reporting requirements.  
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



2.2  The statutory timescale required that the Statement of Accounts were approved by 
the S151 Officer and received by the Councils External Auditor, Ernst & Young (EY) 
by 31 July 2022. Following this the accounts are being audited in advance of the 
External Auditor, Ernst & Young setting out their opinion on the accounts and 
reported to this committee.  

 
2.3 The Letter of Representation is an important part of the audit process whereby the 

Council, via the Section 151 Officer provides representations around the operation 
of the Council that allows and helps the auditors to form their opinion as to whether 
the financial statements give a true and fair view.  A draft of the letter for 2021/22 
has been provided by the auditors and is found at Appendix 4. 

 

3.0 Report Details 

 
3.1  In preparation for the 2022/23 year-end, Council officers have determined that six 

material items have been incorrectly presented within the CIES and Balance Sheet.  
As the audit of 2021/22 has not been finalised, the Council has the opportunity to 
correct the presentation of the 2021/22 CIES and Balance Sheet, including the 
restatement of 2020/21’s CIES and Balance Sheet where appropriate.  There are 
several amendments, which officers have agreed with the auditors, which impact 
only on the disclosure notes but which do not impact on the Balance Sheet or CIES; 
therefore, these have not been detailed in this report. 

 
3.2 The first correction relates to corrected valuations of six Property, Plant & 

Equipment assets of £3.403m.  The majority of this adjustment relates to Banbury 
Bus Station which has been valued incorrectly since 2019/20. The difference in 
valuations required to correct amounts to £4.2m.  As this was also a material 
correction in 2020/21, a prior year adjustment of £4.068 has been made. 

3.3 Kingsmere Community Centre was undervalued by approximately £0.4m due to an 
incorrect floor area being used for the valuation. This has been corrected in 2021/22 
but does not require a prior year adjustment. 

The remaining adjustment relates to 4 council car parks. The valuer, in conducting 
their 2021/22 valuations, made a spreadsheet error in calculating the average 
income achieved at these car parks, which resulted in an undervaluation of £0.4m. 
The spreadsheet was correct in 2020/21’s valuations, therefore no prior year-
adjustment is required.  These corrections impact the Balance Sheet, but there are 
also associated adjustments to the CIES. 

3.4 The second relates to the reclassification of some Investment Property assets as 
Property, Plant & Equipment.  A review of Investment Properties was undertaken to 
ensure that the classification was consistent with the CIPFA accounting code.  
According to the code, Investment Properties are those held solely for investment 
gains.  

 
3.5 Officers demonstrated to audit that many of the assets classified as Investment 

Properties were in fact acquired and held for regeneration purposes, e.g. Castle 
Quay, Orchard Way Shops, Antelope Garage.  The correction has not impacted on 
the valuations as the Council’s valuers have confirmed that the basis of valuation 
applied when they were classified as Investment Properties is still appropriate.   

 

Page 14



3.6 Therefore, Investment Assets in the Balance Sheet has been adjusted by 
£55.918m.  This correction required prior year adjustments in 2020/21 (£39.781m) 
and 2019/20 (£54.989m).  The recording of income and revaluation adjustments for 
Investment Property and Property, Plant & Equipment impact different areas of the 
CIES; therefore, the CIES has also been adjusted in 2021/22 and 2020/21. 

 
3.7 The third relates to Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF).  An amount of 

£3.988m was adjusted between short term creditors and short-term debtors.  Before 
publishing the draft accounts, it was noted and corrected that the £16.6m due back 
to the government was included in debtors rather than creditors.  However, a 
smaller amount representing a reduction in the amount due back was missed.  This 
adjustment impacts only the Balance Sheet. 

 
3.8 The fourth relates to the cash balance at 31 March 2022.  Due to the timing of 

payments the council recorded an overdraft position on one of its three accounts.  
While this is an operationally common position accepted by the bank so long as the 
balance of all our accounts is overall in credit, the accounting for the account in 
overdraft must be recorded as a liability.  Therefore, an adjustment of £1.011m has 
been made in the Balance Sheet between Current Assets and Current Liabilities.  
There were no accounts in overdraft at the end of the previous year, therefore a 
prior year adjustment is not required.  

 
3.9  The fifth relates to the valuation of the Council’s Pension Fund.  Actuaries valued 

the Council’s share of the Oxfordshire Pension Fund in May 2022.  However, the 
value of the Oxfordshire Pension Fund was revised following its triennial review.  
The actuaries recalculated the value of the Council’s share of the fund, the outcome 
of which was an increased liability of £5.330m, requiring a correction between the 
2021/22 Pension Fund Liability and Unusable Reserves in the Balance Sheet and 
an adjustment to Other Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure in the CIES.  

 
3.10 The sixth material item relates to Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  In December 

2022 Officers commissioned a review of its MRP provision by Link, the Council’s 
Treasury Management Advisors.  The review highlighted that the MRP charges 
made to date had no been strictly in line with the published policy.  The policy states 
that MRP should be charged on a straight-line basis using the useful life of the 
asset and over 20 years for equity, whereas the actual was charged using straight 
line over 50 years for all assets.  The difference is in timing of the charge, not the 
total amount of the charge. 

 
3.11  Amending the calculation to be fully in line with the policy results in a material 

shortfall in the MRP the council has charged to date, which it is prudent to correct in 
the current and preceding financial years as prior year adjustments.  The resultant 
increase in 2019/20 is £3.847m (representing the years up to and including 
2019/20), £1.496m for 2020/21 and £2.532m for 2021/22.   

 
3.12  Appendices 1 and 2 to this report provide revised versions of the CIES and Balance 

Sheet which incorporate the changes above to the published draft 2021/22 
Statement of Accounts (Appendix 3).  There will also be corresponding changes 
required to the Movement in Reserves and Cash Flow Statements, Expenditure and 
Funding Analysis and some supporting notes in the final Statement of Accounts. 

 

4.0 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 

Page 15



 
4.1 The external audit has not yet reached its conclusion and so the CIES and Balance 

Sheet and associated changes in the final statement of accounts can be approved 
by the Committee and authority delegated to the Assistant Director of Finance and 
the Chair of the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee to sign the Letter or 
Representation. 

 

5.0 Consultation 

  
None 

 

6.0 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 

 
6.1 None.   
 

7.0 Implications 

 
 Financial and Resource Implications  
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising from the revisions described in section 3 

of the report with the exception of the adjustment described in sections 3.10 – 3.11.  
MRP is not a cash transaction, but the amendment to the charge required impacted 
on the CIES and was funded from earmarked reserves.  The adjustment did not 
impact the total amount of MRP that will be charged but it did alter the charging profile, 
bringing forward MRP charges which would have been made in later years without 
the change to the calculation.   

 
 Comments checked by: 

Michael Furness, Assistant Director of Finance, 01295 221845, 
michael.furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  

 
Legal Implications  

 
7.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 
 
 Comments checked by: 

Shahin Ismael, Interim Head of Legal Services, 01295 221808, 
Shahin.Ismael@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  

 
Risk Implications  

  
7.3 There are no risk management implications arising directly from this report. 
 

Comments checked by: 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance Team Leader, 01295 221556, Celia.Prado-
Teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk   
 
 
Equalities and Inclusion  

Page 16

mailto:michael.furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Shahin.Ismael@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Celia.Prado-Teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Celia.Prado-Teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


 
7.4   There are no equalities nor inclusion  implications arising directly from this report. 
 

Comments checked by: 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance Team Leader, 01295 221556,  
Celia.Prado-Teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk    

  
  

8.0 Decision Information 

 
Key Decision N/A 

 

Financial Threshold Met:   N/A 

 
 Community Impact Threshold Met: N/A 
 

Wards Affected 
 

All 
 
 

Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework 
 

All Corporate Plan themes 
  
 

Lead Councillor 
 

Councillor Adam Nell – Portfolio Holder for Finance 
 

 

Document Information 

 Appendix number and title 

 Appendix 1 – Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Revised 

 Appendix 2 – Balance Sheet – Revised 

 Appendix 3 – Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 

 Appendix 4 – Draft Letter or Representation 2021/22 

 

 Background papers 
None 

 

Reference Documents 
Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/download/346/statement-of-accounts-and-
annual-audit 

 

 Report Author and contact details 
 Joanne Kaye, Head of Finance (Deputy S151) , 01295 221545, 

joanne.kaye@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

Page 17

mailto:Celia.Prado-Teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/download/346/statement-of-accounts-and-annual-audit
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/downloads/download/346/statement-of-accounts-and-annual-audit
mailto:joanne.kaye@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
 

 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 163 

DRAFT 

Statement of Accounts 

2021/22 

Appendix three

Page 23



Page 2 of 163 

Contents 
Introduction .............................................................................................................................................. 4 
Narrative Statement – Overview of 2021/22 ............................................................................................ 5 

Assistant Director of Finance’s Narrative ............................................................................................. 8 

Introduction ...................................................................................................................................... 8 
About the District ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Strategic priorities for Cherwell District Council .................................................................................... 9 

Our strategic priorities for 2021/22 reflect the Council’s commitment for the district to achieve: ....... 9 
Annual review of priorities .............................................................................................................. 11 
Our Leadership and workforce ....................................................................................................... 13 
Risk management .......................................................................................................................... 14 

Financial Overview ............................................................................................................................ 14 

Financial Performance ................................................................................................................... 14 
Resources ..................................................................................................................................... 15 
Pension Liabilities .......................................................................................................................... 15 
Contingencies ................................................................................................................................ 16 
Council Funding 2021/22 ............................................................................................................... 16 
Revenue Financial Outturn Position ............................................................................................... 17 

Financial Position............................................................................................................................... 20 
Capital Programme ............................................................................................................................ 21 

Capital investment plans for 2021/22 ............................................................................................. 21 
Castle Quay and Castle Quay Waterfront ...................................................................................... 21 
Basis of Preparation and Presentation ........................................................................................... 23 
Financial Outlook ........................................................................................................................... 23 

The Financial Statements .................................................................................................................. 24 
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts ............................................................. 26 

The Council’s Responsibilities ....................................................................................................... 26 
Section 151 Officer’s Certificate: .................................................................................................... 26 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis ..................................................................................................... 27 
Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure Statement ....................................................................... 28 
Movement in Reserves Statement ..................................................................................................... 29 
Balance Sheet ................................................................................................................................... 30 
Cash Flow Statement ........................................................................................................................ 31 

Note 1 – Accounting Policies ......................................................................................................... 32 
Note 2 – Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted ..................................................................... 55 
Note 3 – Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies ....................................................... 55 
Note 4 – Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty57 
Note 5 - Material Items of Income and Expense ............................................................................. 61 
Note 6 – Events after the Balance Sheet Date ............................................................................... 64 
Note 7a – Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis .............................................................. 65 
Note 7b – Segmental Analysis of Income and Expenditure ............................................................ 67 
Note 8 - Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 2021/22 .. 68 

Page 24



Page 3 of 163 

Note 9 - Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves ............................................................................ 71 
Note 10 - Other Operating Expenditure .......................................................................................... 72 
Note 11 - Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure ....................................................... 72 
Note 12 - Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income ....................................................................... 72 
Note 13 – Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature ................................................................ 73 
Note 14 – Property, Plant and Equipment ...................................................................................... 74 
Note 15 – Investment Properties .................................................................................................... 76 
Note 16 – Intangible Assets ........................................................................................................... 81 
Note 17 – Financial Instruments .................................................................................................... 82 
Note 18 – Inventories ..................................................................................................................... 89 
Note 19a – Short Term Debtors ..................................................................................................... 89 
Note 19b Short Term Debtors for Local Taxation ........................................................................... 90 
Note 20 – Cash and Cash Equivalents........................................................................................... 90 
Note 21– Assets Held for Sale ....................................................................................................... 90 
Note 22 – Short Term Creditors ..................................................................................................... 91 
Note 23 – Provisions ...................................................................................................................... 91 
Note 24 – Usable Reserves ........................................................................................................... 93 
Note 25 - Unusable Reserves ........................................................................................................ 95 
Note 26 - Members’ Allowances................................................................................................... 101 
Note 27 - Officers’ Remuneration ................................................................................................. 102 
Note 28 - External Audit Costs ..................................................................................................... 108 
Note 29 – Grant Income ............................................................................................................... 109 
Note 30 - Related Parties ............................................................................................................. 111 
Note 31 – Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing .................................................................. 116 
Note 32 – Leases ......................................................................................................................... 118 
Note 33 - Impairment Losses ....................................................................................................... 120 
Note 34 - Termination Benefits .................................................................................................... 121 
Note 35 - Defined Benefit Pension Scheme ................................................................................. 121 
Note 36 - Contingent Liabilities .................................................................................................... 127 
Note 37 - Contingent Assets ........................................................................................................ 127 
Notes (1 – 4) to the Collection Fund ............................................................................................. 129 
Group Accounts and Explanatory Notes ...................................................................................... 132 
Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 ...................................................................................... 143 
Annex 1 – Significant governance issues ..................................................................................... 151 
Annex 2 – Significant Governance Issues .................................................................................... 156 
Annex 3 – Covid-19 Command and Control Structure .................................................................. 158 
Annex 4 – Overview of Corporate Governance Assurance Framework ........................................ 159 
Annex 5 – Summary Financial Management Code Assessment .................................................. 160 

Page 25



Page 4 of 163 

Introduction 

Welcome to Cherwell District Council’s Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31 
March 2022.  
The Statement of Accounts is a statutory document providing information on the cost of 
services provided by Cherwell District Council to the council tax payer and detailing how 
those services were financed. In addition, it provides information, within the Balance Sheet 
on the value of our assets (what we own, what we are owed) and the value of our liabilities 
(what we owe). 
Should you have any comments or wish to discuss this statement in further detail then 
please contact the finance team by email on finance@cherwell-dc.gov.uk or contact the 
Finance Team direct on 0300 003 0103. 
We hope you find the financial statements of interest and we look forward to hearing your 
views. 

Yvonne Rees 
Chief Executive 
Cherwell District Council 
PO Box 27 
Banbury 
Oxfordshire 
OX15 4BH 

Page 26



 

Page 5 of 163 
 

Narrative Statement – Overview of 2021/22    

Executive Member’s Narrative 
As Lead Member for Finance and Resources I would like to welcome you to the Cherwell 
District Council 2021/22 Statement of Accounts.  
The preparation of the Statement of Accounts provides the opportunity to reflect on the 
past financial year and report on the current financial and non-financial position of the 
Council.  It is the culmination of the annual cycle. 

 
All the while, payments are made to suppliers and housing benefits recipients; council tax 
and business rates are collected and distributed to our partners; fees and charges income 
is collected for our chargeable services; financial systems and controls are monitored to 
ensure they continue to operate effectively; treasury management ensures that public 
funds are invested securely and borrowing is undertaken appropriately to support our 
ambitious capital programme. 
2021/22 proved to be a hugely challenging but successful year for Cherwell District 
Council delivering on its objectives and playing a vital role supporting residents and 
businesses through the COVID-19 pandemic.  

• We delivered 452 Affordable homes and 1,104 housing completions during 
2021/22 

• 701 households with vulnerable residents were helped living independently 
through  small works or adaptations to homes. 

• Our housing team supported 69 rough sleeping individuals into suitable 
accommodation; secured 96 new placements in temporary accommodation, as 
well as 94 Households; opened 723 homelessness cases. Of those, 458 
needed advice only and have been closed, another 165 have been prevented 
from becoming homeless. Also, 124 cases have been relieved, 16 statutory duty 
cases have been accepted and 18 had the full homeless duty discharged 

• 321 reports of abandoned vehicles were dealt with; also, 128 reports of dog 
fouling and 79 reports of stray dogs were followed up.  

Set Budget and 
MTFS

Monitor 
Forecast Spend 

vs Budget

Produce 
Accounts of 

Spend for Year

Page 27



Page 6 of 163 

• We collected a total of 27,950 tonnes of residual waste during 2021/22 of which
55.3 per cent of the waste collected was recycled or composted.

• During March 2022, we rolled out a new weekly food waste service which was
the biggest change to bin rounds in 10 years.  We are now emptying 69,000
caddies every month.

• West Northamptonshire’s bin lorries contract was awarded to Cherwell, so we
are to look after a fleet of 22 heavy goods vehicles, one road sweeper and 10
smaller vehicles, serving around 41,000 households and 600 businesses.

• Over 3,012 families and 7,912 individuals used our families active sporting
together (FAST) programme, helping families in Banbury, Bicester and
Kidlington to get active.

• We changed the focus of our Holiday Hubs, and delivered physical activities, at
holiday periods, and lunch, for children eligible, both free of charge. 11,000
children accessed this provision, as part of the Holiday Activity Fund.

• Street Tag had the highest sign-up rate in the country, with 3,000 users and 39
out of 47 schools participating, in Cherwell, during 2021-22.

• £14.2m grants paid to businesses in 2021/22 to support them through the
Covid-19 pandemic

• In 2021, we joined the Sunflower Scheme promoting awareness and
acceptance of visible and invisible disabilities

• We are leading the way in cutting our carbon emissions by up to 25 per cent, in
a boost to reach net zero by 2030. A £6m grant, awarded through the Public
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme,  will slash the environmental impact of our
estate.

All of the above was achieved within budget.  In addition, we have set a budget for 
2022/23 which will:  

• allow the Council to support Cherwell in its recovery from the COVID-19
pandemic

• ensure the Council has contingencies in place to support its services through
the economic recovery in Cherwell

• help the Council prepare for the challenges we know we will face in the near
future related to
o the review of local authority funding as part of the Government’s

forthcoming fair funding review;
o the changes we face with business rates reset; and new homes bonus

The outcomes of all these changes have not been concluded yet but we anticipate they 
will impact significantly on the Council’s finances.  

Page 28



Page 7 of 163 

I acknowledge the importance of the support that Cherwell District Council can bring to its 
residents and businesses and many of the achievements during 2022/23.  For example, 
the Castle Quay regeneration and the innovative housing scheme at Graven Hill in 
Bicester will help the Council to further support its communities.   
Notwithstanding the many pressures we face, especially those arising from the pandemic, 
the Council remains absolutely committed to deliver its priorities and ensure that Cherwell 
remains a place for all.  
I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our staff who have worked throughout 
the year to deliver excellent services, support the nationwide response to the pandemic, 
balance the Council’s budget and provide value for money, in addition to closing the 
accounts and producing this statement for our stakeholders to read.  

Councillor Adam Nell  
Executive Member for Finance 

Page 29



Page 8 of 163 

Assistant Director of Finance’s Narrative 

Introduction 
The purpose of this Narrative Report is to provide information on Cherwell District Council, 
its main objectives, strategies and the principal risks it faces.  It sets out information to 
help readers understand the Council’s financial position and performance during 2021/22.  
Cherwell District Council provides services to residents, businesses and communities 
across the whole area.  We are responsible for a range of services including the following; 
Environmental Services, Planning and Building Control, Growth and Economy, Regulatory 
Services, Housing, Wellbeing and Healthy Place Shaping.  
We participate in and lead key partnerships that work to deliver housing and growth, 
environmental benefits, safer communities and improved health and wellbeing for all 
Cherwell residents. 

About the District 

Cherwell District in North Oxfordshire is a predominantly rural area providing an excellent 
environment in which to live and work.  
There are three urban centres – Banbury, Bicester and Kidlington –with the remainder of 
the population living in 70 smaller settlements. Cherwell continues to change, with a 
population from the Office for National Statistics released in June 2021 totalling 151.8k 
(mid-2020).  The Oxfordshire Housing-led projection is that it will increase to 190.0k by 
2030. 

Page 30



Page 9 of 163 

Since 2019, the population of Cherwell district increased by 1,343 to 151,846.  (By 
comparison the total population in Oxfordshire is 696,900 of which Cherwell’s population is 
22 per cent).   

Figure 1- Time series bar chart showing the total population of Cherwell mid-2011 to mid- 
2020 
There are currently 69,286 houses that are subject to council tax (December 2021). 

Strategic priorities for Cherwell District Council  
Cherwell District Council’s ambition, as set out in our published Business Plan 2021/22, is 
for a district where communities can thrive, and businesses grow.  
The Business Plan has four strategic priorities.  The strategic priorities are underpinned by 
four themes, representing the basis upon which we continue to develop our organisation.   
The business plan informs the development of the annual budget and the operational 
Service Plans for the delivery of all Council services. 

Our strategic priorities for 2021/22 reflect the Council’s 
commitment for the district to achieve: 

Housing that meets your needs 

• Deliver affordable housing;

• Raise standards in rented housing;

• Support our most vunerable residents;

• Promote innovative housing schemes;

• Deliver the Local Plan;

• Support vulnerable people.

Mid 2012 Mid 2013 Mid 2014 Mid 2015 Mid 2016 Mid 2017 Mid 2018 Mid 2019 Mid 2020
Population 142,936 143,822 144,520 145,554 146,635 147,602 149,161 150,503 151,846

138,000

140,000

142,000

144,000

146,000

148,000

150,000

152,000

154,000

Cherwell Population Estimates

Page 31



Page 10 of 163 

Leading on environmental sustainability 

• Deliver on our commitment to be carbon neutral by 2030;

• Promote the Green Economy;

• Increase recycling across the district;

• Protect our natural environment and our built heritage;

• Work with partners to improve air quality in the district;

• Reduce environmental crime.

An enterprising economy with strong and vibrant local centres 

• Support business retention and growth;

• Develop skills and generate enterprise;

• Secure infrastructure to support growth in the district;

• Secure investment in our town centres;

• Promote the district as a visitor destination;

• Work with businesses to ensure compliance and promote best practice.

Healthy, resilient and engaged communities 

• Provide opportunities to support active lifestyles;

• Improve and develop the quality of local sport and leisure facilities;

• Promote health and wellbeing in our communities to help create a more
inclusive ‘Including Everyone’ community and workplace;

• Support community and cultural development;

• Working with partners to address the cause of health inequality and deprivation;

• Working with partners to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour.

Page 32



 

Page 11 of 163 
 

Themes 

The themes on which we develop the organisation are: 
Customers: To deliver high quality, accessible and convenient services that are right first 
time. 
Healthy Places: Working collaboratively to create sustainable, thriving communities that 
support good lifestyle choices. 
Partnerships: Working with partners to improve the services we provide for our residents 
and communities. 
Continuous Improvement: Making the best use of our resources and focusing on 
improvement, innovation and staff development to maintain and enhance services. 
Climate Action: Transform our organisation to deliver its carbon neutral commitments. 
Including Everyone: Our Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion framework outlines how we 
plan to create an inclusive community and workplace in Cherwell, through fair and 
equitable services. 

Annual review of priorities 
The Council reports monthly on performance against 40 Business Plan Measures. The 
table below summarises the progress we have made delivering against the activities, tasks 
and projects outlined in our business plan under each of the four strategic priorities.  
We use a red, amber and green system, where green refers to a target wholly met, amber 
to a target narrowly missed and red to a target missed by 10 per cent or more 

Status Description Year to date   Year to date (per cent) 

Green On target 34 85 

Amber Slightly off target 5 13 

Red Off target 1 2 

Housing that meets your needs 

Committed to deliver affordable housing, raising the standard of rented housing and find 
new and innovative ways to prevent homelessness. Also, to promote innovative housing 
schemes, deliver the local plan and supporting the most vulnerable people in the District.  

• Homes improved through enforcement action 

• Overall, there were a total of 139 homes improved through enforcement action 
in 2021/22, against a yearly target of 108. 

• Average time taken to process Housing Benefit change events 

• This is reporting Green at year end, which is an excellent 5.1 days average 
against a target of 8 days.  

  

Page 33



Page 12 of 163 

Leading in environmental sustainability 

The Council is committed to deliver on sustainability and in the commitment to be carbon 
neutral by 2030, promote the Green Economy and increase recycling across the district. 
This priority includes the protection of our natural environment and our built heritage, 
working in partnerships to improve air quality in the district and the reduction of 
environmental crime. 

• Waste recycled and composted
55.3 per cent of the waste collected in the District has been recycled or/and
composted during 2021/22, with 10,123 tonnes of dry recycling and 20,576
tonnes of Garden/Food waste collected.

• Tackling environmental crime
During 2021 -22 1,093 fly tips were reported but only those where evidence was
found in their waste, which accounted for 686 cases,  were investigated. Also,
321 reports of abandoned vehicles were dealt with, 128 reports of dog fouling,
and 79 reports of stray dogs were followed up.

An enterprising economy with strong and vibrant local centres 

The Council is committed to support business retention and growth, developing skills and 
generating enterprise; also, securing infrastructure to support growth in the district and 
securing investment in our town centres. This priority also contributes towards making 
communities thrive and businesses grow promoting the district as a visitor destination, 
committing to work with businesses to ensure compliance and promote best practice. 

• Secure investment in our town centres
Castle Quay Waterfront in Banbury enjoyed the opening of the new Lidl 
supermarket and 117 bedroom Premier Inn, as well as a new pedestrian 
footbridge over the Oxford Canal.  This exciting revival of central Banbury’s canal 
side area will be completed by The Light, an amazing 55,000 square foot 
entertainment space spanning three floors with a premium seven screen cinema, 
10 lane bowling alley, indoor climbing walls, restaurant terrace and bar, together 
with three further waterfront restaurants including Nando’s and Pizza Express 

• Promote the district as a visitor destination;
The Council worked with Experience Oxfordshire, the county’s official Destination 
Management Organisation, to support the district’s visitor economy, which was 
severely challenged by the pandemic.  A new digital Oxfordshire Hospitality Guide 
was launched in April 2021 and a new digital Oxfordshire Visitor Guide in February 
2022. 

Page 34



Page 13 of 163 

Healthy, resilient and engaged communities 

• The Council is committed to enabling all residents to lead an active life,
improving and developing the quality of local sports and leisure facilities and
promoting health and wellbeing in our communities. Also, supporting community
and cultural development, working with our partners to address the causes of
health inequalities and deprivation, and to reduce crime and anti-social
behaviour.

• Provide opportunities to support active lifestyles;

• Street Tag, a family-friendly game app that rewards primary school pupils,
communities and schools for physical activity. With the highest sign-up rate in
the country of 3,000 users, 39 out of 47 schools in Cherwell participating during
2021/22.

• Promote health and wellbeing in our communities to help create a more
inclusive ‘Including Everyone’ community and workplace.

Story Map, is a new tool created by digital specialists to help the council to know
more about residents and target support to those who need it most. Cherwell is
the first council to develop the system; this software provides information that
enables a tailored approach to service provision with data that was already
public and creates a rounded picture of life in specific locations. This technology
was developed in partnership with Active Oxfordshire, Sport England and Public
Health England.

Our Leadership and workforce 
Our Constitution sets out the rules and procedures by which the council operates. 
The Council has 48 members (or ‘councillors’) elected by the public to represent a 
particular local area. Collectively they are responsible for the democratic structure of the 
council, overseeing our key policies and services and setting the council’s annual budget 
and capital programme. View your councillors on our website. 
The Leader of the Council is Councillor Barry Wood. Councillor Wood appoints an 
Executive, responsible for taking key decisions to manage the Council’s business. Find out 
more about our Executive members and their responsibilities.
Employees or officers support the Executive and Council in their work and manage the 
Council’s services and operations. The Chief Executive (Yvonne Rees) leads the most 
senior group of officers, the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT), who advise councillors on 
policy and implement councillors’ decisions. The Assistant Director of Finance (Michael 
Furness), is the Section 151 Officer, and started in the role in February 2022. 
As at 31 March 2022 the Council’s staff complement stood at 476.64 FTE (full-time 
equivalent) posts, representing 513 employees.  The FTE and headcount figures differ 
because the Council has a number of staff that work part time hours. Staff are structured 
into directorates, each responsible for a group of services and functions in support of the 
delivery of the Council’s Vision and Business Plan.  

Page 35

https://cherwell.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapJournal/index.html?appid=e8e6b9162e0f44b187142d576833eea9
https://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?XXR=0&Year=2022&CId=531&Info=1&MD=constitution
https://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=115
https://www.cherwell.gov.uk/info/189/performance/934/business-plan-2022-to-2023/2


Page 14 of 163 

The Council has been working in partnership with Oxfordshire County Council since 
October 2018.  The Council voted to end the partnership at its meeting on 8 February 
2022. Work is now progressing to work through the “decoupling” of the two organisations 
and agree future working relationships. 
We also work collaboratively with partners in the public, private and voluntary sector to 
achieve the best outcomes for our residents. Further details of how the Council works, 
both internally and with external partners, can be found in our Annual Governance 
Statement.  

Risk management 
During 2021/22 we continued to develop and strengthen our risk management activities. 
This helped us to ensure that we continue to identify and address any uncertainties 
relating to the achievement of our priorities.  
The most significant risks facing the Council (Leadership Risks) are reported to the 
Executive in our monthly Performance, Finance and Risk Monitoring Reports.  Leadership 
risks are those that could impact on the performance of the Council as a whole, and in 
particular on its ability to deliver its strategic priorities.    
The Council has maintained a focus on its financial resilience and on the impact of 
COVID-19 in our communities and customers during the year; reporting these two as the 
highest risks facing the Council.Both are closely related to the effects of the pandemic, 
due to the pressures generated as a consequence of it on our finances and community 
resilience. 
Directorates and Services within the Council also maintain operational risk registers to 
monitor that the impact and delivery of individual services, projects or areas of business. 
Operational risks which become more severe can be escalated to the Leadership level for 
additional management.  

Financial Overview 

Financial Performance 
The Council sets a revenue budget, medium-term financial strategy (MTFS) and capital 
programme in the February preceding the start of the financial year. These are 
underpinned by a Financial Strategy, Capital and Investment Strategy, Treasury 
Management Strategy and a review and assessment of the adequacy of earmarked 
reserves.  
Construction of the budget and budget proposals are subject to challenge by the Senior 
Management Team and the Assistant Director of Finance. The Budget Planning 
Committee scrutinises the budget proposals at its meetings before the Executive propose 
the budget, MTFS and Capital programme in February.  The Council approves the budget 
at its Annual Budget meeting each February.   
As the COVID-19 pandemic was ongoing when the Council set its 2021/22 budget, 
significant contingencies were built into the budget to address potential ongoing impacts 
and financial uncertainties.  Including these contingencies allowed the Council to set a 
balanced budget whilst providing the security of knowing that additional funding was 
available if the financial impacts of the pandemic continued for a significant period into the 
year. 
Throughout the year, regular financial monitoring reports are presented to the Executive. 

Page 36



 

Page 15 of 163 
 

Resources 
The District Council collects Council Tax and Business Rates on behalf of other bodies 
including Central Government, Oxfordshire County Council and Thames Valley Police and 
Crime Commissioner.  
The Council is required to distribute the business rates and council tax according to how it 
set its budget in the February before the beginning of the financial year.  Business Rates 
of £95.5m and Council Tax of £113.4m was budgeted and distributed in 2021/22 in the 
following shares. 

 
From the Council’s share of business rates the Government then charges a tariff, which is 
redistributed to other Local Authorities based on their need to spend.  For the year ending 
31 March 2022, the Council expected to retain a net £10.5m of business rates related 
income after all the allocations are taken into consideration.  
Normally the Council would expect to collect business rates and council tax in line with its 
budget assumptions with relatively small variances.  However, due to the Covid-19 
pandemic, the Government provided up to 100 per cent business rates relief to those 
businesses identified as being most severly impacted by the pandemic.  This meant that 
the actual business rates income to be collected in 2021/22 was far lower than expected 
when the budget was set.  
In response, the Government compensated authorities for the loss of business rates as a 
result of COVID-19 related reliefs, allowing the Council to meet its budgetary commitments 
to the County and Central Government, pay its tariff and retain resources to support 
services. The Council collected £75.0m Business Rates compared to the £95.5m it 
budgeted to collect and distribute.  

Pension Liabilities 
The amounts payable by the Council in future years are partly offset by the value of the 
assets invested in the pension fund. The value of the pension fund net liability at 31 March 
2022 is £76.8m; this reflects an improvement of £18.8m from the 31 March 2021 net 
liability position of £95.6m. 

  

Page 37



Page 16 of 163 

Contingencies 
The Council has to set aside a provision for appeals which might arise against business 
rates valuations.  
On 1 April 2021 the total provision for business rate appeals was £21.056m of which the 
Council’s 40 per cent share was £8.423m.  During the financial year £4.994m was charged 
to the provision for successful appeals in 2021/22 which have been previously provided 
for. 
After reflecting the amounts charged to the provision in 2021/22, the Council carried out an 
assessment of the future risk of appeal losses. The basis of this forecast was to apply 4.7 
per cent to gross rates payable being the national average of appeal losses on the 2010 
rating list as measured by MHCLG. Following this, the 2021/22 overall provision for 
business rates appeals increased to £21.060m of which the Council's 40 per cent share is 
£8.424m. 

• Appeals provision 2020/21: £8.423m

• Appeals provision 2021/22: £8.424m

Council Funding 2021/22 
The Council’s core funding from central government has been reducing and funding 
generated as a result of the economic growth development is increasing. The table below 
shows where the council funding has come from. 
(The figures in brackets represent income received by the Council). 

2021/22 Revenue Budget 
Funding 

Budget 
£m 

Actual 
£m 

Variance 
£m 

Government Grants (0.000) (0.120) (0.120) 

Council Tax (7.682) (7.704) (0.022) 

Business Rates related income (10.152) (10.171) (0.019) 

New Homes Bonus (4.539) (4.423) 0.116 

Total Funding (22.373) (22.418) (0.045) 

Page 38



Page 17 of 163 

Revenue Financial Outturn Position  
Cherwell District Council set a balanced budget in February 2021 for the 2021/22 financial 
year which anticipated the Council retaining sufficient reserves to cover unexpected 
financial impacts on the Council, with a number of specific reserves to help cover the 
Council’s commercial activities.   
During 2021/22 the coronavirus COVID-19 pandemic continued to impact on the Council 
and measures were left in place to record the related additional spending and loss of 
income across Cherwell District Council’s activities.  The total financial impact of the 
pandemic has been calculated to be £1.888m during 2021/22 with some additional 
government funding provided to local authorities to help manage those additional costs 
and losses of income.   
Regular monitoring reports were considered by the Council’s Executive and the Council 
expected to deliver the balanced budget by the 2022 year end.   At the year end an overall 
underspend of (£0.430m) against the budget was delivered after taking into account the 
variances on both the Cost of Services (underspend of £0.385m) and Total Income (under 
budget by £0.045m). 
The table below summarises the 2021/22 financial outturn position across the Council: 

Financial Outturn Budget £m Actual £m Variance £m 

Adults and Housing Services 1.898 1.312 (0.586) 

Commercial Development 
Assets and Investments 

1.190 0.320 (0.870) 

Customers, Organisational  
Development and Resources 

6.922 6.797 (0.125) 

Environment and Place 9.608 10.667 1.059 

Public Health and Wellbeing 3.281 3.273 (0.008) 

Total Directorates 22.899 22.369 (0.530) 

Executive Matters (0.526) (0.381) 0.145 

Total Cost of Services 22.373 21.988 (0.385) 

Income (22.373) (22.418) (0.045) 

Total Net Cost of Services 0.000 (0.430) (0.430) 

Page 39



Page 18 of 163 

In summary, the Council saw an overall underspend of (£0.530m) (2.3 per cent) across it’s 
directorates, against a budget of £22.899m.  

Some of the key factors for this underspend include lower levels of borrowing and rates of 
interest particularly earlier in the year, a number of vacancies being held across the 
Council, and lower consultancy costs than budgeted. 

COVID-19 Impact 

Whilst COVID-19 had a major impact on the Council’s services and financial situation 
throughout 2020/21, it has continued to have an impact on services throughout 2021/22. 
The Council has continued to suffer major losses of anticipated income, in particular from 
car parks and from its commercial properties.  The Council has not experienced significant 
additional costs to the services it provides in the same way that it did in 2020/21. 
Due to the Council setting aside contingencies within its budget for 2021/22 in anticipation 
of challenges related to COVID-19, resource was available to mitigate the impacts of the 
lost income on the Council. 
Overall the cost of COVID-19 to the Council has been £2.721m in 2021/22.  This was 
offset by £0.833m support from the Government.  No support was provided for losses in 
commercial income.  Overall the net cost of COVID-19 to the Council was £1.888m. 
The Council has also faced the continuing challenge of paying out significant levels of 
grant support to businesses and individuals. 

-2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Environment and
Place

Customers,
Organisational

Development and
Resources

Adults and Housing
Services

Public Health and
Wellbeing

Commercial
Development,

Assets and
Investments

Executive Matters

£m
Directorate Budgets and Actual Spend

Budget
£m

Actual
£m

Page 40



Page 19 of 163 

Business Grants 

Overall the Council has paid out £14.2m of grants to businesses in 2021/22 to support 
them through the pandemic.  £9.7m grant payments have been made in line with national 
requriements where the Council has acted as agent, on behalf of the Government.   
A further £4.5m have been paid using local, discretionary policies, where the Council has 
received funding from the Government and determined the most appropriate way in which 
it can be allocated to local businesses.   
The table below provides a breakdown of the Grant payments made to businesses in 
2021/22: 

COVID-19 Business Grant Payments in 2021/22 £m 

National Schemes 

Local Restrictions Support: 

Closed Addendum Lockdown 2 0.14 

Closed Addendum (Tier 4) 0.07 

Closed Addendum (05/01/21 onwards) 0.72 

Closed Business Lockdown (CBLP) 0.64 

Restart 7.07 

Omicron Hospitality & Leisure 1.03 

Subtotal National Schemes 9.67 

Local Discretionary Schemes: 

Local Restrictions Support Open (Tier 2) 0.01 

Additional Restrictions 4.52 

Subtotal Local Discretionary Schemes 4.53 

Total Business Grant Payments 14.20 

Page 41



Page 20 of 163 

Individual Funding 

The Council has also received grant funding to support individuals on low incomes by 
providing them with payments if they were required to isolate as a result of contracting, or 
being a close contact of soemone that had COVID-19. 
The Council has also made payments to those who have been required to isolate and 
have suffered financial hardship throughout 2021/22 as shown in the table below. 

Test and Trace Grant Payments 

 Scheme Number of payments £m 

Statutory Scheme 767 0.383 

Discretionary Scheme 508 0.254 

Financial Position 
The Council maintains a sound financial position in the current financial climate. 

The resultant net liability can be primarily attributed to the pension liability and the 
business rates collection fund deficit. 

Page 42



Page 21 of 163 

Capital Programme 
The council has an ambitious capital programme which supports its long-term strategy of 
delivering a thriving and vibrant environment across the district as well as recognising the 
importance of investing in our assets to protect our core statutory functions. 

Capital investment plans for 2021/22 
The information below describes our major schemes and projects and the outcomes that 
we will achieve. 

Castle Quay and Castle Quay Waterfront 
The Council has invested £70m in Castle Quay Waterfront.  This is a mixed-use 
development combining new leisure attractions, vibrant restaurants and bars, welcoming 
public space, a new canal-side hotel, and supermarket to support the town’s existing retail 
offer and attract more visitors to the town, which is due to be fully operational in June 
2022. 
The first phase of the development opened in August 2021 and included a 117 room 
Premier Inn and a 30,000 square foot Lidl. Both are performing exceptionally well, with 
footfall high throughout the week at Lidl and guest numbers consistently strong at Premier 
Inn.  
In June 2022, The Light will be opening a 55,000 square foot entertainment space over 
three floors, which will include a premium cinema, 10 lane bowl, retro arcade, mini-golf 
and climbing wall as well as a stunning terrace with restaurant and bar. The Light is a true 
reflection of the Council’s ambition to revive the canal-side and will anchor Waterfront’s 
leisure offer. The Waterfront will also include three further restaurants including a Nando’s 
and Pizza Express, which are set to open by early Summer 2022.  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Housing Total Comm Dev Assets total Customers, Org Dev &
Resources Total

Environment and Place
Total

Public Health Wellbeing
Total

£m

2021/2022 Capital Outturn

Budget Outturn 2021/22 £m Re-profiled beyond 2021/22

Page 43



 

Page 22 of 163 
 

The tenants within Castle Quay are a mixture of well-known high-street names and 
independent stores including Boots, Tiger, Clarks, WHSmith, JD Sports, HMV, Pandora 
and New Look. New award-winning toilets, baby changing facilities and Changing 
Places toilets were also opened at the centre at the end of 2019 to meet the modern 
needs of Banbury’s shoppers. 
The Council has also breathed new life into the centre’s former BHS store, investing in the 
creation of a unique food, retail and leisure destination called Lock29 that brings the 
community to the canal-side as well as increasing footfall to the town from visitors from all 
over the region.  
Global street food menus are delivered by the very best local traders, sourcing ingredients 
as close to Banbury as possible. There is also a dedicated event and flexible cinema 
space where workshops, events and activities for the community run throughout the year. 
The Council has undoubtedly unlocked the town’s potential by bringing a much-needed 
leisure and night-time economy to the town and re-connected the waterfront with other 
parts of Banbury. It has also provided the community with jobs and opportunities.  
The development of Castle Quay Waterfront will sustain and revitalise Banbury for 
businesses, residents and visitors and really consolidate the town’s place in the wider 
regional economy for years to come. 

 

 
Images above:  CGI of completed Castle Quay Waterfront development  

Page 44

http://www.changing-places.org/the_campaign/what_are_changing_places_toilets_.aspx
http://www.changing-places.org/the_campaign/what_are_changing_places_toilets_.aspx


 

Page 23 of 163 
 

Basis of Preparation and Presentation  
The Council produces a Statement of Accounts to provide transparency about the 
Council’s finances, to give assurance to stakeholders that public money has been properly 
accounted for and that the financial standing of the council is on a secure basis.  The 
accounts (including notes to the accounts) for 2021/22 are set out on pages 25 to 126.  
The accounts bring together all the Council’s financial statements for the year 2021/22 and 
show its financial position as at 31 March 2022. The statements reflect both revenue and 
capital elements for the Council. 
The Statement of Accounts must provide a ‘true and fair’ view of the Council’s financial 
position at 31 March 2022 and of its income and expenditure for the 2021/22 financial 
year. When preparing the accounts consideration is given to the materiality of information.  
Disclosure of information is made where omitting it could be misleading or inhibit the true 
and fair view. 
The strong and prudent level of reserves are sufficient to ensure that the Council is able to 
continue to meet the cost of the provision of services over the medium term. Therefore, 
the accounts are prepared on a ‘going-concern’ basis. 

Financial Outlook  
Cherwell District Council set a balanced budget in February 2022 for the 2022/23 financial 
year.  In setting the 2022/23 budget, the Council considered the future financial impacts of 
the COVID-19 pandemic that will feed into the economic recovery of Cherwell and the 
Council.  A policy contingency budget of £3.6m has been developed which includes 
contingencies of £1.1m for potential increased commercial risk.   
The level of business rates income and council tax base were reviewed resulting in losses 
of income against original plans due to forecast increases in council tax support claimants 
and a reduction in the number of businesses eligible to pay business rates.  The Council 
continues to hold a £1.6m COVID-19 reserve to provide further contingency against the 
impacts of the pandemic.  General Balances have also been increased to £6m taking into 
account the Section 151 officer’s risk assessments of the current financial outlook. 
The Government confirmed that the Review of Relative Needs and Resource and 75 per 
cent business rates retention would not be implemented in 2022/23.  Planning 
assumptions within the 2022/23 Medium-Term Financial Strategy now assume that there 
will be a business rates reset in 2023/24.  A three-year Spending Review was announced 
in October 2021, However, the following Local Government Finance Settlement only 
announced a funding allocation for 2022/23.  There is no indication of detailed local 
government funding levels for 2023/24 and beyond. 
The Council agreed to end its Section 113 Partnership Arrangement with Oxfordshire 
County Council in February 2022.  The process of agreeing how services will be provided 
in the future by the two Councils is ongoing with an aim to complete the separation within 
6 months of the notice period beginning – i.e. by 31 August 2022, though both Councils 
have acknowledged that there may be services which have not fully decoupled by this 
point.  An overarching principle is to ensure value for the Council Tax Payer throughout 
the decoupling.  It is not envisaged that the costs of the Council will be any greater as an 
individual Council, but a separation contingency of £0.4m has been identified to mitigate 
any one-off costs that are required. 

  

Page 45



Page 24 of 163 

The Financial Statements 
The Statement of Accounts sets out the Councils income levels and spending for the year 
and its financial position at 31 March 2022. The accounts include core and supplementary 
statements along with notes providing additional insight. 
The format and context of the financial statements is set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom and is underpinned by International 
Financial Reporting Standards. 
The Core Statements can be described as: 

Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement 

Shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting practices rather than 
the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to 
cover expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may 
be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in 
both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 

Movement in 
Reserves 
Statement 

Shows the movement from the start of the year to the end on the 
different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘useable 
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce 
local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’ (for example the 
Revaluation Reserve which holds unrealised gains and losses or the 
Capital Adjustment Account which holds adjustments between the 
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations). This statement 
shows how the movements in year of the authority’s reserves are 
broken down between gains and losses incurred in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices and the statutory adjustments 
required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax for the year. 
The Net Increase/Decrease line shows the statutory General Fund 
Balance in the year following those adjustments.  

Balance Sheet The balance sheet shows the values as at 31 March 2022 of the assets 
and liabilities recognised by the authority. The net assets of the 
authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by 
the authority, analysed between ‘useable’ and ‘unusable’ reserves. 

Cash Flow 
Statement 

This summarises the changes in cash and cash equivalents during 
2021/22. The statement shows how the authority generates and uses 
cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, 
investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising 
from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the 
operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant 
income or from the recipients of services provided by the authority. 
Investing activities represent the extent to which cash flows have been 
made for resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s 
future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are 
useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital 
(i.e. borrowing) to the authority. 

Page 46



 

Page 25 of 163 
 

The Supplementary Financial Statements are: 

• Notes to the Accounts – these provide additional insight into the accounting 
policies and accounting transactions during the year 

• Collection Fund Accounts – this shows a summary of the collection of Council 
Tax and Business Rates during the year as well as any redistribution of that 
money to other local authorities and central government 

• Group Accounts – these set out the consolidated position for the council and 
its subsidiary companies, namely Graven Hill companies and Crown House 
Banbury Limited. The Council also significantly funds Banbury Museum Trust 
which is not part of the group 

• The Annual Governance Statement – this provides an overview of the 
governance arrangements and assessment of internal controls the Council has 
in place 

  

Page 47



Page 26 of 163 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of 
Accounts 

The Council’s Responsibilities 
The Council is required to: 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of
those affairs. In this Council, that officer is the Assistant Director of Finance
(Section 151 Officer);

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources
and safeguard its assets; and

• approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts, in accordance with proper practices, as set out in the CIPFA (Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy) Code of Practice on Local Council Accounting in the 
United Kingdom (the Code of Practice). 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 Officer has: 

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently

• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent

• complied with the Local Authority Code
The Section 151 Officer has also: 

• kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Section 151 Officer’s Certificate: 
I certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Council at the reporting date and of its expenditure and income for the year ended 
31 March 2022. 

Michael Furness 
Assistant Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer Date:    
Chairman of Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee Certificate: 
I certify that the draft Statement has been discussed with and endorsed by the Chair of the 
Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee 

Councillor Donna Ford 
Chairman of Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee   Date:    

Page 48



Page 27 of 163 

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax 
payers how the funding available to the authority (i.e. government grants, council tax and 
business rates) for the year has been used in providing services in comparison with those 
resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting practices.  
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for 
decision making purposes between council’s directorates. Income and expenditure 
accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  

Year Ending 31 Mar 21 Year Ending 31 Mar 22 

Net 
Expenditure 
Chargeable 
to the 
General 
Fund 
Balance 

Adjustments Net 
Expenditure in 
the 
Comprehensiv
e Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement 

Services Net 
Expenditure 
Chargeable 
to the 
General 
Fund 
Balance 

Adjustments Net Expenditure 
in the 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 
Statement 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

1,255 1,559 2,814 Adults and Housing 
Services 

1,312 2,370 3,682 

3,843 4,863 8,706 Comm Dev Assets 
and Invests 

3,814 24,883 28,697 

5,232 1,209 6,441 Cust and Org Dev & 
Resources 

5,954 2,075 8,029 

6,034 17,717 23,751 Environment & Place 10,621 11,198 21,819 

3,272 (1,402) 1,870 Public Health and 
Wellbeing 

3,273 (366) 2,907 

19,636 23,946 43,582 Net Cost of 
Services 

24,974 40,160 65,134 

(49,641) 25,007 (24,634) Other Income and 
Expenditure 

(12,428) (20,433) (32,861) 

(30,006) 48,953 18,948 (Surplus) or Deficit 
on Provision of 
Services 

12,545 19,727 32,273 

(28,399) Opening Combined General Fund 
Balance 

(58,405) 

0  Adjustment to opening balance 0 

(30,006) Plus / less (Surplus) or Deficit on the 
General Fund Balance for the Year 
(Statutory basis) 

12,546 

(58,405) Closing Combined General Fund 
Balance 

(45,859) 

Page 49



Page 28 of 163 

Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure Statement 
Year Ending 31 Mar 21 Directorates Year Ending 31 Mar 22 
Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net 
£'000 £'000 £'000 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 
4,838 (2,024) 2,814 Adults and Housing Services 5,668 (1,986) 3,682 
9,811 (1,105) 8,706 Comm Dev Assets and Invests 30,906 (2,209) 28,697 
36,014 (29,573) 6,441 Cust and Org Dev & Resources 34,945 (26,916) 8,029 
37,440 (13,689) 23,751 Environment & Place 32,598 (10,779) 21,819 
4,060 (2,190) 1,870 Public Health and Wellbeing 6,341 (3,434) 2,907 
92,163 (48,581) 43,582 Cost of Services 110,458 (45,324) 65,134 
5,713 0 5,713 10 Other Operating Expenditure 5,451 (834) 4,617
24,705 (11,294) 13,411 11 Financing and Investment (Income) and Expenditure 24,608 (10,645) 13,963 

0 (43,758) (43,758) 12 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant (Income) 0 (51,441) (51,441) 
122,581 (103,633) 18,948 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 140,517 (108,244) 32,273 

2,963 14 (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

(4,311) 

23,517 35 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / 
(asset) 

(26,718) 

26,480 Other Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (31,029) 

45,428 Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure 1,244 

P
age 50



Page 29 of 163 

Movement in Reserves Statement 
General 
Fund 
Balance 

£'000 

Earmarked 
General 
Fund 
Reserves 

£'000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

£'000 

Capital 
Grants Un-
applied 
Account 

£'000 

Total Usable 
Reserves 

£'000 

Unusable 
Reserves 

£'000 

Total 
Reserves 

£'000 
Opening Balance at 31 March 2021 (5,520) (52,885) (79) (676) (59,160) 54,262 (4,896) 
Movement in reserves 
during 2021/22 

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of 
services 32,273 0 0 0 32,273 0 32,273 

Other Comprehensive (Income) / 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 (31,029) (31,029) 

Total Comprehensive (Income) and 
Expenditure 32,273 0 0 0 32,273 (31,029) 1,244 

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulations - Note 08 

(19,726) 0 (21) (7,272) (27,019) 27,019 0 

Net (Increase) or Decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 12,547 0 (21) (7,272) 5,254 (4,010) 1,244 

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked 
Reserves - Note 09 (12,978) 12,978 0 0 0 0 0 

(Increase) or Decrease in 2021/22 (431) 12,978 (21) (7,272) 5,254 (4,010) 1,244 

Closing Balance at 31 March 2022 (5,951) (39,907) (100) (7,948) (53,906) 50,252 (3,652) 

General 
Fund 
Balance 

£'000  

Earmarked 
General 
Fund 
Reserves 

£'000  

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

£'000 

Capital 
Grants Un-
applied 
Account 
£'000 

Total 
Usable 
Reserves 

£'000 

Unusable 
Reserves 

£'000 

Total 
Reserves 

£'000 
Opening Balance at 31 March 2020 
(restated) (2,018) (26,381) (0) (165) (28,564) (21,761) (50,325) 
Movement in reserves during 2020/21 

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of 
services 18,948 0 0 0 18,948 0 18,948 

Other Comprehensive (Income) / 
Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 26,480 26,480 

Total Comprehensive (Income) and 
Expenditure 18,948 0 0 0 18,948 26,480 45,428 
Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulations - Note 08 

(48,954) 0 (79) (511) (49,544) 49,544 0 

Net (Increase) or Decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves (30,006) 0 (79) (511) (30,596) 76,024 45,428 

Transfers (to) / from Earmarked 
Reserves - Note 09 26,504 (26,504) 0 0 0 0 0 

(Increase) or Decrease in 20/21 (3,502) (26,504) (79) (511) (30,596) 76,024 45,428 
Closing Balance at 31 March 2021 
(restated) (5,520) (52,885) (79) (676) (59,160) 54,262 (4,896) 

Page 51



Page 30 of 163 

Balance Sheet 
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

£'000 Notes £'000 
161,557 14 Property, Plant and Equipment 123,490 

45,306 15 Investment Property 60,353 
2,282 16 Intangible Assets 2,431 

33,053 17 Long Term Investments 35,649 
60,326 17 Long Term Debtors 69,635 

302,525 
 

Long Term Assets 291,558 
31,028 17 Short-term Investments 46,254 

224 18 Inventories 253 
42,516 19 Short Term Debtors 23,062 

7,750 20 Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,905 
81,518 

 
Current Assets 74,475 

(82,584) 17 Short-Term Borrowing (87,605) 
(52,503) 22 Short-Term Creditors (36,694) 
(1,469) 23 Provisions (314) 
(8,612) 29 Grants Receipts in Advance - Revenue (19,606) 

(777) 29 Grants Receipts in Advance - Capital (1,485) 
(145,945) 

 
Current Liabilities (145,704) 

(7,250) 23 Provisions (8,409) 
(102,000) 17 Long Term Borrowing (112,000) 

(95,654) 35 Pension Liabilities (76,808) 
(1,570) 17 Long Term Creditors (1,562) 
(4,174) 29 Grants Receipts in Advance - Revenue (4,958) 

(22,555) 29 Grants Receipts in Advance - Capital (12,941) 
(233,202) 

 
Long Term Liabilities (216,678) 

4,896 Net Assets 3,651 
(59,160) 24 Usable Reserves (53,905) 

54,264 25 Unusable Reserves 50,254 

(4,896) Total Reserves (3,651) 

I certify that the statement of accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
authority at 31 March 2022 and its income and expenditure for the year to 31 March 2022. 

Michael Furness 
Assistant Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer Date: 

Page 52



Page 31 of 163 

Cash Flow Statement 
The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the authority 
during the reporting period. 

31-Mar-21
£’000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities Note 31-Mar-22
£’000

18,948 Net (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 32,273 
(3,096) Depreciation & Impairment 14 (3,381) 
(4,721) Changes in Market Value of Property, Plant, Equipment 14 (20,718) 

(367) Amortisation of Intangible Assets 16 (498) 
(17,787) Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties 15 (17,782) 
(2,042) Disposal of Assets 14 (558) 

37 Changes in Inventory 18 29 
22,196 Changes in Short term Debtors 19 (19,454) 

(28,318) Changes in Short term Creditors 22 15,809 
(1,677) Changes in Provisions 23 (4) 

(22,884) Changes in Net Pension Liability 25 18,846 
23,517 Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Liability 35 (26,718) 

6 Changes in long term creditors 17 8 
5,703 Changes in long term debtors 17 9,309 

13,056 Capital Grants Recognised 29 18,954 
1,883 Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 24 1,338 
4,455 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 7,452  

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
40,764 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment 14 14,895 
1,999 Purchase and Enhancement of Investment Property 15 212 
1,146 Purchase of Intangible Assets 16 647 

(1,883) Proceeds from the Disposal of Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

24 (1,338) 

17,980 Net Changes in Short-term and Long-term Investments 17 17,822 
60,005 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 32,239  

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
(11,266) Changes in Grants and Contributions 29 (2,872) 
(13,056) Capital Grants and Contributions Recognised 29 (18,954) 
(43,077) Cash Receipts of Short-term and Long-term Borrowing 17 (15,021) 

0 Any other items for which the cash effects are investing or 
financing cash flows 

 
0 

0 Changes in Council Tax and Business Rates Collected for 
Third    Parties 

10 0 

(67,399) Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities (36,847)  
(2,939) Net (Increase)/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents in 

the Period 
2,845 

4,811 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the 
Period 

7,750 

7,750 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period     20 4,905 

Items included in net cash flow from operating activities include: 
(4,374) Interest Receivable and similar income    17 (4,395) 

2,531 Interest Payable (including Finance lease interest)    17 2,227 
(1,843) 

 
(2,168) 

Page 53



Page 32 of 163 

Notes 

Note 1 – Accounting Policies 
General principles 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2021/22 
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2022. The Council is required to 
prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015, which those Regulations require to be prepared in accordance with 
proper accounting practices.  
These practices under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2003 primarily comprise the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 and the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice 2021/22, supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act. 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments. 

1.1 Going Concern 

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis; that is, on the assumption that the 
functions of the District Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future from the date that the accounts are authorised for issue. 
The District Council has carried out a detailed assessment of the continuing impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and other economic pressures on its financial position and 
performance during 2022/23 as part of the budget setting process. This included 
consideration of the following: 

• Loss of income on a service-by-service basis during the recovery phase,
for example on car parking income.

• Additional expenditure on a service-by-service basis, e.g., extra inflationary
pressures.

• The impact on the District Council’s capital programme, e.g., delays caused
by government restrictions, and whether there is a need to rephase work
for other reasons e.g., supply chain challenges.

• The impact of all of the above on the District Council’s cash flow and
treasury management, including availability of liquid cash (as at 30 April
2022 the Council had £10.1m instant access deposits), impact on
investment returns, and availability of external borrowing if required.

• The estimated overall impact on the District Council’s General Fund
As set out in the 2022/23 Budget and Medium-Term Financial Strategy up to 2026/27 
approved by Council in February 2022, the Council has set aside a contingency to cover 
potential COVID-19 costs and losses of income of £1.1m.  In addition, £1.6m has been set 
aside in an earmarked COVID-19 reserve to meet unidentified costs associated with the 
pandemic. The Council also set a contingency budget for continued inflationary pressures 
throughout the medium term. 

Page 54



 

Page 33 of 163 
 

At its meeting on 7 February 2022, the Council agreed to terminate the Section 113 
Partnership Arrangement with Oxfordshire County Council. This began a 6-month period to 
agree how the Councils would separate and/or which services would continue to be 
provided in a joint arrangement.  The Council recognised that there may be some additional 
costs associated with this and set aside a contingency budget of £0.4m.  It is envisaged that 
planned savings will still be deliverable, but to the extent that ongoing costs are identified as 
part of the separation, these will be addressed as part of the 2023/24 budget process. 
The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy identifies that the Council needs to identify 
savings of £5.5m in 2023/24.  This is primarily due to a forecast loss of resources from an 
anticipated business rates reset and phasing out of the New Homes Bonus Grant.   

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy to address this gap is: 

• Continue its partnering arrangements in the future including:  
a) joint contracting and commissioning arrangements  
b) continuing the journey to transform the way in which the Council delivers 

with other partners 

• Overarching review of the Council’s resources and priorities  in order to 
maximise delivery against these.  This will require savings proposals to be 
identified that focus on those areas that are of a lower priority to the 
Council. 

• Begin targeted strategic delivery reviews across the council, taking into 
account the changing needs of the residents of Cherwell and the financial 
resources available to the Council. This, in combination with the review of 
priorities will ensure future service provision is focussed on the delivery of 
the Council’s priorities. 

• Considering further approaches to maximise the levels of income the 
Council can generate to support frontline services. 

• “Growing our way” out of trouble by identifying opportunities with the right 
business cases  

• Continuing to lobby policy makers, highlighting where we have been 
delivering growth and driving benefits to others 

Whilst identifying £5.5m savings in 2023/24 will be a challenge, the Council has 
demonstrated that it is capable of identifying and delivering significant savings in recent 
years, following the revised budget introduced in 2020/21, the £4.3m savings identified in 
the 2021/22 budget and the £2.9m savings identified in the 2022/23 budget.  Executive will 
receive monthly updates on the financial position throughout 2022/23, including progress 
against savings delivery.  Progress against savings delivery is managed by the Budget 
Oversight Group and senior management.   

In setting the 2022/23 budget, the Council has determined that £6m of general balances is 
a prudent level in order to manage identified risks.  A further £22m of other earmarked 
reserves could also be made available if absolutely necessary.  The Council continues to 
review its reserves position regularly as per its Reserves Policy.  

The Council’s cashflow forecast to the end of March 2023 demonstrates that the Council 
has access to sufficient cash over the medium term to support planned Council and Group 
activities.  This assumes maximum planned borrowing of £201m in the period and includes 

Page 55



Page 34 of 163 

flexibility for additional borrowing of up to £109m should income be less than forecast or 
expenditure more than forecast in the period. 
It is therefore noted that there is significant headroom within the General Fund to absorb 
the estimated financial impact of economic pressures in the short to medium-term. 
Furthermore, the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in England 
requires that local authorities prepare their accounts on a going concern basis, as they can 
only be discontinued under statutory prescription. For these reasons, the Council does not 
consider that there is material uncertainty in respect of its ability to continue as a going 
concern for the foreseeable future. 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 

• Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the
provision of goods, is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are
transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations
in the contract.

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption; they are
carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet.

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by
employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather
than when payments are made.

• An exception to this policy is housing benefit transactions which are accounted for
on a cash basis, that is, when the payment is made.

• Interest receivable on investments is accounted for respectively as income on the
basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than
the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded on the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

• The de minimis level for manual accruals has been maintained at £20,000, which
is reviewed annually.  This removes small transactions at the end of the financial
year that do not materially affect the accounts.   Purchase orders raised
automatically through the financial information system are processed with no de
minimis level.

• For business rates, the levy or safety net payments owed to or from Central
Government for the financial year are reported in the year they relate to on an
accruals basis.   Cherwell is the lead authority for the North Oxfordshire Pool and
has accounted for the amounts owing to the Pool for levy payments and owed to
the other pool members for the gain from the pool on an accruals basis.

Page 56



 

Page 35 of 163 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid 
investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition and that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts 
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 

Changes in accounting policy no longer need to be material to result in a Prior Period 
Adjustment.  
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, 
i.e., in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices 
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, 
other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. 
Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had 
always been applied. Accounting policies that relate to statutory accounting requirements are 
accounted for in the same manner as other accounting policies. 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are 
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 
written off 

• Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance.  

  

Page 57



Page 36 of 163 

Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are replaced by the 
contribution in the General Fund Balance Minimum Revenue Payment (MRP) by way of an 
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement for the difference between the two. 

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account 
The Council has a statutory requirement to operate a Collection Fund as a separate account 
to the General Fund. The purpose of the Collection Fund is to isolate the income and 
expenditure relating to Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates. 

Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on 
behalf of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as principals, collecting 
council tax and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a 
separate fund (i.e., the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in 
respect of council tax and NDR. 
Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors 
and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of 
council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 
Collection Fund surpluses/deficits declared by the Billing Authority in relation to Council Tax 
are apportioned to the relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent financial year. For 
Cherwell District Council, the Council Tax precepting bodies are Oxfordshire County Council 
and Police and Crime Commissioner. For Cherwell District Council, the NDR precepting 
bodies are Central Government (50 per cent share) Cherwell District Council (40 per cent 
share) and Oxfordshire County Council (10 per cent share). 
Cherwell District Council participates in a Business Rates pool with Oxfordshire County 
Council and West Oxfordshire District Council to minimise the levy payment due on growth in 
NDR income and thereby maximise the retention of locally generated business rates.   

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR 
The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the authority’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations 
determine the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the authority’s 
General Fund. Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to 
the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a 
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
The Balance Sheet includes the authority’s share of the end of year balances in respect of 
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, 
overpayments, prepayments, and provision for appeals. 
Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood 
arising from a past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not be 
made (fixed or determinable payments), the asset is written down and a charge made to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
Expenditure Statement or CIES. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between 
the carrying amount and the revised future cash flows. 

Page 58



 

Page 37 of 163 
 

Exceptional Items 
When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in 
the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of 
the Council’s financial performance.  
The Council has no Exceptional Items in 2021/22.  

1.2 Employee Benefits 

Benefits Payable during Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for 
current employees and are recognised as an expense for services in the year in which 
employees render service to the Council.  
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave - e.g., time off in 
lieu, flex-leave) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees 
can carry forward into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to the service account, 
but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday benefits 
accrual has no impact on Council Tax and holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the 
financial year in which the holiday absence occurs. 

Termination Benefit 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the authority to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an 
accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable, to a corporate 
service segment at the earlier of when the authority can no longer withdraw the offer of those 
benefits or when the authority recognises costs for a restructuring.  
Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions 
require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the authority to 
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are 
required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for 
pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to 
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. 

Post-Employment Benefits 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme, 
administered by Oxfordshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits to 
members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the 
Council. 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme. 

  

Page 59



Page 38 of 163 

The pension fund liability is calculated every three years by the fund’s actuary, with annual 
updates in the intervening years. Methods and assumptions consistent with International 
Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 are used in the calculations. Assumptions underpinning the 
valuations are agreed with the actuary and are summarised in Note 36. The estimate of the 
liability is therefore subject to significant variances based on changes to the assumptions 
used. 
The liabilities of the Oxfordshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the Council 
are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – 
i.e., an assessment of future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits
earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee
turnover rates, etc., and projections of projected earnings of current employees.
Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based on the 
indicative rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond. The discount rates are based on 
the annualised yield on the iBoxx over 15-year AA rated corporate bond index. 
The iBoxx bond market indices are benchmarks for professional use and comprise liquid 
investment grade bond issues. They enable investors to analyse and select benchmarks that 
reflect their investment profile. 
The assets of the Oxfordshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value and include quoted securities at current bid 
price and property at market value. 
The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components: 

Service cost comprising: 

• Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
earned this year – allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement to the services for which the employees worked

• Past service cost – the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited to the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs

• Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) i.e., net interest expense for
the Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.  This is calculated by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the period – taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result
of contribution and benefit payments.

Re-measurements comprising: 
• The return on assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the net

defined benefit liability (asset) – charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

• Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pension’s liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial

Page 60



Page 39 of 163 

valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to 
the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

• Contributions paid to the Oxfordshire pension fund – cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an
expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.  
In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and 
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits 
and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any 
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.  
The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial 
impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis 
of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to 
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 

Events after the Reporting Period 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that 
occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts 
is authorised for issue.   
Two types of events can be identified: 

• Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period – the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events; and

• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period – the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category
of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the
nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement 
of Accounts. 

Financial Instruments 
Financial instruments are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument.  

Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 

Page 61



Page 40 of 163 

interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective 
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised.  
For most of the borrowings that the authority has, this means that the amount presented in 
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for 
the year according to the loan agreement. 
Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where 
repurchase has taken place as part of a restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the 
modification or exchange of existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively 
deducted from or added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan 
by an adjustment to the effective interest rate.  
Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be 
spread over future years. The authority has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the 
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium was payable or discount 
receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against the General Fund 
Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in 
the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
The fair values of loans are estimated as the price the lender would receive to sell the loans 
to another market participant on 31 March 2021, based on observed market rates for similar 
transactions. 

Financial Assets 
Financial assets are classified into two types: 

• Loans and receivables – assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are
not quoted in an active market; and

• Available-for-sale assets – assets that have a quoted market price and/or do not
have fixed or determinable payments.

The Council has financial assets comprising of long-term and short-term investments, long-
term debtors, short-term debtors (excluding statutory debts such as Council Tax, Non-
Domestic Rates, rent allowances, precepts, etc.) and cash & cash equivalents. These are 
assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an active market. 
They are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They 
are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.  
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the 
carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument.  
For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in 
the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest 

Page 62



Page 41 of 163 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable 
for the year in the loan agreement. 
Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge 
made to the relevant service (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount 
and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original 
effective interest rate. 
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement. 

Available-for-Sale Assets 
The Council has available for sale financial assets in the form of, for example, Certificates of 
Deposit.  Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, 
annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the 
amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. 
Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g., dividends) is credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the 
Authority.  
Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value.  Values are based on the following 
techniques: 

• Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price

• Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow
analysis

• Equity shares with no quoted market prices – independent appraisal of company
valuations

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following 
three levels:  

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
that the authority can access at the measurement date.

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the 
gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for-Sale 
Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred – these are 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or loss for the asset 
accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.  

Page 63



Page 42 of 163 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that 
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments) or fair 
value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. If the asset has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured 
as the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future 
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the 
impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition cost of the 
instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation).  
Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously 
recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.  
Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any 
impairment losses). 

Foreign Currency Translation 
Where the Council has entered a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the 
transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the 
transaction was effective.  
Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at 
the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 

Government Grants and Contributions 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

• The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments; and

• The grants or contributions will be received.
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor. 
Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied 
are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 

Page 64



Page 43 of 163 

Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve are transferred to the Capital 
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 

Heritage Assets–measurement and valuation 
Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains 
and losses) in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies on property, plant, and 
equipment. However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage 
assets. These items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance valuation which is based 
on market values. These insurance valuations are updated on an annual basis. 
There is an annual programme of valuations and items are valued by an external valuer. The 
assets within the art collection are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual 
value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation.  
Acquisitions are made by purchase or donation.  Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost 
and donations are recognised at valuation with valuations provided by the external valuers 
and with reference to appropriate insurance values and commercial markets using the most 
relevant and recent information from sales at auctions. 

Intangible Assets 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled 
by the Council as a result of past events (e.g., software licenses) is capitalised when it is 
expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset 
to the Council. 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. 
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are 
therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is 
amortised over its useful life to the relevant service area in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication 
that the asset might be impaired. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of 
an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory 
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted 
to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore 
reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and 
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) 
the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

Page 65



Page 44 of 163 

Interests in Companies and Other Entities 
The Council has material interests in companies and other entities that have the nature of 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and require it to prepare group accounts. In the 
authority’s own single-entity accounts, the interests in companies and other entities are 
recorded as financial assets at cost, less any provision for losses in 2021/22: 

• Graven Hill Village Holding Company Limited

• Graven Hill Village Development Company Limited

• Graven Hill Village Management Company Block E Limited

• Crown House Banbury Limited

• Crown Apartments Banbury Limited
Group Accounts have been prepared in accordance with paragraph 9.1.2.60 of the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2021/22, using uniform accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.  

Inventories and Long-Term Contracts 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Long term contracts are accounted for by charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations satisfied based on 
the goods or services transferred to the service recipient during the financial year. 

Investment Property 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. The council’s portfolio of 
investment property includes Castle Quay Shopping Centre and Tramway Industrial Estate 
alongside other commercial and industrial units across the district.  
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on 
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-
length. As a non-financial asset, investment properties are measured at highest and best 
use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions 
at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to 
have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed 
out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the 
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital 
Receipts Reserve.  

Joint Operations 
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the 
arrangement.  

Page 66



 

Page 45 of 163 
 

The activities undertaken by the authority in conjunction with other joint operators involve the 
use of the assets and resources of those joint operators. In relation to its interest in a joint 
operation, the authority as a joint operator recognises:  

• Its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly.  

• Its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly.  

• Its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation.  

• Its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation.  

• Its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.  
As of the 1 April 2021, the council shared CSN Resources Ltd and CSN Associates with 
West Northamptonshire Council but did not have overall control; it was therefore party to a 
joint operation. However, on 19 November 2021 CSN Resources went into voluntary 
liquidation and ceased trading. CSN Associates was dissolved on 30 November 2021 having 
never traded. As a result, neither company will be consolidated into the Council’s Group 
Accounts in 2021/22. 

Leases 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 
considered separately for classification.  
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of specific assets. 

1.3 The Council as Lessee 

Finance Leases 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet 
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  
The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct 
costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry 
into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.  
Lease payments are apportioned between: 

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – 
applied to write down the lease liability; and 

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

  

Page 67



 

Page 46 of 163 
 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the 
lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the 
asset does not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period). 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and 
impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made 
from revenue funds towards the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory 
requirements.  
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue 
contribution in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital 
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the 
two.  

Operating Leases 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the 
lease; even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a rent-free period at 
the commencement of the lease). 

1.4 The Council as Lessor 

Finance Leases 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of 
the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant 
and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on 
disposal. A gain, representing the Council’s net investment in the lease, is credited to the 
same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain 
or loss on disposal (i.e., netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal), matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet. 
Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property – applied to write down 
the lease debtor (together with any premiums received); and  

• Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is 
not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and is required to be treated 
as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General 
Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals 
in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred 
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the future rentals 
are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write 
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the 
Capital Receipts Reserve. 

Page 68



Page 47 of 163 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 
noncurrent assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General 
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Operating Leases 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not 
match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a premium paid at the commencement of the 
lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the 
same basis as rental income. 

Fair Value 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When applying 
the definition of fair value, non-financial assets and, non-current assets held for sale shall be 
measured at highest and best use. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected 
to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and 
Equipment.  

Recognition 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accrual’s basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s 
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e., repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.  
The Council has a de minimis limit of £10,000 for capital expenditure purposes which results 
in the capitalisation of expenditure above that limit as an asset in the balance sheet. Items 
below this limit are charged to revenue. 

Measurement  
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

• the purchase price

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

• the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located if the cost is above the £5,000 de minimis threshold.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction.  

Page 69



Page 48 of 163 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e., it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 
Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and 
any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made 
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. 
Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they 
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Vehicles, plant and equipment are held at depreciated historical cost.

• Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction are held at
historical cost.

• Dwellings – Current value, determined using the basis of Existing Use Value for
Social Housing (EUV–SH).

• Other land and buildings and operational assets where there is an active market –
Current value determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use (EUV).

• Operational assets, such as community and sports centres, where there is no
market-based evidence of current value because of the specialist nature of the
asset and/or the asset is rarely sold (i.e., EUV cannot be determined)- depreciated
replacement cost using the ‘instant build’ approach as an estimate of current
value.

• Surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at
highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective

• Fair value based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date

• All other assets – current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for
the asset in its existing use (existing use value – EUV).

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated 
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair value. 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued regularly to ensure that 
their carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but 
as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits taken to the 
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of 
a loss previously charged to a service. 
The council’s property valuations are carried out by Montagu Evans and Colliers. The bases 
of valuations are undertaken in accordance with the Statement of Asset Valuation Practice 
and Guidance Notes, published by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). 

Page 70



Page 49 of 163 

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up
to the amount of the accumulated gains); and

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that they may be 
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, 
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying 
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.  
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up
to the amount of the accumulated gains).

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

• Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have
been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for 
assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e., freehold land and certain Community 
Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e., assets under construction). 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

• Dwellings and other buildings – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the
property as estimated by the valuer

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – straight-line allocation over the useful
life of the asset, as advised by a suitably qualified officer and/or Responsible
Officer for that asset; and

• Infrastructure – straight-line allocation over the useful life of the asset, as advised
by a suitably qualified officer, and/or Responsible Officer and/or valuer for that
asset.

Newly acquired assets and capital enhancements are depreciated from the year after 
acquisition.  

Page 71



Page 51 of 163 

Useful life of an asset is shown below for the relevant categories: 

• Infrastructure: 10 to 40 years

• Buildings: 10 to 60 years

• Vehicles: 5, 6 or 7 years

• Computer equipment and systems: 3, 5 or 10 years

• Other: 3 to 30 years
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.  
All assets with a gross value over £50,000 are considered for componentisation.  
If on consideration a component is assessed to be greater than 20 per cent of the total cost 
of the asset, it is componentised, and the separate components depreciated using 
appropriate useful lives. Components that are individually less than 20 per cent of the total 
cost of the asset are not treated as separate components for accounting purposes. They are 
valued and depreciated as part of the building structure. 
The following two components have been identified for items of property: 

• Land

• Structure of Building
Each component is considered to depreciate on a straight-line basis. The useful life of a 
component will vary according to the type of property in which it is located and the amount of 
use to which it is put. The useful life of a component will be determined by the valuer when a 
component part is identified. 
Where a component is replaced or restored, the carrying amount of the old component shall 
be derecognised to avoid double counting and the new component reflected at the cost or 
new carrying value. 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset 
Held for Sale.  

Page 72



Page 52 of 163 

The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this 
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value 
less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only 
up to the amount of any losses recognised previously in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.  
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount 
before they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, or revaluations that 
would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale 
and are kept under their original category. 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are 
credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as 
part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e., netted off against the carrying value of the asset at 
the time of disposal).  
Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred 
to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A 
proportion of receipts relating to housing disposals (75 per cent for dwellings and 50 per cent 
for land, net of statutory deductions and allowances) are payable to the Government. The 
balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve and can then 
only be used for new capital investment. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. The net book value of 
disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for 
under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital 
Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement.  
The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-
current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Fair Value Measurement 
The authority measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets, investment 
properties, assets held for sale and some of its financial instruments, such as equity 
shareholdings, at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.  

Page 73



 

Page 53 of 163 
 

The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either:  

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability.  

The authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that 
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a 
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. 
The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, as follows: 

• Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that the authority can access at the measurement date  

• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly  

• Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

Minimum Revenue Provision 
The Council is not required to use Council Tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation on non-current assets. However, it is required to make an 
annual contribution from revenue towards provision for the reduction in its overall borrowing 
requirement equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis or as determined by the 
Council in accordance with statutory guidance. 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by 
the Minimum Revenue Provision in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

1.5 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
Provisions are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year 
that the Council becomes aware of the obligation and are measured at the best estimate at 
the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 
account relevant risks and uncertainties.  

Page 74



Page 54 of 163 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the 
Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year. Where 
it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a 
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the 
relevant service. 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g., from an insurance claim) this is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council 
settles the obligation. 

Contingent Assets 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible 
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the authority.  
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential. 

Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also 
arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot 
be measured reliably.  Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in a note to the accounts.  

Reserves 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to count against the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against 
council tax for the expenditure. Certain reserves are kept managing the accounting 
processes for non-current assets, financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits 
and do not represent usable resources for the Council – these reserves are explained in the 
relevant policies. 

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure 
to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. 
Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital 
resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts 
charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax. 

Page 75



Page 55 of 163 

VAT 
VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her 
Majesty’s Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. The amount of 
VAT irrecoverable is negligible. 

Rounding 
In preparing the Statement of Accounts all numbers, including totals, have been rounded 
independently to avoid unacceptable rounding errors. This may mean that some tables do 
not cross cast. 

Note 2 – Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted 
Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 
(the Code) the Council is required to disclose and set out the impact of accounting code 
changes required by new accounting standards that have been issued but not yet adopted by 
the code.    
The following are the accounting policies that have been issued but have not been adopted 
by the Council as at the Balance Sheet date: 

• IFRS 16 Leases will require Local Authorities that are lessees to recognise most
leases on their balance sheet as right-of use-assets with corresponding lease
liabilities. CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred implementation of IFRS 16 for local
government to 1 April 2024.

• Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 Cycle

• Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use

The above amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the information 
provided in local authority financial statements in 2021/22. 

Note 3 – Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the authority has had to make certain 
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. 
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are as follows.  

Lease Accounting 

• Judgement is required in the initial classification of leases as either operating
leases or finance leases. Where a lease is taken out for land and buildings
combined, the lease may be capitalised as a finance lease if it meets the criteria
for a finance lease, but will be classed as an operating lease by the Council unless
title transfers at the end of the lease. The accounting policy for leases is set out in
Note 1.

Page 76



Page 56 of 163 

• Following the postponement of IFRS 16 implementation for Public Sector bodies to
1 April 2024, The Council has opted to use this opportunity to defer its
implementation in order to use the extra resource capacity to respond to the on-
going Covid-19 emergency. Thus, with respect to leases, the accounts have been
completed on the same basis as previous years.

Provision for Outstanding Business Rates Appeals  

On 1 April 2013, Local Authorities assumed the liability for refunding ratepayers who have 
successfully appealed against the Business Rates rateable value of their properties. The 
provision is charged to the Collection Fund. 

• In relation to Business Rates Retention, the council has estimated a provision for 
NDR appeals. We have analysed information from the valuation office and 
consulted with other Oxfordshire Authorities and used information from the 
valuation office agency (VOA) revaluation to arrive at the figure in the accounts. 
The top-up and tariff equalisation mechanism in the business rates retention 
scheme has been adjusted since 2018/19 to ensure that authorities are no better 
or worse off as a result of the revaluation of rateable values that took effect from 1 
April 2017.

• The introduction of the current 2017 rating list on 1 April 2017 and the new 
methodology of businesses making appeals to the VOA of ‘Check, Challenge and 
Appeal’ required us to change the method of calculating potential losses on 
appeals and is now based upon a per centage of net rates payable.

• For all outstanding appeals on the 2010 rating list, the methodology has not 
changed and is based upon the past success of appeals that have been lodged 
and is updated with the information provided by the VOA on a monthly basis 
relating to settled appeals.

Page 77



Page 57 of 163 

Note 4 – Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major 
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made 
by the authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking 
into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, 
because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially 
different from the assumptions and estimates.  
Valuations– Property, Plant and Equipment 

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from Assumptions 

Valuations by nature are estimations 
of an asset’s value as at the balance 
sheet date. The Council operates a 5 
– year rolling schedule, in line with
the CIPFA code, for assets held
under the valuation model.
Asset valuations are undertaken by 
professional valuers using 
appropriate valuation methodologies 
based on the type of asset.  
The Depreciated Replacement Cost 
(DRC) methodology applies to assets 
for which no active market exists, 
such as leisure and community 
centres, and represents a source of 
uncertainty for the Council’s 
valuations. Changes in market and 
economic factors from year-to-year 
could result in differences between 
the book value and actual value using 
the DRC approach. 

Where the Council identifies significant changes in 
the Build Cost Indices and/or locational factors from 
prior years, a review is undertaken to compare the 
DRC calculated value, based on the up-to-date 
indices, to the book value held by the Council. 
For assets that are not scheduled to be valued in 
year, and where an aggregate material variance is 
identified, the book value is adjusted using the 
updated indices as provided by the valuers, to avoid 
material misstatement.  
In 2021/22 no DRC assets were scheduled to be 
valued but on review, the Council’s DRC assets were 
calculated to be £4.5m understated due to significant 
increases to the indices. The book values of these 
assets were therefore adjusted upwards in line with 
the indices and locational factors supplied by the 
valuers.  

Page 78



Page 58 of 163 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 
Assumptions 

The Council assigns useful lives 
and residual values to property, 
plant and equipment based on 
periodic studies of actual asset 
lives and the intended use for 
those assets.  
Changes in circumstances such as 
technological advances, 
prospective economic utilisation 
and physical condition of the 
assets concerned could result in 
the actual useful lives or residual 
values differing from initial 
estimates. 

Where the Council determines that the useful life of 
property, plant and equipment should be shortened 
or residual value reduced, it depreciates the net 
book value in excess of the residual value over the 
revised remaining useful life, thereby increasing 
depreciation expense. Any change in an asset’s 
life or residual value is reflected in the Council’s 
accounts when the change in estimate is 
determined. 
The carrying value of depreciable assets in the 
balance sheet is £118m. This amount comprises of 
Land & Buildings, Plant, Vehicles & Equipment, 
Infrastructure Assets and Intangible Assets.  

Impairment of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets 

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ 
from Assumptions 

The Council assesses the impairment of property, plant 
and equipment and intangible assets (excluding 
goodwill) whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not 
be recoverable or otherwise as required by accounting 
standards 
Factors that are considered important and which could 
trigger an impairment review include the following: 

• obsolescence or physical damage;
• significant changes in technology and

regulatory environments;
• significant underperformance relative to

expected historical or projected future
operating results;

• significant changes in the use of its assets
or the strategy of the overall business;

• significant negative industry or economic
trends and

• significant decline in the market capitalisation
relative to net book value for a sustained period

The identification of 
impairment indicators, the 
estimation of future cash flows 
and the determination of the 
recoverable amount for assets 
or cash generating units 
requires significant judgement 
which is determined by a 
qualified valuer. 

Page 79



Page 59 of 163 

Fair Value Measurements 

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ 
from Assumptions 

When the fair values of financial assets and 
financial liabilities cannot be measured based on 
quoted prices in active markets (i.e. Level 1 inputs), 
their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques (e.g. quoted prices for similar assets or 
liabilities in active markets or the discounted cash 
flow (DCF) model). Where possible, the inputs to 
these valuation techniques are based on 
observable data, but where this is not possible 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. 
These judgements typically include considerations 
such as uncertainty and risk. However, changes in 
the assumptions used could affect the fair value of 
the authority’s assets and liabilities. 
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the authority 
employs relevant experts to identify the most 
appropriate valuation techniques to determine fair 
value (for example for investment properties, the 
authority’s chief valuation officer and external 
valuer).  Information about the valuation techniques 
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the 
authority’s assets and liabilities is disclosed in notes 
14 and 15 below. 

The authority uses the discounted 
cash flow (DCF) model to measure 
the fair value of some of its 
investment properties and financial 
assets.  
The significant unobservable inputs 
used in the fair value measurement 
include management assumptions 
regarding rent growth, vacancy 
levels (for investment properties) 
and discount rates – adjusted for 
regional factors (for both investment 
properties and some financial 
assets).  
Significant changes in any of the 
unobservable inputs would result in 
a significantly lower or higher fair 
value measurement for the 
investment properties and financial 
assets. 

Impairment allowance for doubtful debt 

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ 
from Assumptions 

The Impairment allowance for doubtful debt 
reflects the Council’s estimates of losses arising 
from the failure or inability of the Council’s 
customers to make required payments.  
The allowance is based on the ageing of 
customer accounts, customer credit worthiness 
and the Council’s historical write-off experience. 
One off debts for significant amounts have also 
been included if we have reasonable grounds to 
assume that we are unlikely to receive payment. 

Changes to the allowance may be 
required if the financial condition of 
the Council’s customers improves 
or deteriorates.  
An improvement in financial 
condition may result in lower actual 
write-offs. 

Page 80



Page 60 of 163 

Provision for Business Rates Appeals 

Pensions 

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 
Assumptions 

The possible refund from a business rate 
appeal can vary depending on factors such 
as; the type of appeal and type of property, 
together with its geographical location and 
the probability of appeal success. 

Following an assessment of the 
outstanding business rates appeals at 31 
March 2022, a total provision of 
£21.060m was made for potential future 
appeal refunds. Cherwell’s  40 per cent 
share of this provision is £8.424m. 
If the provision for appeals changed by 
1% the resulting increase/decrease would 
be £0.2m shared across central 
government (50 per cent), the county 
council (10 per cent) and Cherwell (40 
per cent. 

Uncertainties Effect if Actual Results Differ from 
Assumptions 

The Council provides one defined benefit 
pension scheme for its employees. The 
asset (or liability) recognised in the 
statement of financial position in respect of 
defined benefit pension plans represents the 
fair value of plan assets less the present 
value of the defined benefit obligations at 
the reporting date.  
The expected cost of providing these 
defined benefit pensions will depend on an 
assessment of such factors as: 

• the life expectancy of the Officers;
• the length of service;
• the rate of salary progression;
• the rate of return earned on assets in

the future;
• the rate used to discount future

pension liabilities; and
• future inflation rates.

The assumptions used by the Council are 
set out in note 35 and are estimates 
chosen from a range of possible actuarial 
assumptions which may not necessarily 
be borne out in practice but have been 
comparable to the median estimates in 
this regard used by other Councils.  
Changes to these assumptions could 
materially affect the size of the defined 
benefit scheme’s liabilities and assets 
disclosed in note 35. 

Page 81



Page 61 of 163 

Note 5 - Material Items of Income and Expense 

Pensions 

The actuary carried out a valuation as at 31 March 2022.  This has resulted in pension 
assets increasing from £130m at 31 March 2021 to £141m at 31 March 2022.  
Liabilities have decreased from £226m at 31 March 2021 to £218m at 31 March 2022, which 
resulted in a decrease in net liability of £19m. 

Prior Year Adjustments 

1. Investment property operational income and expenditure
During the period it was identified that the operational income and expenditure in relation to 
investment properties had incorrectly been included within the ‘Other Investment Income and 
Expenditure’ line in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure note (note 11), 
when it should have been included in the ‘Income and Expenditure in relation to investment 
properties and changes in their fair value’ line.  
As the net operational income was material in 2020-21, with a value of £4.994m, this has 
been treated as a prior year adjustment. The Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure note has been restated to correct this error. As this is a classification change 
between two lines of the note, this does not impact any of the primary statements or any 
other notes.  
The effect of the restatement on the 2020-21 balances for the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure note are detailed in the following table: 

Finance and Investment Income and 
Expenditure 

Balances as 
Previously 

Stated 
£’000 

Changes due 
to 

restatement 
£’000 

Balances as 
Restated 

£’000 

Interest payable and similar charges 2,530 0 2,530 

Net interest on the net deined benefit 
liability (asset) 

1,704 0 1,704 

Interest receivable and similar income (4,373) 0 (4,373) 

Income and expenditure in relation to 
investment properties and changes in their 
fair value 17,784 (4,994) 12,790 

Other investment income and expenditure (4,234) 4,994 760 

Total 13,411 0 13,411 

Page 82



Page 62 of 163 

2. Short term Creditors

During the preparation of the statement of accounts it was identified that the prior year 
breakdown of short term creditors into Trade Payables and Other Payable amounts was 
incorrect. £6,789k had been classified as Trade Payables, however should have been 
classified as Other Payable Amounts. The effect of the restatement on the 2020-21 short 
term creditors note are shown in the table below.  

Short term Creditors 2020/21 Balances as 
Previously 

Stated 
£’000 

Changes due 
to 

restatement 
£’000 

Balances as 
Restated 

£’000 

Trade Payables (11,674) 6,789 (4,885) 

Other Payable Amounts (40,829) (6,789) (47,618) 

Total (52,503) 0 (52,503) 

As a result the trade payables in the Financial Instruments – Liabilities table in Note 17 was 
also restated to reflect the change in trade payables outlined above.  

3. Financial Instruments
During the preparation of the statement of accounts it was identified that the prior year fair
value tables had been incorrectly disclosed.
The first issue identified was that provisions were being disclosed in the Financial
Instruments – Fair Value – Liabilities table. Provisions fall outside of the scope of IFRS 9 and
as such are not included in the amended note.
The second issue was that in the fair value tables the figures disclosed included non-financial
debtors and creditors.

Page 83



Page 63 of 163 

The impact on the financial instrument fair value tables is shown below. 

Financial Instruments – Fair value - 
Liabilities 

Balances as 
Previously 

Stated 
£’000 

Changes due to 
restatement£’000 

Balances 
as Restated 

£’000 

Long-term loans (102,000) 0 (102,000) 

Short-term Loans (82,584) 0 (82,584) 

Lease payables and PFI liabilities (1,570) 0 (1,570) 

TOTAL (186,154) 0 (186,154) 

Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed (61,378) 56,493 (4,885) 

Total Financial Liabilities (247,532) 56,493 (191,039) 

Recorded on balance sheet as: 

Short-term creditors (52,349) 47,464 (4,885) 

Short-term borrowing (82,584) 0 (82,584) 

Short-term provisions (5,206) 5,206 Row removed 

Long-term creditors (1,570) 0 (1,570) 

Long-term borrowing (102,000) 0 (102,000) 

Long-term provisions (3,823) 3,823 Row removed 

Total Financial Liabilities (247,532) 56,493 (191,039) 

Page 84



Page 64 of 163 

Financial Instruments – Fair value - 
Assets 

Balances as 
Previously 

Stated 
£’000 

Changes due 
to restatement 

£’000 

Balances 
as 

Restated 
£’000 

Financial assets held at fair value: 

Money market funds 7,511 0 7,511 

Shares in unlisted companies 33,053 0 33,053 

Financial asets held at amortised cost: 

Bank deposits & repos 31,267 0 31,267 

Loans to companies 60,094 0 60,094 

Total 131,925 0 131,925 

Assets for which fair value is not disclosed 42,161 (36,494) 5,667 

Total Financial Assets 174,086 (36,494) 137,592 

Recorded on balance sheet as: 

Long-term debtors 60,326 (232) 60,094 

Long-term investments 33,053 0 33,053 

Short-term debtors 41,929 (36,262) 5,667 

Short-term investments 31,028 0 31,028 

Cash and cash equivalents 7,750 0 7,750 

Total Financial Assets 174,086 (36,494) 137,592 

Note 6 – Events after the Balance Sheet Date 

Note 6 Events After the Reporting Period 

There are none.  

Page 85



Page 65 of 163 

Note 7a – Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
Year Ending 31 Mar 22 

Net Capital 
Statutory 

Adjustments 
£'000 

Net Pensions 
Statutory 

Adjustments 
£'000 

Other 
Statutory 

Adjustments 
£'000 

Other 
Differences 

£'000 

Total 
Adjustments 

£'000 

Adults and Housing Services 1,822 548 0 0 2,370 
Comm Dev Assets and Invests 24,206 677 0 0 24,883 
Cust, Org Dev & Res 552 1,460 63 0 2,075 
Environment & Place 8,166 3,032 0 0 11,198 
Public Health and Wellbeing (760) 394 0 0 (366) 
Non-Distributed Services 0 0 0 0 0 
Net Cost of Services 33,986 6,111 63 0 40,160 
Other Income and Expenditure (6,605) 1,761 (15,589) 0 (20,433) 

Difference between the 
Statutory Charge and the 
Surplus or Deficit in the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

27,381 7,872 (15,526) 0 19,727 

Year Ending 31 Mar 21 

Net Capital 
Statutory 

Adjustments 
£'000 

Net Pensions 
Statutory 

Adjustments 
£'000 

Other 
Statutory 

Adjustments 
£'000 

Other 
Differences 

£'000 

Total 
Adjustments 

£'000 

Adults and Housing Services 1,290 269 0 0 1,559 
Comm Dev Assets and Invests 4,514 349 0 0 4,863 

Cust and Org Dev & Resources 428 781 0 0 1,209 

Place and Growth 16,310 1,407 0 0 17,717 
Public Health and Wellbeing (1,578) 176 0 0 (1,402) 
Non-Distributed Services 0 0 0 0 0 
Net Cost of Services 20,964 2,982 0 0 23,946 
Other Income and Expenditure 5,101 (3,615) 23,521 0 25,007 

Difference between the 
Statutory Charge and the 
Surplus or Deficit in the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

26,065 (633) 23,521 0 48,953 

Page 86



Page 66 of 163 

Net Capital Statutory Adjustments 

This column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the 
service line. 

• For other operating expenditure, it adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of
income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

• For financing and investment income and expenditure, it adjusts for the statutory
charges for capital financing and investment i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and
other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as
these are not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

• For taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure, capital grants are
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting
practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivables in the year to
those receivables without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied
throughout the year. The taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure
line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for
which conditions were satisfied in the year.

Net Pensions Statutory Adjustments 

This column adjusts for the net change for the renewal of pension contributions and the 
addition of IAS19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income. 

• For services, this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions
made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current
service costs and past service costs.

• For financing and investment income and expenditure, this adjusts for the net
interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Other Statutory Adjustments 

• Other statutory adjustments between amounts charged/(received) to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable /
(receivable) to be recognised under statute. For financing and investment
(income) and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments
to General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts and
financial instruments.

Page 87



Page 67 of 163 

• The charge under taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure
represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations
for Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates that was projected to be received at the
start of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting
practices in the Code. This is a timing difference, as any difference will be
brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund.

Other Non-statutory Adjustments 

Other non-statutory adjustments represent amounts debited/credited to service segments 
which need to be adjusted against the ‘Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure 
and Funding Analysis’ line to comply with the presentational requirements in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

• For financing and investment income and expenditure the other statutory
adjustments column recognises adjustments to service segments, e.g. for interest
income and expenditure and changes in the fair values of investment properties.

• For taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure the other non-
statutory adjustments column recognises adjustments to service segments, e.g.
for un-ringfenced government grants.

Note 7b – Segmental Analysis of Income and Expenditure 

31-Mar-22

Revenues 
from 

External 
Customers 

£'000 

Revenues 
from Other 
Segments 

£'000 

Interest 
Revenue 

£'000 

Interest 
Expense 

£'000 

Depreciation 
and 

Amortisation 
£'000 

Adults and Housing Services (441) (1,545) 0 0 12 
Cust and Org Dev & 
Resources (2,925) (23,991) 0 0 552 

Public Health and Wellbeing (1,210) (2,224) 0 0 1,112 
Environment & Place (8,108) (3,277) 0 0 1,676 
Comm Dev Assets and Invests (1,895) (314) 0 0 527 
Non-Distributed Services (6,251) (37,882) (4,395) 2,227 0 
Total Managed by Segments (20,830) (69,173) (4,395) 2,227 3,879 

Page 88



Page 68 of 163 

31-Mar-21

Revenues from 
External 

Customers 
£'000 

Revenues 
from Other 
Segments 

£'000 

Interest 
Revenue 

£'000 

Interest 
Expense 

£'000 

Depreciation 
and 

Amortisation 
£'000 

Adults and Housing Services (287) (1,737) 0 0 72 
Cust and Org Dev & 
Resources (2,008) (27,565) 0 0 428 

Public Health and Wellbeing (285) (1,905) 0 0 1,073 
Environment & Place (6,291) (7,985) 0 0 1,541 
Comm Dev Assets and Invests (965) (140) 0 0 349 
Non-Distributed Services (6,920) (30,862) (4,372) 2,531 0 
Total Managed by Segments (16,756) (70,194) (4,372) 2,531 3,463 

Note 8 - Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding 
Basis under Regulations 2021/22 
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and 
expenditure recognised by the authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting 
practice to arrive at the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being 
available to the authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. The following sets 
out a description of the reserves that the adjustments are made against. 

General Fund Balance 

The General Fund is the statutory fund into which all the receipts of an authority are 
required to be paid and out of which all liabilities of the authority are to be met, except to the 
extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the 
financial year in which liabilities and payments should impact on the General Fund Balance, 
which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund 
Balance therefore summarises the resources that the council is statutorily empowered to 
spend on its services or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources that the council is 
required to recover) at the end of the financial year. 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, 
which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure 
or to be set aside to finance historical capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve 
shows the resources that have yet to be applied for these purposes at the year-end. 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account (Reserve) holds the grants and contributions 
received towards capital projects for which the council has met the conditions that would 
otherwise require repayment of the monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet 
expenditure. The balance is restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against 
which it can be applied and/or the financial year in which this can take place. 

Page 89



Page 69 of 163 

Note 8 Continued 

31-Mar-22
General 

Fund 
Balance 

£'000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

£'000 

Capital 
Grants 

Unapplied 
£'000 

Movement 
in 

Unusable 
Reserves 

£'000 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 

Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with 
statutory requirements: 

Pension cost (transferred to or (from) the Pensions 
Reserve) 

(7,872) 0 0 7,872 

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or (from) the 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account) 

15,466 0 0 (15,466) 

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated Absences 
reserve) 

(63) 0 0 63 

Reversal of entries included in the (Surplus) or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services in relation to capital 
expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital 
Adjustment Account) 

(52,326) 0 0 52,326 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (44,795) 0 0 44,795 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources 

Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from 
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 

1,392 (1,338) 0 (54) 

Statutory Provision for the repayment of debt (transfer 
to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

1,723 0 0 (1,723) 

Revenue contribution to Capital 3,000 0 0 (3,000) 

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital 
Resources 

6,115 (1,338) 0 (4,777) 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance capital 
expenditure 

0 1,317 0 (1,317) 

Application of capital grants to finance capital 
expenditure 

18,954 0 (7,272) (11,682) 

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 18,954 1,317 (7,272) (12,999) 

Total Adjustments (19,726) (21) (7,272) 27,019 

Page 90



Page 70 of 163 

Note 8 Continued… 
31-Mar-21 General 

Fund 
Balance 
£'000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 
£'000 

Capital 
Grants 
Unapplied 

Movement 
in 
Unusable 
Reserves 

Adjustments to the Revenue Resources 
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement are different from revenue for the year calculated in accordance with 
statutory requirements:  
Pension cost (transferred to or (from) the Pensions 
Reserve) 

633 0 0 (633) 

Council tax and NDR (transfers to or (from) the 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account) 

(25,465) 0 0 25,465 

Holiday pay (transferred to the Accumulated 
Absences reserve) 

(3) 0 0 3 

Reversal of entries included in the (Surplus) or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services in relation to capital 
expenditure (these items are charged to the Capital 
Adjustment Account) 

(40,878) 0 0 40,878 

Total Adjustments to Revenue Resources (65,713) 0 0 65,713 

Adjustments between Revenue and Capital Resources  
Transfer of non-current asset sale proceeds from 
revenue to the Capital Receipts Reserve 

1,883 (1,883) 0 0 

Statutory Provision for the repayment of debt 
(transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account) 

1,820 0 0 (1,820) 

Revenue contribution to Capital 0 0 0 0 

Total Adjustments between Revenue and Capital 
Resources 

3,703 (1,883) 0 (1,820) 

Adjustments to Capital Resources 
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance 
capital expenditure 

0 1,804 0 (1,804) 

Application of capital grants to finance capital 
expenditure 

13,056 0 (511) (12,545)

Total Adjustments to Capital Resources 13,056 1,804 (511) (14,348)

Total Adjustments (48,954) (79) (511) 49,544 

Page 91



Page 71 of 163 

Note 9 - Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in earmarked 
reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the amounts posted back 
from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure. 

Earmarked Reserves Balance at 31 
March 2020 

Net transfers 
(to)/from 

Earmarked 
Reserves in 

2020/21 

Balance at 31 
March 2021 

Net transfers 
(to)/from 

Earmarked 
Reserves in 

2021/22 

Balance at 31 
March 2022 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
General Earmarked Reserves 
Pensions Deficit (3,489) 3,435 (54) (1,675) (1,729) 
Transformation and projects 
reserve (5,116) 1,192 (3,925) 129 (3,796) 

Capital Reserve 0 (3,000) (3,000) (277) (3,277) 

Projects 0 (2,000) (1,906) (1,279) (3,185) 
Redundancy Reserve 0 (1,000) (1,000) 172 (828) 
Commerical Risk Reserve 0 (4,404) (4,404) 0 (4,404) 
Growth Deal 0 (1,297) (1,297) 742 (555) 
Environmental Warranties (802) 802 0 0 0 
NHB - Affordable Housing (2,337) 2,337 0 0 0 
NHB - Economic Development (3,872) 3,872 0 0 0 
NHB - Superfast broadband (727) 727 0 0 0 
Business Rates and Risk 
reserve (1,592) 1,592 0 0 0 

VAT De Minimus (500) 500 0 0 0 
Other General Earmarked 
reserve (3,242) (2,500) (5,742) (176) (5,917) 
Revenue Grant Earmarked 
Reserves 
S31 Reserve (2,346) (21,551) (23,897) 13,310 (10,587) 
Covid-19 Reserve (67) 67 0 (1,616) (1,616) 
COMF - General Allocation 0 (4) (4) (679) (683) 
Covid-19 ARG Grant 0 (2,935) (2,935) 2,935 0 
Homelessness Prevention (355) (374) (729) (203) (932) 
Bicester Garden Town (782) (745) (1,527) 238 (1,290) 
Garden Town (Phase 2) (657) 657 0 0 0 
Other Revenue Grant 
Earmarked reserves (495) (1,968) (2,463) 1,355 (1,108) 

Total Earmarked Reserves (26,380) (26,504) (52,884) 12,978 (39,906) 

Page 92



Page 72 of 163 

Note 10 - Other Operating Expenditure 

31-Mar-21
£'000 Other Operating Expenditure 31-Mar-

22 £'000

5,555 Precepts to other authorities and charging bodies 5,451 

158 (Gains)/losses on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets (834) 

5,713 Total Other Operating Expenditure 4,617 

Note 11 - Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
A breakdown of the items within the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is as follows:  

31-Mar-21
(restated)

£'000 
Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure 31-Mar-22

£'000

2,530 Interest payable and similar charges 2,227 

1,704 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 1,970 

(4,373) Interest receivable and similar income (4,395) 

12,790 Income and expenditure in relation to investment 
properties and changes in their fair value 14,290 

760 Other investment income and expenditure (129) 

13,411 Total 13,963 

Note 12 - Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 
A breakdown of the items in the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is:  

31-Mar-21
£'000 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 31-Mar-22

£'000
(12,895) Council tax income (13,619) 
(17,807) Non-ringfenced government grants (18,869) 
(13,056) Capital grants and contributions (18,954) 

(43,758) Total (51,442) 

Page 93



Page 73 of 163 

Note 13 – Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 
The Council’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows: 

31-Mar-21
£'000 Nature of Expenditure or Income 31-Mar-22

£'000
Expenditure 

24,330 Employee benefits expenses 28,864 
86,544 Other expenditure 100,098 
2,531 Interest payments 2,227 
5,555 Precepts and levies 5,451 
3,463 Depreciation and amortisation 3,879 

158 Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets 0 
122,581 Total Expenditure 140,519 

Income 
(16,749) Fees, charges and other service income (21,612) 
(4,374) Interest and investment income (4,395) 

(12,895) Income from local taxation (13,619) 
(69,615) Government grants and contributions (67,787) 

0 Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets (834) 
(103,633) Total Income (108,246) 

18,948 Surplus or Deficit for Year 32,273 

Page 94



Page 74 of 163 

Note 14 – Property, Plant and Equipment 
Movements to 31-Mar-22 

La
nd

 a
nd

 
B

ui
ld

in
gs

 

Ve
hi

cl
es

 P
la

nt
 

&
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

Su
rp

lu
s 

A
ss

et
s 

U
nd

er
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 

To
ta

l 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost or Valuation 
Balance brought forward 101,911 14,498 5,556 38 15 57,091 179,110 
Additions 442 4,287 0 61 0 10,105 14,895 

Acc Dep & Imp WO to GCA (3,774) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,774) 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 

2,152 0 0 0 0 2,160 4,311 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

3,071 0 0 0 0 (23,789) (20,718) 

Derecognition - Disposals (556) (573) 0 0 0 0 (1,129) 

Assets reclassified (to)/from 
Investment Property 1,203 0 0 0 0 (33,819) (32,616) 

Other movements in Cost or 
Valuation 

585 0 0 0 0 (585) 0

At 31 March 2022 105,034 18,212 5,556 99 15 11,162 140,079 
Accumulated Depreciation & 
Impairment 
Balance Brought Forward (4,388) (10,429) (2,915) 0 0 0 (17,552) 
Depreciation Charge for 2020/21 (2,282) (913) (186) 0 0 0 (3,381) 

Acc. Depreciation WO to GCA 2,850 0 0 0 0 0 2,850 

Impairment (Losses)/Reversals 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve  

925 0 0 0 0 0 925 

Derecognition - Disposals 18 553 0 0 0 0 571 

Assets reclassified (to)/from 
Investment Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other movements in Depreciation 
and Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 March 2022 (2,878) (10,609) (3,101) 0 0 0 (16,588) 
Net Book Value 
At 31 March 2022 102,156 7,603 2,455 99 15 11,162 123,491 

At 31 March 2021 97,523 4,249 2,641 38 15 57,091 161,558 

Movements to 31-Mar-21 

Page 95



Page 75 of 163 

La
nd

 a
nd

 
Bu

ild
in

gs
 

Ve
hi

cl
es

 P
la

nt
 

& 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t 

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

Su
rp

lu
s 

As
se

ts
 U

nd
er

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

To
ta

l 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cost or Valuation 
-As previously reported 102,052 14,008 5,556 38 10 20,978 142,643 
-Prior year adjustment 5,373 5,373 
Brought forward as restated 107,425 14,008 5,556 38 10 20,978 148,016 

Additions 347 797 0 0 0 39,619 40,764 
Acc Dep & Imp WO to GCA (583) 0 0 0 0 0  (583) 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 

(2,043) 0 0 0  5 0 (2,038) 

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

(4,721) 0 0 0 0 0 (4,721) 

Derecognition - Disposals (1,818) (308) 0 0 0 (203) (2,328)

Assets reclassified (to)/from 
Investment Property 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other movements in Cost or 
Valuation 

    3,303 0 0 0 0 (3,303) 0 

At 31 March 2021 101,911 14,498 5,556 38 15 57,091 179,110  

Accumulated Depreciation & 
Impairment 
Brought forward (1,961) (9,628) (2,838) 0 0 0 (14,427) 

Depreciation Charge for 2019/20 (2,090) (928) (78) 0 0 0 (3,096) 
Acc. Depreciation WO to GCA 583 0 0 0 0 0 583 
Impairment (Losses)/Reversals 
recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 

(925) 0 0 0 0 0 (925) 

Derecognition - Disposals 5 308 0 0 0 0 313 
Assets reclassified (to)/from 
Investment Property 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other movements in Depreciation 
and Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

At 31 March 2021 (4,388) (10,249) (2,915) 0 0 0 (17,552) 
Net Book Value 
At 31 March 2021 97,523 4,249 2,641 38 15 57,091 161,558 
At 31 March 2020 105,464 4,380 2,719 38 10 20,978 133,589 

Page 96



Page 76 of 163 

31-Mar-22

Other 
Land and 
Buildings 

£'000 

Vehicles, 
Plant, 

Furniture 
Equipment 

£'000 

Infrastructu
re Assets 

£'000 
Community 

Assets 
£'000  

Surplus 
Assets 

£'000  

Assets Under 
Construction 

£'000 
Total 
£'000 

Carried at 
historical cost 

13,429 18,212 5,556 99 0 212 37,509 

Valued at 
current value 
as at: 

31/03/2022 75,361 0 0 0 15 10,950 86,326 

31/03/2021 5,224 0 0 0 0 0 5,224 

31/03/2020 10,390 0 0 0 0 0 10,390 

31/03/2019 628 0 0 0 0 0 628 

Total Cost 
or Valuation 

105,033 18,212 5,556 99 15 11,162 140,078 

Note 15 – Investment Properties 
The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing 
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement: 

31-Mar-21
£'000

Investment Property Income and Expenditure 31-Mar-22
£'000

(6,817) Rental income from investment property (6,141) 

1,823 Direct operating expenses from investment property 2,650 

(4,994) Net (gain)/loss (3,491) 

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its 
investment property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds 
of disposal.  

Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluations

Page 97



Page 77 of 163 

Movement in the fair value of Investment Properties over the year 

31-Mar-21
non-current 

£'000 

Investment Property Movements in Year 31-Mar-22
non-current 

£'000 

61,121 Opening Balance 45,306 
0 Additions: Purchases 0 

1,999 Enhancements 212 
(26) Disposals 0 

 (17,787) Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments (17,782) 

0 Transfers to/(from) Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

32,616 

45,306 Closing Balance 60,352 

Page 98



Page 78 of 163 

Fair value hierarchy 
Details of the Council’s investment properties and surplus assets and information about the 
fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2022 are as follows: 

Details of the Council’s investment properties and surplus assets and information about the 
fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2021 are as follows: 
Recurring fair value 
measuring usage Quoted Prices in 

active markets 
for identical 
assets (Level 1) 
£'000 

Other 
significant 
observable 
inputs 
(Level 2) £'000 

Significant 
unobservable 
inputs 
(Level 3) 

£'000 

Fair value as at 31 
March 2021 

£'000 

Investment Properties 0 45,306 0 45,306 
Surplus Assets 0 15 0 15 
Sub-total 0 45,321 0 45,321 

Residential (market 
rental) properties 

0 0 0 0 

Office Units 0 1,197 0 1,197 
Commercial Units 0 44,124 0 44,124 
Totals 0 45,321 0 45,321 

Transfers between Levels of the Fair Value Hierarchy 
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year. 

Recurring fair value 
measuring usage Quoted Prices in 

active markets 
for identical 

assets (Level 1) 
£'000 

Other 
significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2) 

£'000 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

£'000 

Fair value as at 
31 March 2022 

£'000 

Investment Properties 0 60,353 0 60,353 

Surplus Assets 0 15 0 15 

Sub-total 0 60,368 0 60,368 

Residential (market 
rental) properties 
Office Units 0 1,300 0 1,300 
Commercial Units 0 59,068 0 59,068 
Totals 0 60,368 0 60,368 

Page 99



Page 79 of 163 

Valuation Techniques used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for 
Investment Properties: 

Significant Observable Inputs – Level 2 
The fair value for the commercial properties (let at market rents) has been based on the 
market approach using current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant 
information for similar assets in the local authority area. Market conditions are such that 
similar properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are 
significant, leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. 
Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties 
In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use 
of the properties is their current use.  
Valuation Techniques 
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment 
properties. 
Valuation Process for Investment Properties and Surplus Assets 
The fair value of the Council’s investment properties and surplus assets is measured 
annually at each reporting date. All valuations are carried out externally by qualified valuers, 
in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional 
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.  

Tramway Industrial Estate 

Tramway Industrial Estate is home to ten industrial/warehouse units all of which were fully 
occupied as at the 31 March 2022.  The estate received a valuation of £10.7m, which 
represents an increase of £1.4m when compared to the previous year (2021: £9.3m). 

Castle Quay Shopping Centre 

In 2021/22, Castle Quay Shopping Centre was valued at £15.4m (2021: £21.6m). This 
represents a decrease of £6.2m on the previous year. The main factor behind the reduction 
in value of this property is the COVID-19 pandemic and the measures taken to combat it. 
Throughout this period, as a result of very difficult trading conditions, many retailers have 
been forced to close stores or seek to restructure lease commitments. This has led to a 
significant acceleration in the decline of the high street right across the country. Nationally, 
this sector has seen a dramatic increase in the number of vacant units and both rental and 
capital values fall.  
Castle Quay was bought to ensure a key town centre asset was protected for our 
community and to help regenerate the local economy. The decision to purchase ensured 
the adjacent site was developed into a leisure destination, a scheme that was stalled by the 
previous owners.  Since the Hotel, supermarket and more recently the Cinema have 
opened, the Shopping Centre has experienced an increase in footfall and the opening of 
Lock 29 has further strengthened the night-time economy and variety of casual dining 
offering within Banbury. 

Page 100



Page 80 of 163 

A strategic review of the asset is currently being undertaken to ensure our plans for the 
centre remain aligned to the rapidly changing retail environment. As part of this process, we 
are exploring options to seek alternative uses for some of the vacant retail space and at the 
same time looking to continue to diversify the retail offering and the visitor experience as a 
whole. By undertaking this review, we will ensure the centre remains a vibrant and attractive 
place for the town centre while also seeking to enhance the asset value of the Shopping 
Centre in the future.    
The council is not selling the shopping centre and therefore, at this stage, the valuation of 
the asset, whilst important, does not currently have a direct financial impact on the council. 

Castle Quay Waterfront Development 

2021/22 saw the completion and opening of the Hotel and Supermarket. These assets have 
been transferred from Assets Under Construction to Investment Property and are now 
operational, income generating assets for the Council.  
The Castle Quay Waterfront building, home to the Cinema, Bowling and Food and 
Beverage outlets, had not received full practical completion as of 31 March 2022 and 
therefore remained as an Asset Under Construction.  
The total value of the Castle Quay Waterfront Development as at 31 March 2022 was 
£32m. This represents a downward movement of £34.4m when compared to the historical 
costs incurred in the acquisition and construction of the assets prior to the valuation 
(£66.4m). It should be noted that the Council is not anticipating selling the complex and 
therefore, at this stage, the valuation of the asset, whilst important, does not currently have 
a direct financial impact on the Council. 
The new Castle Quay Waterfront site is anticipated to attract visitors and improve the night-
time economy of Banbury. The site will generate rental income and this development will 
create greater value for the whole site in the medium to long term, although, it was always 
realised there would likely be some short-term impact on the value of the existing site whilst 
that work was carried out. 

Page 101



Page 81 of 163 

Note 16 – Intangible Assets 
An intangible asset is an asset that is not physical in nature. Goodwill, brand recognition 
and intellectual property, such as patents, trademarks, and copyrights, are all intangible 
assets. 

31-Mar-21 Intangible Assets 31-Mar-22

£000 Opening Balance £000 
6,453 Gross Carrying Amount 7,599 

(4,949) Accumulated Amortisation & Impairment (5,317) 

1,504 Net Carrying Amount 2,282 

1,146 Additions 647 
(367) Amortisation for the Period (498) 
2,282 Net Carrying Amount at End of Year 2,431 

Comprising: 
7,599 Gross Carrying Amount 8,246 

(5,317) Accumulated Amortisation & Impairment (5,815) 
2,282 Closing Balance 2,431 

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets, to the extent that the software is 
not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the hardware item 
of property, plant and equipment. The intangible assets include both purchased licenses 
and internally generated software. All software is given a finite useful life, based on 
assessments of the period that the software is expected to be of use to the Council. The 
useful lives assigned to the major software suites used by the Council are: 

Useful Life (Years) Internally Generated Assets Other Assets 

1 Years None Software and Licences 

3 Years None Software and Licences 

4 Years None Software and Licences 

5 Years None Software and Licences 

Page 102



Page 82 of 163 

Note 17 – Financial Instruments 
Balance Sheet items 
The Council is obliged to analyse any Financial Instruments that it holds (whether liabilities 
such as borrowings or assets such as investments) into certain categories. 
The Investments and Debtors disclosed in the Balance Sheet, as set out below (adjusted to 
exclude statutory debtors), are all categorised as Loans and Receivables, and are carried in 
the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. 
Financial Instruments – Liabilities 

31-Mar-21
Short term

31-Mar-21
Long-term

Financial Instruments - 
Liabilities 

31-Mar-22
Short-term

31-Mar-22
Long-term

£'000 £'000 Financial Liabilities £'000 £'000 
Loans at amortised cost: 

(82,000) (102,000) - Principal sum borrowed (87,000) (112,000) 
(584) 0 - Accrued interest (605) 0

(82,584) (102,000) Total Borrowing (87,605) (112,000) 
Liabilities at amortised cost: 

0 (1,570) - Finance leases (8) (1,562)
0 (1,570) Total Other Long-term Liabilities (8) (1,562)

Liabilities at amortised cost: 
(4,885) 0 - Trade payables (5,909) 0 
(4,885) 0 Included in Creditors (5,909) 0 

(87,469) (103,570) Total Financial Liabilities (93,521) (113,562) 

The total short-term borrowing includes £499k (2021: £400k) accrued interest due within 12 
months on long-term borrowing. 
The creditors lines on the Balance Sheet include £30,785k (2021: £47,618k) short-term 
creditors that do not meet the definition of a financial liability as they relate to non-exchange 
transactions. 

Page 103



Page 83 of 163 

Financial Instruments – Assets 
31-Mar-21 Financial Instruments - Assets 31-Mar-22

Short Term Long Term Short Term Long Term 
£'000 £'000 Financial Assets £'000 £'000 

At amortised cost: 
31,000 0 - Principal 46,240 0 

28 0 - Accrued interest 14 0 
At fair value through profit & loss: 

0 33,053 - Fair value 0 35,649 
31,028 33,053 Total Investments 46,254 35,649 

At amortised cost: 
239 0 - Principal 454 0 

At fair value through profit & loss: 
7,511 0 - Fair value 5,913 0 

0 0 - Accrued interest 3 0 
7,750 0 Total Cash and Cash 

Equivalents 6,370 0 
At amortised cost: 

5,667 0 - Trade receivables 4,192 
0 61,100 - Loans made for service

purposes 6,409 65,472 

0 105 - Accrued interest 3 156 
0 (1,111) - Loss allowance 0 (987) 

5,667 60,094 Included in Debtors 10,604 64,641 
44,445 93,147 Total Financial Assets 63,228 100,291 

The debtors lines on the Balance Sheet include £12,461k (2021: £36,849k) short-term and 
£4,994k (2021: £232k) long-term debtors that do not meet the definition of a financial asset as 
they relate to non-exchange transactions. 

Page 104



 

Page 84 of 163 
 

Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities 
Financial assets and liabilities are set off against each other where the Council has a 
legally enforceable right to set off and it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  The table below shows those 
instruments that have been offset on the balance sheet.   

31-Mar-21 
£'000 

Offsetting Financial Assets & Liabilities 31-Mar-22 
£'000 

243 Bank accounts in credit 1,914 

(51) Bank overdrafts (1,460) 

192 Net position of offset accounts 454 

47 Other bank accounts 0 

239 Net position on balance sheet 454 

Financial Instruments - Gains and Losses  
The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
relation to financial instruments consist of the following: 
 

Financial Liabilities Financial Assets 
  

   
Amortised 

Cost 

Fair 
Value 

through 
Profit & 

Loss 

 
Amortised 

Cost 

Fair 
Value 

through 
Profit & 

Loss 

2021/22 
Total 

2020/21 
Total 

 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Interest expense 2,146    2,146 2,429 
Fees paid 82    82 102 
Interest payable and 
similar charges  2,227    2,227 2,531 

Interest income   (4,389) (6) (4,395) (4,374) 
Fees     0 0 
Interest and 
investment income  0     

(4,395) 
 

(4,374) 
Net impact on 
(surplus)/deficit on 
provision of services 

2,227 
  

(4,389) 
 

(6) (2,167) 
 

(1,843) 

Net (Gain)/Loss for 
the Year 2,227  (4,389) (6) (2,167) (1,843) 

  

Page 105



 

Page 85 of 163 
 

Financial Instruments - Fair Value – Liabilities 

Balance 
Sheet 

Fair Value 
  

Balance Sheet Fair Value 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21 
  

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22 

£'000 £'000   Fair value 
Level 

£'000 £'000 

 Financial liabilities held at amortised cost: 
  

(102,000) (103,712) Long-term loans  2 (112,000) (104,656) 

(82,584) (82,362) Short-term loans 2 (87,605) (86,868) 

(1,570) (4,253) Lease payables and PFI 
liabilities 

2 (1,570) (4,419) 

(186,154) (190,327) Total   (201,175) (195,943) 

(4,885)  Liabilities for which fair 
value is not disclosed 

 (5,909)    

(191,039)  Total Financial Liabilities  (207,084)  

  Recorded on balance 
sheet as: 

      

(4,885)  Short-term creditors  (5,917)    

(82,584)  Short-term borrowing  (87,605)   

(1,570)  Long-term creditors  (1,562)   

(102,000)  Long-term borrowing  (112,000)   

(191,039)  Total Financial Liabilities  (207,084)   

The fair value of short-term financial liabilities held at amortised cost, including trade payables, is 
assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. 
The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is lower than their balance sheet 
carrying amount because the authority’s portfolio of loans includes a number of loans where the 
interest rate payable is lower than the current rates available for similar loans as at the Balance 
Sheet date.  

Page 106



Page 86 of 163 

Financial Instruments - Fair Value – Assets 

Balance 
Sheet 

Fair Value Balance Sheet Fair Value 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000 Fair 
Value 
Level 

£'000 £'000 

Financial assets held at fair value: 

7,511 7,511 Money market funds 1 5,916 5,916 

33,053 33,053 Shares in unlisted 
companies 

3 
35,649 35,649 

Financial assets held at amortised cost: 

31,267 31,274 Bank deposits & repos 2 
46,708 46,708 

60,094 60,094 Loans to companies 3 71,053 71,053 

131,925 131,932 Total 159,327 159,327 

5,667 Assets for which fair value is not 
disclosed  4,192 

137,592 Total Financial Assets 163,519 

Recorded on balance sheet as: 

60,094 Long-term debtors 64,641 

33,053 Long-term investments 35,649 

5,667 Short-term debtors 10,604 

31,028 Short-term investments 46,254 

7,750 Cash and cash 
equivalents 6,370 

137,592 Total Financial Assets 163,519 

The fair value of short-term financial assets held at amortised cost, including trade receivables, 
is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount. 
The fair value of financial assets held at amortised cost is lower than their balance sheet 
carrying amount because the interest rate on similar investments is now higher than that 
obtained when the investment was originally made.  

Page 107



 

Page 87 of 163 
 

Note 17.1 - Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial 
Instruments 

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:  

• Credit Risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the 
Council 

• Liquidity Risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to 
meet its commitments to make payments  

• Market Risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a 
result of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market 
movements. 

Credit Risk: Investments  
The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are only placed with 
organisations of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy.  
These include commercial entities with a minimum long-term credit rating of A-, the UK 
government and other local authorities.  The TMS also  restricts lending to a prudent 
maximum amount for each institution. 
The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s  investment 
portfolio: 

 Long Term Credit Rating 
 

31-Mar-21 
£’000 

(Fitch) 31-Mar-22 
£’000 

0 AA  
31,028 AA- 46,254 

0 A+  
31,028 

 
46,254 

Credit risk is not applicable to shareholdings and pooled funds where the Council has no 
contractual right to receive any sum of money.  
Credit Risk: Debtors 
The Council generally allows 30 days credit for its trade debtors. Outstanding debt overdue 
for payment can be analysed by age as follows: 

31-Mar-21 Credit Risk: Debtors 31-Mar-22 
£'000 Duration outstanding £'000 
2,901 One months 2,927 

60 Two months 154 
130 Three months 83 
2,576 More than three months 1,328 
5,667   4,491 

  

Page 108



 

Page 88 of 163 
 

Credit Risk: Loan Commitments and Financial Guarantees 
In furtherance of the Council’s service objectives, it has committed to lend money to the 
following organisations, should it be requested to do so: 

Organisation Total facility Balance 31 March 2022 

Graven Hill Village Development Co Ltd £69.6m £58.7m 
The Council has also provided financial guarantees and bonds to the total value of £27.9m 
for Graven Hill. The guarantee for £3.7m is payable if the sale falls through and Graven Hill 
are unable to return the deposit to the purchaser. The guarantees will expire on either the 
completion of the sale or the return of the deposit.  Two bonds have been issued to the 
value of £24.1m in the event that Graven Hill cannot fulfill its Section 106 and Section 278 
commitments to Oxfordshire County Council. The bonds will expire on the completion of the 
infrastructure work. 
Liquidity Risk 
The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management processes set out 
in its annual Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential Indicators, as well as through 
the active management of the cash flow position. This seeks to ensure that cash is available 
when it is needed.   
The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loan 
Board, other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building societies to cover 
any short-term cash flow need. The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget 
through the Local Government Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient funds are raised 
to cover annual expenditure. There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to 
raise finance to meet its commitments. 
The maturity analysis of current loans is as follows (principal amounts only shown i.e. 
excluding accrued interest): 

31-Mar-21 Liquidity Risk 31-Mar-22 

£'000 Time to maturity £'000 
(82,184) Less than 1 year (87,093) 
(27,063) 1 – 2 years (12,013) 
(27,174) 2 – 5 years (33,176) 
(28,077) 5-10 years (22,074) 
(15,044) 10-20 years (15,044) 
(5,042) 20-30 years (30,205) 

(184,584)   (199,605) 

Market Risk: Interest Rates 
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its 
borrowings and investments.  
As interest rates continue to be relatively low, the Council will only be able to obtain low 
percentages of return on its investments at fixed rates in any new investments placed.  

Page 109



Page 89 of 163 

Other than short term funds held for liquidity purpose e.g. money market funds and call 
accounts, the Council currently does not have any investments at variable rates. 
Although the council is currently able to borrow at relatively low interest rates, it is exposed 
to the risk that it will need to refinance some of its borrowing at higher interest rates in the 
future. 
The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risks. The Treasury 
Management team, in consultation with its advisors, has an active strategy for assessing 
interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of the annual budget and which is used to 
update the forecasted out-turn during the year. This allows for any adverse changes to be 
accommodated. 
Market Risk – Other: 
Price Risk - The Council holds shares in Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd and Crown House 
Banbury Ltd, but these are not listed and are valued at cost price.  The Council therefore 
has no exposure to loss arising from movement in the prices of shares. 
Foreign Exchange Risk - The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies and as a result has no exposure to loss arising from movements in 
exchange rates. 

Note 18 – Inventories 
The table below provides details on the level of inventories balances set out in the Balance 
sheet.  

31-Mar-21
£’000

Inventories 31-Mar-22
£’000

187 Opening Balance 224 

673 Purchases 780 

(636) Recognised as an expense in the year (751) 

224 Closing Balance 253 

Note 19a – Short Term Debtors 
An analysis of the debtor’s balance is shown below 

31-Mar-21
£’000 Short Term Debtors 31-Mar-22

£’000

5,667 Trade Receivables 4,192 
472 Pre-Payments 264 

36,377 Other Receivable Amounts 18,606 
42,516 Total Debtors 23,062 

Page 110



Page 90 of 163 

Note 19b Short Term Debtors for Local Taxation 
The past due but not impaired amount for local taxation (council tax and non- domestic 
rates) can be analysed by age as follows;  

31-Mar-21
£’000 Short Term Debtors for Local Taxation 31-Mar-22

£’000

0 Less than three months 0 
0 Three to six months 0 

743 Six months to one year 475 
803 More than one year 521 

1,546 Total Debtors 996 

Note 20 – Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, short-term bank deposits and money 
market investments and are highly liquid. 
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements: 

31-Mar-21
£’000

Cash and Cash Equivalents 31-Mar-22
£’000

239 Bank Balances/(Overdraft) (1,011) 

7,511 Short Term Investments 5,916 

7,750 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,905 

Note 21– Assets Held for Sale 
31-Mar-21

£’000
Assets held for Sale 31-Mar-22

£’000

0 Balance at start of year 0 

Assets Sold: 

0 Property Plant and Equipment 0 

0 Balance at year end 0 

Page 111



Page 91 of 163 

Note 22 – Short Term Creditors 
The table below provides detail on the level of creditors balances set out in the Balance 
Sheet. 

31-Mar-21
(Restated) £’000 

Short Term Creditors 31-Mar-22
£’000

(4,885) Trade Payables (5,909) 

(47,618) Other Payable Amounts (30,785) 

(52,503) Total Creditors (36,694) 

Note 23 – Provisions 
The main provisions during 2020/21 are for NNDR appeals. The council is required to set 
up a provision for the potential cost of successful appeals with the Valuation Office. 

Current Provisions 

31-Mar-22 Health Walks 
Training 

Provision 
£'000 

Graven Hill 
Deposit 

Guarantee 
£'000 

NNDR Appeals 
Provision 

£'000 

Total 
£'000 

Opening Balance (4) (37) (1,427) (1,469) 

Increase in provision during 
year 

0 0 0 0 

Utilised during the year 0 0 1,155 1,155 

Closing Balance (4) (37) (272) (314)

31-Mar-21
£'000

Health Walks 
Training 

Provision 
£'000 

Graven Hill 
Deposit 

Guarantee 
£'000 

NNDR Appeals 
Provision 

£'000 

Total 
£'000 

Opening Balance (4) 0 (1,428) (1,432) 

Increase in provision during 
year 

0 (37) (1,110) (1,147) 

Utilised during the year 0 0 1,111 1,111 

Closing Balance (4) (37) (1,427) (1,469) 

Page 112



 

Page 92 of 163 
 

Long Term Provisions 

31-Mar-22 NNDR 
Appeals 

£'000 

Landlord 
Rent 

Guarantee 
£'000 

Landlord 
Rent Ex-
Charter 

£'000 

Banbury 
Bowls 

Club 
£'000 

58 Bridge 
Street - 

Repair & 
Renewals 

£'000 

Total 
£'000 

Opening Balance (6,996) (96) (18) (47) (93) (7,250) 

Increase in 
provision during 
year 

(1,999) 0 0 0   (10) (2,009) 

Utilised during year 843 7 0 0 0 850 

Closing Balance         (8,151) (89) (18) (47) (103) (8,409) 

31-Mar-21 NNDR 
Appeals 

£'000 

Landlord 
Rent 

Guarantee 
£'000 

Landlord 
Rent Ex-
Charter 

£'000 

Banbury 
Bowls 

Club 
£'000 

58 Bridge 
Street - 

Repair & 
Renewals 

£'000 

Total 
£'000 

Opening Balance (5,360) (102) (18) (47) (83) (5,610) 

Increase in 
provision during 
year 

(1,636) 0 0 0 (10) (1,646) 

Utilised during year 0 6 0 0 0 6 

Closing Balance (6,996) (96) (18) (47) (93) (7,250) 

Total Provisions 

31-Mar-21 
£'000 

Provisions Summary 31-Mar-22 
£'000 

(7,041) Opening Balance (8,718) 

(2,793) Increase in provision during year (2,009) 

1,117 Utilised during year 2,005 

(8,718) Closing Balance (8,723) 

 

Page 113



Page 93 of 163 

Note 24 – Usable Reserves 
The Council has a number of usable reserves in the balance sheet, those that can be 
applied to fund future expenditure or reduce local taxation. The purpose of each useable 
reserve is detailed in the table below or cross referenced to supporting notes.  

31-Mar-21
£’000

Useable Reserves Summary 31-Mar-22
£’000

(5,520) General Fund (5,951) 

(52,883) Earmarked Reserves (39,906) 

(80) Capital Receipts Reserve (100) 

(676) Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve (7,949) 

(59,160) Total (53,906) 

General Fund Reserve 

This reserve is held to mitigate the financial risks facing the Council.  The prudent level of 
general fund reserves to be held are set annually as part of the Council’s budget report.  

31-Mar-21
£’000

General Fund Reserve 31-Mar-22
£’000

(2,018) Opening Balance (5,520) 

(3,502) Transfers to general reserves (431) 

0 Use of general reserves in year 0 

(5,520) Closing Balance (5,951) 

Page 114



 

Page 94 of 163 
 

Earmarked Reserves 

These are reserves that have been set aside for specific purposes.  This could be for a 
particular project; for example, a ringfenced grant on which there remains an unspent 
balance at the year end or amounts which have been set aside for future use.  They are 
analysed in detail in Note 9.  
The large increase in 2020/21 and decrease in 2021/22 relate primarily to Business Rates 
Section 31 grants which were received in 2020/21 but which have been used to finance the 
Business Rates Collection Fund deficit in 2021/22. 

31-Mar-21 
£'000 

Earmarked Reserves 31-Mar-22 
£'000 

(26,380) Opening Balance  (52,883) 

(35,797) Transfers to reserves  (16,846) 

9,294 Use of reserves in year  29,824 

(52,883) Closing Balance  (39,906) 

Capital Receipts Reserve 

These are capital receipts which have been received during the year and which have then 
been used to finance capital expenditure.  The remaining balance is available for future 
capital financing. 

31-Mar-21 
£’000 

Capital Receipts Reserve 31-Mar-22 
£’000 

0 Opening Balance  (80) 

(1,883) Capital Receipts in year  (1,338) 

1,803 Capital Receipts used for financing  1,317 

(80) Closing Balance (100) 

  

Page 115



 

Page 95 of 163 
 

Capital Grants Unapplied 

These are capital receipts which have been recognised in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement which are available for future capital financing. 

31-Mar-21 
£’000 

Capital Grants Unapplied 31-Mar-22 
£’000 

(165) Opening Balance  (676) 

(511) Capital grants recognised in year (7,432) 

0 Capital grants and contributions applied 160 

(676) Closing Balance (7,949) 

Note 25 - Unusable Reserves  
The Council has several unusable reserves in the balance sheet, those that cannot be 
applied to fund future expenditure or reduce local taxation. They are required to be held 
for statutory reasons and are needed to comply with proper accounting practice.  
The unusable reserves held by the Council are detailed in the table below. The purpose 
of each unusable reserve is detailed in the relevant section below. 

31-Mar-21 
£’000 

Unusable Reserves Summary  31-Mar-22 
£’000 

(33,461) Revaluation Reserve (36,525) 

(31,081) Capital Adjustment Account 2,276 

95,654 Pension Reserve 76,808 

(475) Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve (529) 

23,420 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 7,955 

207 Accumulated Absences Account  269 

54,264 Total 50,254 

  

Page 116



Page 96 of 163 

Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases 
in the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment (and Intangible Assets). The balance is 
reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

• revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

• used in the provision of services and gains are consumed through depreciation,
or

• disposed of and the gains are realised.
The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that 
the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into 
the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 

31-Mar-21
£’000

Revaluation Reserve 31-Mar-22
£’000

Opening Balance 
(35,496) As previously stated (33,461) 
(2,104) Prior year adjustment 0 

(37,599) Opening balance as restated (33,461) 

(2,455) Upward revaluation of assets (6,635) 
5,418 Downward revaluation of assets and impairment 

losses not charged to the Surplus or Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

2,324 

2,963 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-
current assets not charged to the Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of Services 

(4,311) 

705 Difference between fair value depreciation and 
historical cost depreciation  

814 

470 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 215 
0 Accumulated gains on Property transferred to 

Investment Property 
218 

1,175 Amount written off to the Capital Adjustment 
Account 

1,247 

(33,461) Closing Balance (36,525) 

Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing 
the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.  

Page 117



 

Page 97 of 163 
 

The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as 
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve 
to convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis).  
The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs 
of acquisition, construction and enhancement. 
The account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and also 
contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 
2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. 
Note 13 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart 
from those involving the Revaluation Reserve. 

  

Page 118



Page 98 of 163 

The movements on the Capital Adjustment Account for the year are: 

31-Mar-21 Capital Adjustment Account 31-Mar-22

£'000 £'000 

Opening balance 

(51,082) As previously stated (31,081) 

(3,270) Prior year adjustment 0 

(54,352) Opening balance as restated (31,081) 

3,096 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 3,381 

4,721 Revaluation losses on non-current assets 20,718 

367 Amortisation of intangible assets 498 

12,865 Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 9,390 

2,042 
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 
gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

558 

23,091 Reversal of Items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited 
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

34,545 

(1,175) Adjusting Amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve (1,247) 

21,916 Net written out amount of the cost of non-current assets consumed in 
the year 

33,298 

(2,068) Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure (1,317) 

(12,545) Capital Grants and Contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing 

(11,682) 

(2,153) Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against 
the General Fund  

(1,600) 

333 Increase in expected credit losses provision for long-term loans receivable (124) 

0 Direct Revenue contributions (3,000) 

(16,433) Capital financing applied in year: (17,723) 

17,787 Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

17,782 

(31,081) Closing Balance 2,276 

Page 119



 

Page 99 of 163 
 

Pension Reserve 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different 
arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in 
accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post- employment benefits 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by 
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, 
changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the 
costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the 
Council makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions 
for which it is directly responsible.  
The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the 
benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council has set aside 
to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside 
by the time the benefits come to be paid. 

31-Mar-21 
£'000 

Pension Reserve  31-Mar-22 
£'000 

72,770 Opening Balance  95,654 

23,517 Remeasurements of the net 
defined benefit (liability)/asset 

(26,718) 

7,178 Reversal of items relating to 
retirement benefits debited or 
credited to the Surplus or Deficit 
on the Provision of Services in the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement  

10,725 

(7,811) Employer's pensions contributions 
and direct payments to pensioners 
payable in the year 

(2,853) 

95,654 Closing Balance  76,808 
 

  

Page 120



Page 100 of 163 

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory 
arrangements the council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital 
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement 
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

31-Mar-21
£'000

Deferred Capital Receipts reserve 31-Mar-22
£'000

(725) Opening Balance (475) 

0 Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part 
of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure statement 

(304) 

250 Transfer to the capital receipts reserve upon 
receipt of cash 

250 

(475) Closing Balance (529) 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the 
recognition of income from council tax and business rates in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as it falls due compared with the statutory arrangements for 
paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund. 

31-Mar-21
£'000

Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account 

Business 
Rates 
£'000 

Council 
Tax 

£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000

(2,045) Opening Balance  23,562 (142) 23,420

25,465 

Amount by which income 
credited to the CIES is different 
from income calculated for the 
year in accordance with 
statutory requirements 

(15,012) (453) (15,465)

23,420 Closing Balance  8,550 (595) 7,955

Page 121



Page 101 of 163 

Accumulated Absences Account 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise 
on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not 
taken in the year e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory 
arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance is neutralised by 
transfers to or from the Account. 

31-Mar-21
£'000

Accumulated Absences Account 31-Mar-22
£'000

204 Opening Balance 207 

(204) Settlement or cancellation of the accrual made at
the end of the preceding year

(207) 

207 Amounts accrued at the end of the year 269 

207 Closing Balance  269 

Note 26 - Members’ Allowances 
The total of Members’ Allowances paid in the year 2021/22 amounted to £330k. This 
compares to £316k in 2020/21. A detailed list of allowances paid to each member is 
available for examination on the Council's website under "Councillors – Members’ 
Allowances" 
The Local Councils (Members’ Allowances) Regulations 2003 requires local Councils to 
publish the amounts paid to members under the members’ allowances scheme. The 
allowances available in 2021/22 were as follows: 

31-Mar-21
£'000

31-Mar-22
£'000

315 Allowances 328 

1 Expenses 2 

316 Total Members' Allowances 330 

Page 122



Page 102 of 163 

Note 27 - Officers’ Remuneration 
The Council is required, under regulation 7(2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2003, to include in the notes to the accounts the number of employees in the accounting 
period whose remuneration was in excess of £50,000 excluding pension contributions.  
This does not include senior staff all accounted for in the table on the following page 
where they are employees of Cherwell District Council.  Senior staff employed by 
Oxfordshire County Council are not included in the table below; 

31-Mar-21
(Restated) Officers' Remuneration 31-Mar-22

Number of 
employees Remuneration Band Number of employees 

16 £50,001 to £55,000 15 

6 £55,001 to £60,000 5 

0 £60,001 to £65,000 1 

22 21 

Page 123



Page 103 of 163 

Note 27 Continued… The Remuneration paid to senior employees in Cherwell District Council 2021/22 is as follows: 

Post Title 

Sa
la

ry
 (I

nc
lu

di
ng

 
Fe

es
 &

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s)

 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

an
d 

O
th

er
 E

m
ol

um
en

ts
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
Lo

ss
 o

f 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 

To
ta

l R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
Ex

cl
ud

in
g 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

To
ta

l R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
ns

io
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 

O
xf

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

C
os

t t
o 

C
he

rw
el

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 C

ou
nc

il 
( 

D
at

e 
in

 p
os

t 
20

21
/2

2 

Chief Executive** 113,974 0 0 113,974 16,706 130,680 0 130,680 
Joint 
CDC/OCC 
until Feb 
2022 

Corporate Director of Customers, Organisation 
Development and Resources** 41,238 43 0 41,280 6,502 47,782 0 47,782 

Director of Customers and Cultural Services** 11,141 232 0 11,373 1,766 13,139 0 13,139 

Director of Human Resources** 21,878 284 0 22,162 3,469 25,631 0 25,631 
Assistant Director of Environmental Services 84,270 424 0 84,694 13,275 97,969 0 97,969 
Assistant Director of Planning and 
Development 81,511 389 0 81,900 12,911 94,811 0 94,811 

Assistant Director of Growth and Economy 81,201 0 0 81,201 12,911 94,111 0 94,111 

Assistant Director of Finance (Section 151) 81,141 766 0 81,907 12,825 94,732 0 94,732 
S151 
Officer 
from Feb 
2022 

Assistant Director of Wellbeing 74,002 303 0 74,305 11,638 85,943 0 85,943 
Assistant Director of Property Management 
and Contract Management** 39,907 140 0 40,047 6,007 46,054 0 46,054 Until Dec 

2021 

Assistant Director of Housing and Social Care 
Commissioning** 13,518 109 0 13,628 2,121 15,748 0 15,748 Until July 

2021 

Table continued on next page… 

P
age 124



Page 104 of 163 

Note 27 Continued…

Post Title 

Sa
la

ry
 (I

nc
lu

di
ng

 
Fe

es
 &

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

s)
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

an
d 

O
th

er
 

Em
ol

um
en

ts
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

ns
 

fo
r L

os
s 

of
 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

Ex
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

To
ta

l 
R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
pe

ns
io

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 

O
xf

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 

C
os

t t
o 

C
he

rw
el

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 C

ou
nc

il 

D
at

e 
in

 p
os

t 
20

21
/2

2 

Programme Director of Growth And 
Commercial 22,018 0 0 22,018 3,368 25,386 0 25,386 Until Sept 

2021 

Corporate Director of Public Health & 
Wellbeing* 0 0 0 0 0 0 17,116 17,116 

Corporate Director of Adults and Housing 
Services* 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,610 15,610 

Corporate Director of Commercial 
Development, Assets and Investment 
Monitoring* 

0 0 0 0 0 0 61,520 61,520 

Corporate Director of Environment and Place* 0 0 0 0 0 0 61,325 61,325 

Director of Digital and IT Services* 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,731 14,731 

Director of Law and Governance and 
Monitoring Officer* 

0 0 0 0 0 0 33,962 33,962 
Joint 
CDC/OCC 
until Feb 
2022 

Director of Finance Section 151* 0 0 0 0 0 0 45,389 45,389 

Joint 
CDC/OCC 
& S151 
until Feb 
2022 

Director of Communications, Strategy and 
Insight* 0 0 0 0 0 0 21,399 21,399 

Table continued on next page… 

P
age 125



Page 105 of 163 

Note 27 Continued… 

Post Title 

Sa
la

ry
 (I

nc
lu

di
ng

 
Fe

es
 &

 A
llo

w
an

ce
s)

 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

an
d 

O
th

er
 E

m
ol

um
en

ts
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
Lo

ss
 o

f 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 

To
ta

l R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
Ex

cl
ud

in
g 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

To
ta

l R
em

un
er

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

pe
ns

io
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 

O
xf

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

C
os

t t
o 

C
he

rw
el

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 C

ou
nc

il 

D
at

e 
in

 p
os

t 
20

21
/2

2 

Director of Property Investment and Facilities 
Management* 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,127 20,127 From Aug 

2021 

Assistant Director of Regulatory Services* 0 0 0 0 0 0 67,520 67,520 
Assistant Director Housing and Social Care 
Commissioning* 0 0 0 0 0 0 65,649 65,649 From July 

2021 
 Head of Legal Services and Deputy Monitoring Officer 0 0 0 0 0 0 35,808 35,808 
Assistant Director of Healthy Place Shaping* 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,882 28,882 
Head of Procurement and Contract 
Management * 0 0 0 0 0 0 24,483 24,483 

Assistant Director of Property Management 
and Contract Management* 0 0 0 0 0 0 18,219 18,219 From Jan 

2022 

Licensing Manager* 0 0 0 0 0 0 20,000 20,000 
Total 665,798.56 £,690.11 0.00 668,488.67 103,497.71 771,986.38 260,561.00 1,323,726.38 

P
age 126



 

Page 106 of 163 
 

Note 27 Continued… 

The remuneration paid to senior employees in Cherwell District Council for 2020/21 is as follows: 

Post Title 

Sa
la

ry
 (I

nc
lu

di
ng

 
Fe

es
 &

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

s)
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

an
d 

O
th

er
 

Em
ol

um
en

ts
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

ns
 

fo
r L

os
s 

of
 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

Ex
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

ib
i

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 

To
ta

l 
R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 

O
xf

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 

C
os

t t
o 

C
he

rw
el

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 C

ou
nc

il 

D
at

e 
in

 p
os

t 
20

20
/2

1 

Chief Executive** 77,965 2,311 0 80,276 12,396 92,673 0 92,673  

Corporate Director of Customers, 
Organisational Development and Resources** 39,650 0 0 39,650 6,304 45,955 0 45,955  

Corporate Director of Place and Growth** 34,947 177 0 35,124 5,524 40,648 0 40,648 Until 31 
Dec 2020 

Assistant Director of Housing and Social Care 
Commissioning** 42,667 642 0 43,309 6,784 50,094 0 50,094  

Director of HR** 20,467 245 0  20,712 3,254 23,966 0 23,966  

Director of Customers and Cultural Services** 10,234 5,525 0 15,759 1,627 17,386 0 17,386  

Assistant Director of Healthy Place Shaping 20,000 0 0 20,000  20,000 0 20,000 Until 31 
Dec 2020 

Programme Director: Growth and Commercial 59,658 0 0 59,658 9,486 69,144 0 69,144  

Assistant Director: Property, investment, 
Contract Management 78,680 905 0 79,585 12,510 92,095 0 92,095  

Assistant Director: Environmental Services 82,052 0 0 82,052 13,046 95,098 0 95,098  

Assistant Director: Growth and Economy 78,680 189 0 78,869 12,510 91,379 0 91,379  

Assistant Director: Planning and Development 78,680 344 0 79,023 12,510 91,533 0 91,533  

Assistand Director: Wellbeing 70,812 0 0 70,812 11,259 82,071 0 82,071  

Table continued on next page 
 

P
age 127



 

Page 107 of 163 
 

Note 27 Continued… 

Post Title 

Sa
la

ry
 (I

nc
lu

di
ng

 
Fe

es
 &

 
Al

lo
w

an
ce

s)
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Al
lo

w
an

ce
s 

an
d 

O
th

er
 E

m
ol

um
en

ts
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
Lo

ss
 o

f 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 

To
ta

l 
R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

Ex
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 

Pe
ns

io
n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

To
ta

l 
R

em
un

er
at

io
n 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 

O
xf

or
ds

hi
re

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 

 C
os

t t
o 

C
he

rw
el

l 
D

is
tri

ct
 C

ou
nc

il 

D
at

e 
in

 p
os

t 
20

20
/2

1 

Assistant Director: Finance 58,597   58,597 9,317 67,915  67,915 From Jun 
2020 

Corporate Director - Commercial 
Development, Assets and Investments*       53,922 53,922  

Corporate Director - Adult Social Care & 
Housing*       16,043 16,043  

Corporate Director of Public Health*       14,366 14,366  
Director of Finance*       47,147 47,147  

Head of Legal and Deputy Monitoring Officer*       25,414 25,414 From Jun 
2020 

Director - IT, Digital and Transformation*       23,448 23,448  

Director of Law and Governance (new post)*       7,029 7,029 From Jan 
2021 

Head of Procurement & Contract 
Management*       28,932 28,932  

Assistant Director of Healthy Place Shaping*       9,936 9,936  
Licensing Manager*       7,893 7,893 6 months 
Director of Strategy Insight and 
Communications*       24,075 24,075  

Assistant Director of Regulatory Services*       68,258 68,258  
Total 753,088  10,339 0 763,427 116,528 879,956 326,463 1,206,418   

Cherwell District Council has several joint posts under the Partnership Agreement with Oxfordshire County Council: 
  *Denotes Staff employed by Oxfordshire County Council and the District Council is charged a share of salary costs  
**Denotes Staff employed by Cherwell District Council and a charge is made to Oxfordshire County Council for a share of the salary costs. Salary costs are 
shown net of recharge.  

P
age 128



Page 108 of 163 

Note 28 - External Audit Costs 
The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement 
of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory inspections and to non-audit 
services provided by the Authority’s external auditors.   
The final fee payable in 2021-22 is still subject to approval by the PSAA. 

31-Mar-21
£'000s

Fees 31-Mar-22
£'000s

141 Fees payable with regard to external 
audit services carried out by the 
appointed auditor 

127 

29 Fees payable for the certification of grant 
claims and returns 

24 

170 Total 151 

Page 129



 

Page 109 of 163 
 

Note 29 – Grant Income 
The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2021/22; 
Grant Income Credited to Taxation and non-specific Grant Income and Expenditure 

31-Mar-21 
£'000 Grant Income Credited to Taxation 31-Mar-22 

£'000 
 Revenue Grants and Contributions  

(116) Revenue Support Grant (117) 

(7,353) Non-Domestic Rates (incl. Section 31 
grant) (11,874) 

(5,836) New Homes Bonus (4,423) 

(3,679) Covid-19 grants (1,204) 

0 Lower Tier Services Grant (897) 

(79) Other Revenue Grants and 
Contributions (353) 

 Capital Grants and Contributions  
(1,240) Disabled Facilities Grant (1,270) 

0 Decarbonisation Grant (5,183) 

(9,809) Growth Deal Funding (2,269) 

(1,610) Garden Town Capital Grant (4,550) 

0 NW Bicester Bridge (4,250) 

(397) Other Capital Grants and Contributions (1,431) 

(30,119) Total (37,822) 

 
 

  

Page 130



Page 110 of 163 

Grant Income Credited to Services 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

Grant Income Credited to Services 31-Mar-22
£'000 

(24,560) Rent Allowances Subsidy Grant (22,207) 
(304) Housing Benefit Administration Subsidy Grant (291) 
(232) NDR Cost of Collection Grant (235) 
(629) Flexible Homeless Support Grant (624) 
(228) Rough Sleeper Initiative (340) 
(607) Section 106 Developer contributions (304) 
(303) New Burdens (60) 
(329) Discretionary Housing Payments (250) 
(832) Other Grants & Contributions (633) 

(2,753) Contributions from other Local Authorities (2,504) 
(433) Home Office – Refugees (251) 

(7,541) Covid-19 related grants (2,265) 
(38,752) Total (29,964) 

The Council has received several grants, contributions and donations that have yet to 
be recognised as income as they have conditions attached to them that could require 
the monies or property to be returned to the giver if the conditions are not met. The 
balances at the year-end are as follows: 

Grants Receipts in Advance (Revenue Grants) - Current Liabilities 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

(134) Section 106 developer contributions (290) 

(3,314) COVID-19 Grant - Closed Business Lockdown 
Payment Grant (2,747) 

(25) COVID-19 Grant - Christmas Support 0 
(958) COVID-19 Grant - LRSG Closed 0 

(3,865) COVID-19 Grant - LRSG Closed Addendum (3,891) 
0 COVID-19 Grant - LRSG Open (124) 

(106) COVID-19 Grant - Test & Trace 0 
(10) COVID-19 Grant - Small Business Grant (10) 

0 COVID-19 Grant – Covid Additional Relief Fund (3,988) 
0 COVID-19 Grant – Omicron HL Grant (387) 
0 Council Tax Rebate Grant (7,923) 

(201) Other Grants and contributions (245) 
(8,612) Total (19,606) 

Page 131



Page 111 of 163 

Grants Receipts in Advance (Capital Grants) - Current Liabilities 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

(777) Section 106 developer contributions (681) 

0 Decarbonisation Grant (803) 

(777) Total (1,485) 

Grants Receipts in Advance (Revenue Grants) - Long Term Liabilities 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

(4,169) Section 106 Developer Contributions - 
Capital (4,952) 

(5) Community Build Banbury (5) 
(4,174) Total (4,958) 

Grants Receipts in Advance (Capital Grants) - Long Term Liabilities 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

(8,086) Section 106 Developer Contributions - Capital (8,753) 
(6,312) Other Contributions (283) 
(4,250) NW Bicester Bridge 0 
(3,906)   Eco Town Grant (3,906) 

(22,555)   Total (12,941) 

Note 30 - Related Parties 
The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, bodies or 
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled 
or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess 
the extent to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate 
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain 
freely with the Council. 

Page 132



Page 112 of 163 

Central Government 

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the 
Council including:  

• Providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates,

• Providing funding in the form of grants

• Prescribing the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has
with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, non-domestic rates and housing
benefits).

Local Government 

Oxfordshire County Council 

Shared Resource 

Cherwell District Council shares a number of officers with Oxfordshire County 
Council under a joint working relationship. The senior officers working in a 
shared capacity as at 31 March 2022 were: 

Shared Post Officer Employed by 
Assistant Director Housing and Social Care 
Commissioning Oxfordshire County Council 

Assistant Director Regulatory Services Oxfordshire County Council 
Chief Fire Officer Oxfordshire County Council 
Corporate Director Customers, Organisational 
Development and Resources 

Cherwell District Council 

Corporate Director Commercial Development, Assets 
and Investments 

Oxfordshire County Council 

Corporate Director Environment and Place Oxfordshire County Council 
Corporate Director Public Health and Wellbeing Oxfordshire County Council 
Director Communications, Strategy and Insight Oxfordshire County Council 
Director Customers and Cultural Services Cherwell District Council 
Director Digital and IT Oxfordshire County Council 
Director of Human Resources Oxfordshire County Council 
Director of Law and Governance Oxfordshire County Council 
Director Property, Investment and Facilities 
Management 

Oxfordshire County Council 

Head of Legal Oxfordshire County Council 
Head of Procurement and Contract Management Oxfordshire County Council 
Lead of Healthy Place Shaping Oxfordshire County Council 

Page 133



 

Page 113 of 163 
 

Other Public Bodies 

Payments to other Public Bodies must be disclosed to provide assurance to 
readers of these statements that any material transaction between the 
organisation and those in a position to influence its decisions is properly 
accounted for. 

• The Council collects and pays over precepts on behalf of Oxfordshire 
County Council, Thames Valley Police and Crime Commissioner and 
the Town and Parish Councils within the Council area.  Precepts for the 
County Council and Police Authority are shown in the Collection Fund.  
Town and Parish precepts are shown in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Account. 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme of which Cherwell DC is a 
member is administered by Oxfordshire County Council 

  

Page 134



Page 114 of 163 

Related Party Transaction Summary 

Declarations Made 
By Details of Related Party 

Transaction 
Values 2021 

£m 

Transaction 
Values 

2022 
£m 

CDC Director x1 

Councillors x 2 

CSN Resources Ltd - a jointly owned 
company with West Northamptonshire 
which acts as a collection agent for 
various council debtors - details of 
appointed directors are listed below.  
Due to the separation of services 
between the 2 councils this company 
ceased trading in November 2021 

1.102 0.350 

CDC Asst 
Directors x2 
Councillors x 1 

Crown House Banbury Ltd - a wholly 
owned Council subsidiary for the 
purpose of management of rented 
council accommodation - details of 
appointed directors are listed below - 
transactions include intercompany loans 

0.431 0.539 

Councillors x 2 

Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd - a 
wholly owned council subsidiary for the 
purpose of Eco developments in the 
district - details of appointed directors 
are listed below - transactions include 
intercompany loans and capital 
investments  

5.797 12.327 

Councillors x2 

Bicester Vision CIC is a local not for 
profit organisation to support and bring 
together local businesses and projects 
for the benefit of the Bicester area.  
There are some invoices and a modest 
annual grant 0 0.015 

CDC Executive 
x1 

Active Oxfordshire is a registered charity 
dedicated to promoting healthy activity 
for all ages across Oxfordshire. 
Transactions include invoices and 
modest grant funding  0 (0.025) 

Councillor x1 

OneBicester is a local not for profit 
organisation that promotes skills training 
for local people in the Bicester area – 
very few transactions – 1 invoice for 
supply 0 <0.001 

Page 135



Page 115 of 163 

Officers 

• During 2021/22 Senior Officers of the Council made disclosures of
£889k (2020/21 £7.33million) relating to their directorships of the
Council’s wholly owned and Joint owned companies as listed below.  All
transactions are fully compliant with the CIPFA Code and documented
in the Group Accounts.

• There is also a disclosure of £25k received for invoices issued to a local
charity

• There were no other material disclosures other than being a shared
resource as noted above.

Members 

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating 
policies.  

• During 2021/22 payments for works and services to the value of
£13.231million (2020/21 £7.79million) were made to parties where
Members had declared an interest.

• The £13.231m is split with £13.216m transactions relating to their
directorships with the Council’s wholly owned and Joint owned
companies as listed below.  These transactions are fully documented in
the Group Accounts.  The remaining £15k relates to other transactions
which have been fully investigated and appropriately recorded.

• Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the Council’s
Standing Orders.

All transactions are recorded in the Register of Members' Interests, open to public 
inspection at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA. 

Subsidiaries and Joint Operations 

The following subsidiaries and joint operations are set out in a separate section at the 
end of these Statements.  A number of Officers and Councillors are directors of these 
companies: 

Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd 
Councillor Ian Corkin – appointed December 2018 
Councillor Dan Sames – appointed December 2018 
Graven Hill Village Development Company Ltd 
Councillor Ian Corkin – appointed September 2015 
Councillor Dan Sames – appointed July 2014 
Crown House Banbury Ltd 
Councillor Simon Holland – appointed October 2017 
CDC Official Nicola Riley – appointed August 2021 
CDC Official Gillian Douglas – resigned July 2021 

Page 136



Page 116 of 163 

Crown Apartments Banbury Limited  
Councillor Simon Holland – appointed June 2018 
CDC Official Nicola Riley – appointed August 2021 
CDC Official Gillian Douglas – resigned July 2021 
CSN Resources Ltd (Entered voluntary liquidation on 26 November 
2021) 
Councillor Jason Slaymaker – resigned April 2021 
Councillor Hugo Brown – Appointed June 2019 
CDC Official Claire Taylor – Appointed April 2017 
CSN Associates Ltd: (Dissolved on 30 November 2021) 
Councillor Jason Slaymaker – resigned April 2021 
Councillor Hugo Brown – appointed June 2018 
CDC Official Claire Taylor – appointed April 2017 

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority 

During 2021/22 grant funding payments of £0.387m (2020/21 £0.369m) were made to 
the Banbury Museum Trust. This represents a significant part of the funding for this 
organisation. 

Note 31 – Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below 
(including the value of assets acquired under finance leases and PFI contracts), 
together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital expenditure 
is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the 
authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the authority that 
has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note. 

Page 137



 

Page 117 of 163 
 

Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 

Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing   
31-Mar-21 

£'000 
  31-Mar-22 

£'000 
178,745 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 228,639 

     

  Capital Investment:  
40,764 Property Plant and Equipment 14,895 
1,999 Investment Property 212 
1,146 Intangible Assets 647 

12,865 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 9,390 
4,000 Long Term Investments 2,596 
5,703 Long Term Debtors 4,449 

66,476 Total Capital Spending 32,189 
      

  Sources of Finance:   
(1,883) Capital receipts (20) 

(12,545) Government Grants and other contributions (18,954) 
  Sums set aside from revenue:  

0 - Direct revenue contributions (3,000) 
  Debt Repayment:  

(2,153) Minimum revenue Provision (1,723) 
(16,581) Total Sources of Finance (23,697) 

      

228,639 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 237,131 
      

Explanation of movements in year   
31-Mar-21 

£'000 
  31-Mar-22 

£'000 
52,049 Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by 

government financial assistance) 
10,215 

  Assets acquired under finance leases  
(2,153) Statutory provision for repayment of debt (minimum Revenue 

Provision) 
(1,723) 

     

49,895 Increase/(decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 8,492 

Page 138



Page 118 of 163 

Note 32 – Leases 

32.1 Authority as Lessee - Finance Leases 

The assets acquired under these leases are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment 
in the Balance Sheet at the following net amounts: 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

3,619 Other Land and Buildings 2,256 

0 Vehicles, Plant, Furniture, Equipment and 
Other 

0 

3,619 Total 2,256 

The minimum lease payments are made up of the following amounts: 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

Finance lease liabilities (net present value 
of minimum lease payments): 

7 - current 8 
1,570 - non-current 1,562 

0 Finance costs payable in future years 0 
1,577 Minimum lease payments 1,570 

The minimum lease payments will be payable over the following periods: 

Minimum Lease 
payments Finance Lease Liabilities 

31-Mar-21
£'000

31-Mar-22
£'000

31-Mar-21
£'000

31-Mar-22
£'000

7 8 Not later than one year 206 211 

36 40 
Later than one year and not later 

than five years 822 843 

1,534 1,522 Later than five years 5,222 5,352 
1,577 1,570 Total 6,250 6,405 

Page 139



Page 119 of 163 

32.2 Authority as Lessee - Operating Leases 

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases in 
future years are set out below: 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

32 Not later than one year 31 

103 Later than one year and not later than five 
years 81 

43 Later than five years 34 

178 Total 146 

The expenditure charged to services in the CIES during the year in relation to these 
leases was: 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

61 Minimum lease payments 41 

61 Total 41 

32.3 Authority as Lessor - Finance Leases 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

Finance lease debtor (net present value of 
minimum lease payments): 

250 - current 225 

225 - non-current 0 

0 Unearned finance income 0 

0 Unguaranteed residual value of property 0 

475 Gross investment in the lease 225 

Page 140



Page 120 of 163 

The gross investment in the lease and the minimum lease payments will be received 
over the following periods: 

Gross Investment in the 
Lease 

Minimum Lease 
Payments 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

0 225 Not later than one year 250 225 

0 0 Later than one year and
not later than five years 225 0 

475 0 Later than five years 0 0 

475 225 Total 475 225 

32.4 Authority as Lessor - Operating Leases 

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future 
years are: 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

31-Mar-22
£'000 

4,276 Not later than one year 5,234 

12,287 
Later than one year and not later than five 
years 16,030 

37,121 Later than five years 63,214 

53,684 Total 84,479 

Note 33 - Impairment Losses 
The Code requires disclosure by class of assets of the amounts for impairment losses 
and impairment reversals charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
and to Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.   
During the year under review a number of assets have been professionally valued by 
external valuers as part of the Council’s rolling five-year rolling programme of asset 
valuations. A review is also carried out by the Council to determine whether there are 
any indications of impairments or revaluation losses with regard to assets not subject to 
revaluations in the current year.   
There are no impairment losses or any impairment reversals in 2021/22. 

Page 141



Page 121 of 163 

Note 34 - Termination Benefits 
The authority terminated the contracts of eight employees which resulted in termination 
benefits of £220k in 2021/22.   The Figure in the financial year of 2020/21 was £11k. 

[a] [b] [c] [d] [e] 

Exit package cost 
band (including 
special payments) 

Number of 
compulsory 
redundancies 

Number of other 
departures agreed 

total number of exit 
packages by cost 
band [(b) + ©] 

Total cost of exit packages 
in each band 

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 

£0-£20,000 5 3 0 2 5 5 £23,055 £10,859 

£20,001-£100,000 2 0 1 0 3 0 £196,497 £0 

£100,001-£140,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 £0 £0 

Total 7 3 1 2 8 5 £219,552 £10,859 

Note 35 - Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 

35.1 Participation in Pension Schemes 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes 
contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although these benefits will 
not actually be payable until employees retire, the Authority has a commitment to make 
the payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at the time that employees earn 
their future entitlement.   
The Cherwell District Council pension scheme is operated under the regulatory 
framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance of the 
scheme is the responsibility of Oxfordshire County Council. Policy is determined in 
accordance with the Pensions Fund Regulations. 
The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, 
statutory changes to the scheme, and structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large-scale 
withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of 
the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain extent by 
the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the amounts required by 
statute as described in the accounting policies note. 

35.2 Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits 

We recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they 
are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as 
pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is based on 
the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post- employment/retirement benefits is 
reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Page 142



 

Page 122 of 163 
 

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves 
Statement during the year; 

31-Mar-21 
 

31-Mar-22  
£’000 Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure 

Statement 
£’000 

 Cost of Services: 
 

5,397 Current Service Cost 8,557 

0 Past Service Cost/(Gain) – Including Curtailments 120 

77 Administration Expense 78 

 Financing and Investment (Income) and 
Expenditure: 

 

1,704 Net Interest Expense 1,970 

7,178 Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the 
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 

10,725 
   

 Other Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure: 
 

(22,366) Return on Plan Assets (excluding amounts included in 
net interest expense) 

(10,869) 

2,386 Actuarial (Gains) & Losses Arising on Changes in 
Demographic Assumptions 

(1,059) 

45,266 Actuarial (Gains) & Losses Arising on Changes in 
Financial Assumptions 

(15,239) 

(1,769) Experience (Gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation 449 

0 Other actuarial (Gains) & Losses on assets 0 

 Post-Employment Benefit Charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

 

23,517 (26,718) 
   

 Movement in Reserves Statement 
 

(7,178) Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit 
for the Provision of Services for Post-employment 
Benefits in accordance with the Code 

(10,725) 

7,811 Employer’s Contributions Payable to the Pension 
Scheme 

2,853 

633 Total (7,872) 

  

Page 143



Page 123 of 163 

35.3 Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Council’s obligation in 
respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: 

31-Mar-21
£'000

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the 
Balance Sheet 

31-Mar-22
£'000

(222,096) Present value of the defined benefit obligation (218,485) 

129,944 Fair value of plan assets 141,677 

(92,152) Sub-total (76,808) 
(3,502) Other movements in the liability 0 

(95,654) Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (76,808) 

35.4 Assets and Liabilities in relation to Retirement Benefits 

31-Mar-21
£'000

Reconciliation of Present Value of Scheme 
Liabilities 

31-Mar-22
£'000

(174,661) Liabilities as of the Beginning of the Period (225,598) 
(5,474) Current Service Cost (8,635) 
(4,026) Interest Cost (4,550) 
(1,060) Contributions by Scheme Participants (1,066) 

(45,266) Change in financial assumptions 15,239 
(2,386) Change in demographic assumptions 1,059 

1,769 Experience (Losses)/Gains on defined benefit 
obligation 

(449) 

0 Losses on Curtailments 0 
5,506 Benefits Paid 5,635 

0 Past Service Costs (120) 
(225,598) Liabilities as of the End of the Period (218,485) 

Reconciliation of Fair Value of Scheme Assets 
101,891 Assets as of the Beginning of the Period 129,944 

2,322 Interest on Assets 2,580 
22,366 Return on assets less interest 10,869 
7,811 Employer Contributions 2,853 
1,060 Contributions by Scheme Participants 1,066 

(5,506) Benefits Paid (5,635) 
  129,944 Assets as of the End of the Period 141,677 

Page 144



Page 124 of 163 

Impact on the Council’s cash Flow 
The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to 
pay post-employment (retirement) benefits. The total liability of £218m has a substantial 
impact on the net worth of the authority as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resulting in a 
negative overall balance relating to pensions of £77m (see Note 25: Pension Reserve).  
However, statutory arrangements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position 
of the authority remains healthy: 

• the deficit on the local government scheme will be made good by
increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees
(i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by the scheme actuary,

• finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits
when the pensions are actually paid.

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
by the authority in the year to 31 March 2023 is £2.478m. 
The weighted average time until payment of all expected future cashflows is 21 years. 

Sensitivity Analysis 
Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis, with the last triennial review and 
valuation completed at 31 March 2019. The fund liability may go up and down 
depending on assumptions applied. 

Measurement of Pension Liability 
The present value of the pension liability depends on a number of factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis and the value of the underlying assets. The actual 
liability of the Council will continue to be subject to volatility, as a result of a number of 
factors. 
The estimated effects of the changes in the key individual assumptions in determining 
the net pension liability would increase the Council’s pension liability as of 31 March 
2022 as follows: 

31-Mar-21
£'000

Sensitivity analysis 31-Mar-22
£'000

22,127 0.5 per cent decrease in the real discount rate 20,850 

1,832 0.5 per cent increase in the salary increase rate 1,680 

19,868 0.5 per cent increase in the pension increase rate 19,030 

9,024 1-year increase in member life expectancy 8,740 

The above table presents the changes in key assumptions in isolation. The information is 
only indicative of the estimated impact as the assumptions interact in complex ways. 

Page 145



Page 125 of 163 

35.5 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities 

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependent on 
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government 
Pension Scheme and Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been assessed by Hymans 
Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for Oxfordshire County 
Council Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 
March 2019. 

The principal assumptions used by the actuary in the calculations are: 

31-Mar-21
per cent

Principal Assumptions 31-Mar-22
per cent

3.3 Rate of inflation: RPI 3.65 

2.85 Rate of inflation: CPI 3.20 

2.85 Rate of increase in salaries 3.20 

2.85 Rate of increase in pensions 3.20 

2.0 Rate of discounting scheme liabilities 2.70 

These assumptions are set with reference to market conditions as at 31 March 2022. 
The estimated duration of Employer’s pension liabilities to employees is 21 years. 
The discount rate is the annualised yield at the 21-year point on the iBoxx AA-rated 
corporate bond yield curve which has been chosen to meet the requirements of IAS19 
and with consideration of the duration of the Employer’s liabilities. 
The Retail Prices Index (RPI) increase assumption is set based on the difference 
between conventional gilt yields and index-linked gilt yields at the accounting date using 
data published by the Bank of England (BoE), specifically the 21 year point on the BoE 
market implied inflation curve. 
Future pension increases are expected to be based on the Consumer Prices Index 
(CPI) rather than RPI.  Salaries are assumed to increase by CPI only. 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

Years Mortality Assumptions Years 
Longevity at 65 for current pensioners 

22.4 Men 22.2 
24.7 Women 24.5 

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners 
23.4 Men 23.1 
26.3 Women 26.1 

Page 146



Page 126 of 163 

The following assumptions have been made: 
• Members will elect to take 50 per cent of their commutable pension for

cash at retirement.

• Members will retire at one retirement age for all tranches of benefit, which
will be the pension weighted average tranche retirement age.

• Members opted-in to the 50:50 section at the previous valuation date
will continue in this section.

The Local Government Pension Scheme’s estimated asset allocation for Cherwell 
District Council consists of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets 
held: 

31-Mar-21
per cent

Estimated Asset Allocation 31-Mar-22
per cent

0 Equity Securities 0 
11 Debt Securities 3 
4 Private Equity 5 
0 Real Estate 0 

81 Investment Funds and Unit Trusts 90 

0 Derivatives 0 

4 Cash & Cash Equivalents 2 
100 Total 100 

35.6 Other factors arising from recent court cases 

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Indexation 
The 2019 formal funding valuation included an allowance for full GMP equalisation / 
indexation within the LGPS.  The rolled forward position to 31 March 2022 therefore 
includes this allowance.  
The further ruling in respect of historical transfers is unlikely to be significant in terms of 
impact on the pension obligations of a typical Employer, and as a result no allowance 
has been made for this 
McCloud - An allowance was added to the 2019 valuation results, so the impact is 
continued to be included within the balance sheet at 31 March 2022 
Goodwin - Whilst there is still uncertainty surrounding the potential remedy to this 
judgement, the actuary has carried out some approximate analysis across their LGPS 
clients to understand the potential impact of implementing a solution to correct the past 
underpayment of spouses’ benefits. The approximate impact of this is very small for a 
typical Fund (c. 0.1 - 0.2 per cent of obligations), and therefore there are not sufficient 
grounds to apply an additional adjustment to account for this. 

Page 147



Page 127 of 163 

Note 36 - Contingent Liabilities 
Oxfordshire County Council Bond 
Cherwell District Council issued a Bond to the sum of £22m to Oxfordshire County 
Council in December 2019 on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary, Graven Hill Village 
Development Company Ltd (GHVDC), relating to GHVDC’s obligations under the 
Section 106 Agreement for payment of contributions and direct delivery of a primary 
school.   
In March 2021 Cherwell District Council issued a Bond for a Land sale deposit to the 
value of £3.73m starting in March 2021 with a full release in September 2022. And in 
August 2021 another Bond was issued under the Section 278 Agreement for the A41 
roundabout for the sum of £2.12m.  
The total Bond sum Cherwell District Council has issued to Oxfordshire County Council 
on behalf of its wholly owned subsidiary, Graven Hill Village Development Company Ltd 
(GHVDC), relating to GHVDC’s obligations is £27.85m.  

Note 37 - Contingent Assets 
VAT Share 
When the Council sold their housing stock an agreement was put in place so that they 
would be party to any input VAT refund received by the third party responsible for 
repairs and maintenance work. These amounts relate to the refurbishment of the 
properties sold to bring them up to the required standard. It is expected that a flow of 
economic benefit will occur in the future, however the value and timing is less certain.  

Page 148



Page 128 of 163 

Collection Fund Accounts 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22

Business 
Rates 

Council 
Tax 

Total Collection Fund Business 
Rates 

Council 
Tax 

Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 Income: £'000 £'000 £'000 
(110,800) (110,800) Council Tax Receivable (117,468) (117,468) 

(42,898) (42,898) Business Rates Receivable (75,829) (75,829) 
(376) 0 (376) Transitional Protection Payments

Receivable (188) 0 (188) 

(43,275) (110,800) (154,075) Total Income (76,017) (117,468) (193,485) 
Expenditure: 
Contribution to Previous Year's 
estimated Surplus/Deficit: 

2,513 2,513 Central Government (29,009) (29,009) 
2,011 304 2,314 Cherwell District Council (23,207) 12 (23,195) 

503 1,994 2,497 Oxfordshire County Council (5,802) 81 (5,721) 
280 280 Thames Valley Police and Crime 

Commissioner 11 11 

Precepts, demands and shares: 
48,011 48,011 Central Government 47,371 47,371 
38,409 12,797 51,206 Cherwell District Council 37,897 13,154 51,051 
9,602 84,864 94,467 Oxfordshire County Council 9,474 87,490 96,964 

0 12,016 12,016 Thames Valley Police and Crime 
Commissioner 0 12,863 12,863 
Charges to Collection Fund: 0 

(35) 413 378 Write-offs of uncollectable amounts 239 13 252 
607 (137) 470 Increase/(decrease) in allowance

for impairment 797 (87) 710

4,089 4,089 Increase/(decrease) in allowance 
for appeals 4 4 

232 232 Charge to General Fund for 
allowable collection costs for non-
domestic rates 

235 235 

Other transfers to General Fund 
in accordance with non-domestic 
rates regulations 

0 0 

491 491 Renewable Energy 495 495 
106,432 112,533 218,965 Total Expenditure 96,512 113,537 152,031 

63,157 1,732 64,890 Movement on Fund Balance (37,523) (3,931) (41,454) 
(4,251) (2,965) (7,216) Balance at the beginning of the 

Year 58,907 (1,233) 57,674 

58,907 (1,233) 57,674 Balance at the end of the Year 21,384 (5,164) 16,220 
Shares of Balance 

29,453 29,453 Central Government 10,692 10,692 
23,563 (143) 23,420 Cherwell District Council 8,553 (595) 7,958
5,891 (950) 4,941 Oxfordshire County Council 2,138 (3,984) (1,845) 

0 (140) (140) Thames Valley Police and Crime
Commissioner 0 (585) (585)

58,907 (1,233) 57,674 Total 21,384 (5,164) 16,220 

Page 149



Page 129 of 163 

Notes (1 – 4) to the Collection Fund 

Note 1. General 

This account represents the statutory requirement for billing authorities to maintain a 
separate Collection Fund, which shows the transactions of the billing authority in 
relation to Non-Domestic Rates, council tax and the distribution to the major preceptors 
and the General Fund. The account is consolidated with other accounts of the Council. 
In 2013/14 there was a change to the method for distributing and accounting for 
business rates income. Prior to 1 April 2013 Non-Domestic Rates were collected by the 
Council and then completely paid over to the Government, who then redistributed these 
sums across the country in the form of the Non-Domestic rates grant.  
From 1 April 2013 Business Rates Retention applies, whereby local authorities Cherwell 
District Council (40 per cent) and Oxfordshire County Council (10 per cent) retain 50 per 
cent of the business rates collected for the area and pay the remaining 50 per cent to 
central government. In addition, the government has set a level of business rates 
funding deemed to be applicable to each area and every Council receives a top-up (if 
business rates collected are below this deemed level of funding) or pays a tariff (if 
business rates collected are above this deemed level of funding). 
With the introduction of business rates retention if a local authority increases its 
business rates base, and thereby increases its business rate income, it is allowed to 
retain a proportion of this increased income, whilst paying up to a maximum of 50 per 
ent across to central government. This payment where it occurs is known as a levy 
payment. However, as Cherwell District Council is part of a business rates pool, the levy 
is distributed to the members as per the pooling arrangements with 0.71 per cent paid to 
central government as a levy payment. 

Note 2. Business Rates 

Business Rates is a local tax that is paid by the occupiers of all non-domestic/business 
property.  
Business rates are calculated and collected by the Council. The Government specifies 
an amount (51.2p in 2021/22; 49.9p for small businesses) and, subject to the effects of 
transitional arrangements, local businesses pay NNDR calculated by multiplying their 
rateable value by that amount. The income raised in Cherwell is distributed between 
Cherwell District Council, Oxfordshire County Council and Central Government in line 
with the distribution rules set out in Business Rates legislation. 
NNDR income was £76.0m in 2021/22. The rateable value for the Council’s area was 
£234.9 m at 31 March 2021 VOA valuation (2020/21: £231.7m).  

Page 150



Page 130 of 163 

Note 3.  Provision for Un-collectable Amounts 

Provision has been made within the accounts for un-collectable amounts based on 
guidelines. At the end of 2021/22 the accumulated provision for bad debts stood at 
£3.938m (£3.229m for 2020/21) made up as follows: 

31-Mar-21
£'000 

Provision for Uncollectable Amounts 31-Mar-22
£'000 

984 Non-Domestic Rates 1,781 
2,245 Council Tax 2,157 
3,229 Total Provision 3,938 

Note 4.  Council Tax Base 

The Council tax Base, for tax setting purposes, is calculated by reference to the number 
of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band, adjusted for dwellings where discounts 
apply, and adjustments made for exempt properties and anticipated amendments.  This 
is then converted to an equivalent number of band D dwellings which is the amount the 
authority estimates would be collected if a tax of £1 is set.   
The figures for 2021/22 are: 

Band Estimated equivalent no. 
of taxable properties 
after effect of discounts 

Ratio Band D Equivalent Dwellings 

A 3,970 6/9ths 2,647 

B 12,274 7/9ths 9,546 

C 15,632 8/9ths 13,895 

D 10,558 9/9ths 10,558 

E 7,829 11/9ths 9,569 

F 3,846 13/9ths 5,555 

G 2,561 15/9ths 4,268 

H 229 18/9ths 458 

Totals 56,899 56,496 

Adjustment for non- collection (-2.0 per cent) (1,130) 

Contribution from MOD Properties 250 

Council Tax Base 2021/22 55,616 

Council Tax Base 2020/21 55,560 

Page 151



Page 131 of 163 

The Council tax payable at each band is shown below. This does not include parishes. 

Band Multiplier Cherwell 
Council 

Oxfordshire 
County 
Council 

Thames Valley 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

Total 
 £s 

A 6/9ths 92.33 1,048.74 154.19 1,295.26 

B 7/9ths 107.72 1,223.53 179.88 1,511.13 

C 8/9ths 123.11 1,398.32 205.58 1,727.01 

D 9/9ths 138.50 1,573.11 231.28 1,942.89 

E 11/9ths 169.28 1,922.69 282.68 2,374.65 

F 13/9ths 200.06 2,272.27 334.07 2,806.40 

G 15/9ths 230.83 2,621.85 385.47 3,238.15 

H 18/9ths 277.00 3,146.22 462.56 3,885.78 

Page 152



 

Page 132 of 163 
 

Group Accounts and Explanatory Notes  

Introduction 

The purpose of the Group Accounts is to provide a picture of Cherwell District Council’s 
and the group of companies and other entities, which are either controlled or are 
significantly influenced by the Council.  The Group Accounts show the full extent of the 
Authority’s wider assets and liabilities.  While the Group Accounts are not the primary 
statement, they provide transparency and enable comparison with other entities that 
have different corporate entities. 
The Group Accounts include the following: 

• Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – summarises the 
resources that have been generated and consumed in providing services and 
managing the Group during the year.  It includes all day-to-day expenses and 
related income on an accruals basis. 

• Group Movement in Reserves – shows the movement in the year on the 
Council’s single entity usable and unusable reserves together with the 
Council’s share of the Group expenses. 

• Group Balance Sheet – reports the Council Group financial position at the 
year-end. 

• Group Cash Flow Statement – shows the changes in cash and cash 
equivalents of the Group during the year.  The statement shows how the 
Group generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying 
cashflows as operating, financing and investing activities. 

• Notes to the Group Accounts where the balances are materially different to 
those in the single entity accounts. 

Results of the Subsidiaries 

The following notes provide additional details about the Authority’s involvement in the 
entities consolidated to form the group accounts. 
During 2021/22 CSN Resources Ltd., which had previously been consolidated in the 
group accounts, entered voluntary liquidation. As a result, the company has not been 
consolidated in the 21/22 group accounts as the company’s accounts made up to the 
liquidation date are not material to the group. Opening balances have been adjusted 
where appropriate. 

  

Page 153



 

Page 133 of 163 
 

Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd 
The company is a holding company and does not trade.  The council holds 100 per cent 
of the shares in the company.  The council has dominant control of the company by 
virtue of guaranteed majority voting rights on the board.  The board consists of 
Councilors and Officers who are appointed by the council.  It is intended that the 
company will continue as a holding company for the foreseeable future.  The company 
borrows from the Council and onward lends funds to its subsidiary company, Graven 
Hill Village Development Company Ltd.     
For 2020/21, the company’s results showed a loss of £0.026m (£0.026m loss in 
2020/21), and net assets of £34.338m (2020/21: £31.769m).  Loans outstanding owed 
to the group total £12.234m (2020/21: £12.234m).   
A full copy of the company’s accounts can be obtained from the Directors, Graven Hill 
Village Holding Company Ltd, Graven Hill Site Office, Building E25, Graven Hill Road, 
Bicester, OX25 2BF. 

Graven Hill Village Development Company Ltd 
The company is a subsidiary of Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd.  The holding company 
holds 99 per cent of the shares and the council holds 1 per cent.  The council has 
dominant control of the company by virtue of its control of the holding company.  The 
board consists of the Councillors, Officers and appropriately experienced non-executive 
directors.  The principal activity of the company during the period was that of a property 
development company.  The development company has a subsidiary, Graven Hill 
Village Management Company Ltd, for residents’ property management. 
For 2020/21, the company’s results showed a surplus of £2.944m (2020/21: £1.311m), 
and net assets of £36.999m (2020/21: £31.459m).  Loans outstanding from the group to 
the company total £58.685m (2020/21: £48.555m). 
A full copy of the company’s accounts can be obtained from the Directors, Graven Hill 
Village Development Company Ltd, Graven Hill Site Office, Building E25, Graven Hill 
Road, Bicester, OX25 2BF. 

Graven Hill Management Company Ltd 
Graven Hill Village Management Company Ltd is a subsidiary of Graven Hill Village 
Development Company which manages the property retained within the group.  There 
was no activity for the company in this financial year. 

Graven Hill Management Company Block E Ltd 
Graven Hill Village Management Company Block E is a subsidiary of Graven Hill Village 
Development Company which manages the property at the Block E apartments.  The 
only activity for the company in this financial year relates to administrative expenses 
resulting in a loss for the year of £0.047m (2020/21: £0.029m; not trading) and net 
liability of £0.076m (2020/21: £0.028m). 
  

Page 154



 

Page 134 of 163 
 

Crown House Banbury Ltd 
The company was purchased in Aug 2017.  The principal activity of the company during 
the period was that of a property development company.  The council holds 100 per 
cent of the shares in the company.  The council has dominant control of the company by 
virtue of guaranteed majority voting rights on the board.  The board consists of 
Councillors and Officers who are appointed by the council.   
For 2020/21, the company’s results showed a loss of £0.324m (2020/21: £0.680m), and 
net liabilities of £3.846m (2020/21: £3.522m).  The value of loans outstanding from the 
council calculated using the Effective Interest Rate method total £11.744m (2020/21: 
£11.184m). 
A full copy of the company’s accounts can be obtained from the Directors, Crown House 
Banbury Ltd, Bodicote House, White Post Lane, Bodicote OX15 4AA. 

Crown Apartments Banbury Ltd  
The company is a subsidiary of Crown House Banbury Ltd which manages the 
residential property.  For 2021/22, the company’s results showed a loss of £0.007m 
(2020/21 £0.012m) and net liabilities of £0.031m (2020/21 £0.024m). 

Summary of Group 

Company Name Date of Incorporation / 
Acquisition 

Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd 25 Jun 2014 

Graven Hill Village Development Company Ltd 25 Jun 2014 

Crown House Banbury Ltd 4 Aug 2017 

Graven Hill Village Management Company Ltd 26 Feb 2018 

Crown Apartments Banbury Ltd 7 Jun 2018 

Graven Hill Village Management Company Block E 3 Oct 2018 

 
  

Page 155



 

Page 135 of 163 
 

Group Year 
Ending  

31-Mar-21 
£000  

Group Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement 

Group Year 
Ending 

 31-Mar-22 
£000 

(2,450) Adults and Housing Services (3,575) 

8,812 Comm Dev Assets and Invests 28,705 

7,719 Cust and Org Dev & Resources 8,184 

23,761 Environment & Place 21,883 

1,881 Public Health and Wellbeing 2,907 

39,722 Cost of Services 58,104 
     

6,776 Other Operating Expenditure 6,362 

17,111 Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure 18,311 

257 Movement in the fair value of investment 
properties 0 

(43,411) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (50,747) 
     

20,455 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 
Services 32,031 

     

2,963 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of property, 
Plant and Equipment (4,311) 

0 Impairment losses on non-current assets 
charged to the revaluation reserve 0 

0 Surplus or deficit on revaluation of available 
for sale financial assets 0 

23,517 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit 
liability / asset (26,718) 

26,480 Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure (31,029) 

     

46,935 Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure 1,002 

  

Page 156



 

Page 136 of 163 
 

Group Movement in Reserves Statement 

  
General 

Fund 
Balance 

Earmarked 
General 

Fund 
Reserves 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 

Capital 
Receipts  

Un-
applied 

Account 

Total 
Usable 

Reserves 
Unusable 
Reserves 

Total 
Reserves 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Opening Balance at 
31 March 2021         

As previously stated 6,917 (52,885) (79) (676) (46,724) 53,287 6,563 

Adjustment re CSN* 353 0 0 0 353 0 353 

Restated Balance at 
1 April 2021 7270 (52,885) (79) (676) (46,370) 53,287 6,917 

Movement in 
Reserves during 
2021/22 

       

Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 

32,031 0 0 0 32,031 0 32,031 

Other Comprehensive 
Income / Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 (31,029) (31,029) 

Total 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 

32,031 0 0 0 32,031 (31,029) 1,002 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations 

(19,805) 0 (21) (7,272) (27,098) 27,098 0 

Net Increase or 
Decrease before 
Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 

12,226 0 (21) (7,272) 4,933 (3,931) 1,002 

Transfers to / from 
Earmarked Reserves (12,978) 12,978 0 0 0 0 0 

(Increase) or 
Decrease in 2021/22 (752) 12,978 (21) (7,272) 4,933 (3,931) 1,002 

Closing Balance at 
31 March 2022 6,518 (39,907) (100) (7,948) (41,437) 49,357 7,920 

* As CSN Resources and CSN Associates are no longer consolidated in the group, the opening reserve 
balance in relation to these has been removed  

Page 157



 

Page 137 of 163 
 

Group Movement in 
Reserves Statement 
(restated) 

General 
Fund 
Balance 
£000  

Earmarked 
General 
Fund 
Reserves 
£000 

Capital 
Receipts 
Reserve 
£000 

Capital 
Receipts  
Un-
applied 
Account 
£000 

Total 
Usable 
Reserves 
£000 

Unusable 
Reserves 
£000 

Total 
Reserves 
£000 

Opening Balance at 
31 March 2020 
(restated)               

-As previously stated 
8,663 (26,381) 0 (165) (17,883) (17,116) (35,000) 

-Prior year adjustment 
re CDC PY         0 (5,373) (5,373) 

Restated Balance at 
1 April 2020 8,663 (26,381) 0 (165) (17,883) (22,489) (40,372) 

Movement in 
Reserves during 
2020/21 

              

Surplus or deficit on 
the provision of 
services 

20,455 0 0 0 20,455 0 20,455 

Other Comprehensive 
Income / Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 26,480 26,480 

Total 
Comprehensive 
Income and 
Expenditure 

20,455 0 0 0 20,455 26,480 46,935 

Adjustments between 
accounting basis and 
funding basis under 
regulations 

(48,705) 0 (79) (511) (49,295) 49,295 0 

Net Increase or 
Decrease before 
Transfers to 
Earmarked Reserves 

(28,250) 0 (79) (511) (28,840) 75,775 46,935 

Transfers to / from 
Earmarked Reserves 26,504 (26,504) 0 0 0 0 0 

(Increase) or 
Decrease in 2020/21 (1,746) (26,504) (79) (511) (90) 75,775 46,935 

Closing Balance at 
31 March 2021 6,917 (52,885) (79) (676) (46,724) 53,287 6,563 

  

Page 158



 

Page 138 of 163 
 

Group Balance Sheet   

31 March 2021 
£000   

31 March 2022 
£000 

161,958 Property, Plant & Equipment 123,881 
52,783 Investment Property 67,830 
2,282 Intangible Assets 2,431 

0 Assets held for sale 0 
1,111 Long Term Investments 1,110 
1,194 Long Term Debtors 5,945 

219,328 Long Term Assets 201,197 
     

31,028 Short Term Investments 46,254 
73,367 Inventories 71,872 
49,232 Short Term Debtors 18,620 
22,024 Cash and Cash Equivalents  31,822 
175,650 Current Assets 168,568 

     

(82,584) Short Term Borrowing (87,605) 
(71,161) Short Term Creditors (51,999) 
(1,432) Provisions (277) 
(8,612) Grants Receipts in Advance - Revenue (19,606) 
(777) Grants Receipts in Advance - Capital (1,485) 

(164,566) Current Liabilities (160,972) 
     

(7,250) Provisions (8,409) 
(102,000) Long Term Borrowing (112,000) 
(95,654) Pension Liability (76,808) 
(5,345) Long Term Creditors (1,599) 
(4,174) Grants Receipts in Advance - Revenue (4,958) 
(22,555) Grants Receipts in Advance - Capital (12,941) 

(236,978) Long Term Liabilities (216,715) 
     

(6,565) Net Assets / (Liabilities) (7,920) 
     

(46,724) Useable Reserves (41,435) 
53,287 Unusable Reserves 49,356 
6,564 Total Reserves 7,920 

  

Page 159



 

Page 139 of 163 
 

Group Cashflow 

2020/21 
£’000 Group Cash Flow Statement  Note 2021/22 

£’000 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activities     
18,673 Net (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services   29,733 

       

(3,186) Depreciation & Impairment 14 (3,391) 
(4,721) Changes in Market Value of Property, Plant & Equipment 14 (20,718) 

(367) Amortisation of Intangible Assets 16 (498) 
(18,044) Changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties 15 (17,782) 
(2,042) Disposal of Assets 14 (558) 

5,244 Changes in Inventory 18 724 
25,058 Changes in Short Term Debtors (decrease) 19 (25,057) 

(26,412) Changes in Short Term Creditors (increase) 22 13,313 
(1,677) Changes in Provisions (increase) 23 (4) 

0 Changes in Deferred Capital Receipts   0 
(22,884) Changes in Net Pension Liability (decrease) 37 18,846 

23,108 Remeasurement of Net Defined Benefit Liability 37 (26,718) 
(9,654) Changes in Long Term Creditors (increase) 17 (707) 

5,703 Changes in Long Term Debtors (decrease) 17 9,309 
13,056 Capital Grants Recognised 31 18,954 
2,089 Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment 24 1,338 
3,945 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities   (3,215) 

       

  Cash Flows from Investing Activities    
40,764 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment 14 14,895 
6,056 Purchase of Investment Property 15 212 
1,146 Purchase of Intangible Assets 16 647 

(2,089) Proceeds from the Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 24 (1,338) 
0 Other payments and receipts from investing activities   0 

17,980 Net Changes in Short Term and Long Term Investments (decrease) 17 20,419 
63,856 Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities   34,835 

       

  Cash Flows from Financing Activities    
(11,266) Changes in Grants and Contributions 29 (2,872) 
(8,000) Issued share capital   (5,192) 

(13,056) Capital Grants and Contributions Recognised 29 (18,954) 
(43,077) Cash Receipts of Short Term and Long Term Borrowing 17 (15,021) 

0 Any other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash 
flows   0 

0 Changes in Council Tax and Business Rates Collected for Third    Parties 10 0 
(75,399) Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities   (42,039) 

       

(7,597) Net (Increase)/Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Period   (10,419) 
       

14,426 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period*   21,404 
       

22,024 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period   31,823 

*The opening Cash and Cash Equivalents for 21/22 has been adjusted for CSN no longer being 
consolidated  

Page 160



 

Page 140 of 163 
 

Note 1 Accounting Policies of for the Group 

The Group Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 
The Council has consolidated its interests in all the entities over which it exercises 
control or significant influence.  Graven Hill Holding Company Ltd, Graven Hill 
Development Company Ltd and Crown House Banbury Ltd have been 
consolidated because together they are material to the Council’s balance sheet. 
Where group entities use different accounting policies to the Council, their 
accounts have been restated to re-align their accounting policies with those of the 
Council where the effect of not doing so would be material to the reader’s 
interpretation of the accounts. 
Intra-group transactions have been eliminated before consolidation on a line by 
line basis. 

  

Page 161



 

Page 141 of 163 
 

Note 2 Group Property Plant and Equipment 
 Movements to 31 March 2022 

La
nd

 a
nd

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

R
ev

is
ed

 

Ve
hi

cl
es

 P
la

nt
 &

 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

A
ss

et
s 

Su
rp

lu
s 

A
ss

et
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 A

ss
et

s 

A
ss

et
s 

un
de

r 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

R
ev

is
ed

 

To
ta

l P
ro

pe
rty

, P
la

nt
 

an
d 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t 
R

ev
is

ed
 

Cost or Valuation  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Opening Balance at 1 April 
2021 

102,311 14,556 5,556 15 38 57,091 179,567 

Additions 442 4,287 0 61 0 10,105 14,895 
Acc Dep & Imp WO to GCA (3,774) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,774) 
Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve 

2,152 0 0 0 0 2,160 4,311 

Revaluation 
increases/(decreases) 
recognised in the 
Surplus/Deficit on the 
Provision of Services 

3,071 0 0 0 0 (23,789) (20,718) 

Derecognition – disposals (556) (573) 0 0 0 0 (1,129) 

Reclassifications and transfer 1,203 0 0 0 0 (33,819) (32,616) 
Assets reclassified (to)/from 
Held for Sale 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other movements in cost or 
valuation 

585 0 0 0 0 (585) 0 

Closing Balance at 31 March 
2022 

105,435 18,270 5,556 99 15 11,162 140,537 

Accumulated Depreciation 
and Impairment 

       

Balance brought forward (4,394) (10,299) (2,915) 0 0 0 (17,609) 
Depreciation charge (2,287) (918) (186) 0 0 0 (3,391) 
Acc. Depreciation WO to GCA 2,850 0 0 0 0 0 2,850 
Impairment losses/(Reversals) 
recognised in the Revaluation 
Res 

925 0 0 0 0 0 925 

Derecognition – disposals 18 553 0 0 0 0 571 
Assets reclassified (to)/from 
Investment Property 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other movements in 
depreciation and impairment 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Closing Balance at 31 March 
2022 

(2,890) (10,664) (3,101) 0 0 0 (16,655) 

         
Net Book Value        
at 31 March 2022 102,545 7,606 2,455 99 15 11,162 123,882 
at 31 March 2021 97,917 4,257 2,640 15 38 57,091 161,958 

Property, plant and equipment within the Group is measured at current value and revalued 
at least every five years by qualified valuers.  Details of when the Council’s property plant 
and equipment were revalued are shown in Note 14 to the single entity accounts. 

  

Page 162



 

Page 142 of 163 
 

Note 3 Group Inventories 

31-Mar-21 
£’000 

 Inventory 31-Mar-22 
£’000 

23,537 Land 24,502 

49,606 Development Costs 47,117 

224 Stock 253 

73,367 Total Inventories 71,872 
  

Page 163



 

Page 143 of 163 
 

Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 

Introduction 
1. This is Cherwell District Council’s Annual Governance Statement for 

2021/22.  It provides: 

• An opinion on the Council’s governance arrangements from the 
Council’s senior managers and the leader of the Council 

• A review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance 
arrangements during 2021/22; 

• A conclusion in relation to the effectiveness 

• A review of the action plan completed in 2021/22 

• An action plan for 2022/23 

• An annex summarising our governance framework 
The Annual Governance Statement is required by law1 and follows the best 
practice guidance from the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting 
(CIPFA).  This year, as in the previous year, the Statement also highlights the 
governance issues posed by the continuing COVID-19 pandemic.   

Statement of Opinion 
2. It is our opinion that the Council’s governance arrangements in 2021/22 were 

sound and provide a robust platform for achieving the Council’s priorities and 
challenges in 2022/23. It is our opinion that this has remained the case during 
the COVID-19 pandemic; and that despite the challenges posed by this, the 
Council’s governance in dealing with the pandemic and our ability to maintain 
sound governance during the outbreak, has been effective. 

Signatures: 
Signed on behalf of Cherwell District Council: 

             

On (date):       On (date):      

Yvonne Rees, Chief Executive   Cllr Barry Wood, Leader of the Council  

1 Regulation 6(1) (b) of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015  

 

 

Page 164



 

Page 144 of 163 
 

Reviewing our effectiveness during 2021/22 
This review looks at: 

• Effectiveness of our governance – generally and in relation to COVID-
19 

• Conclusion about this effectiveness 

• Internal Audit function during 2021/22 

• Our statutory governance roles 

• Review of actions 2021/22 

• Actions for 2022/23 

• Outline of our governance 

Overview 
3. We have reviewed our overall effectiveness both in general and with regard to 
the COVID-19 pandemic challenges faced and those which we continue to face 
during recovery. 

Generally:   
4. Three of the action points for 2021/22 were completed as outlined in Annex 1, 
with a fourth action relating to the Constitution Review being extended to 31 July 
2022, as agreed by the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee. Specific action 
points for 2022/23 are set out in Annex 2.  

5. The decision to terminate the Section 113 Partnership Agreement will be a main 
focus for the Council. The Joint Officer Transition Working Group will oversee the 
decoupling project to ensure a smooth transition for each authority. The District 
and County Council have agreed to a 6-month termination period, concluding on 
31 August 2022.  

6. Here are some ways in which our governance has proved effective during 
2021/22 

• A return to face-to-face meetings following the relaxation of COVID-19 
restrictions, with a hybrid option, that allowed for the continuation of 
democratic decision making virtually, via MS Teams, but also enabled in 
person debate and voting.  

• Actions within last year’s governance statement were tracked to 
completion with the exception of one where an extension was agreed.  

  

Page 165



 

Page 145 of 163 
 

During COVID-19 
7. Having acted swiftly during the initial outbreak of COVID-19 to meet the demands 
of the pandemic, the Council continued to do so throughout 2021/22. As with the 
previous year the Council remains confident that it has been able to do so without 
compromising good governance and democratic accountability.  
The Council’s reaction benefited from: 

• Clear leadership structure 

• Dedicated Gold and Silver Command structures 

• Partnership working with Oxfordshire County Council 

• Covid-19 risk assessments for our services 

• Flexible and reactive approach. 

• Regular engagement with the administration and Political Group 
Leaders so as to aid transparency of actions being taken 

• Regular and timely communications with councillors, staff and 
stakeholders 

• Continuation of political decision-making with Executive, Council and 
Committees meeting virtually by MS Teams and then reverting to 
physical meetings in May 2021. 

Impact 
8. Lockdown and social distancing rules necessitated democratic decision-making 

be moved to a virtual setting until 6 May 2021.  The Council was able to facilitate 
online decision-making through MS Teams. This also allowed members of the 
public to take part in virtual meetings e.g. for questions and the presentation of 
petitions.  A revised Constitution and protocol ensured the application of the 
Constitution’s key principles of openness, transparency and accountability. The 
councillor constituency voice was also maintained through the designation of a 
specific email address for councillors to raise COVID-19 related issues on behalf of 
their communities. 

9. As restrictions were lifted, the Council returned to face-to-face meetings. These 
meetings have been operated to maintain transparency and accountability whilst 
minimising the risks associated with COVID-19 in 2021/22. The provisions for 
wholly virtual meetings fell away from 6 May 2021 and so democratic meetings 
were required to be held in person. The Council achieved this by managing meeting 
rooms to maintain social distancing and introducing other hygiene measures. The 
provision of ‘hybrid’ meetings meant that officers, councillors, and members of the 
public could contribute remotely as well as in the room. On a very small number of 
occasions, the Council operated ‘quorum-only’ voting where the majority of 
members participated remotely and were represented in votes by those present. 

  

Page 166



 

Page 146 of 163 
 

10. The prolonged impact of COVID-19 required sustained business continuity activity 
to ensure the delivery of services in a largely uninterrupted fashion.  Cherwell 
District Council’s Human Resources and ICT Teams have continued, throughout 
2021/22, to facilitate working from home whilst also assisting staff and Managers 
with the move to hybrid working and the return of some staff to Council offices. 

11. Financial management practices have had to adapt to the prolonged impact of 
COVD-19 on financial management.  A Financial Cell was established as part of 
the COVID-19 response strategy to support related decision making. 

12. Clearly some services, were required to implement additional COVID-19 specific 
processes which will have impacted on normal business for those services, such 
as the Revenues and Benefits team (at CSN Resources until 4 November 2021) 
and Finance. From 5 November 2021 the Council has operated its own internal 
Revenues and Benefits service. The Council had to respond quickly and 
implement new processes in response to the government’s requirement to provide 
COVID-19 grants to qualifying local businesses.  The Council also had to 
introduce discretionary schemes and the associated checks and balances to 
ensure grants were paid to appropriate qualifying businesses in need of support. 

Command structure 
13. The Council’s Gold and Silver Command were put into place and worked well 

during the initial outbreak. The Command structures enabled the Council to keep 
visibility of services and how best to prioritise actions e.g. community and voluntary 
sector co-ordination, the supply of personal protective equipment; the flow of 
communications to support for businesses; and business continuity.  Plugging this 
into the wider regional structures (e.g. Thames Valley Local Resilience Forum) 
ensured the flow of essential information and experience. Regular Gold sessions for 
Oxfordshire’s Chief Executives and Leaders were also an integral part of the 
command structure in co-ordinating our response. Annex 3 is a one-page illustration 
of the Command structure and how it fits within its local and regional setting. 

Beyond COVID-19 
14. The Council’s reaction to the pandemic has fast-tracked the development of key 

governance issues and has continued to do so throughout 2021/22. This has been 
through the safe and reactive deployment of technology (to enable almost 
seamless homeworking and virtual meetings); business continuity awareness and 
practices; working without silos, service-planning becoming more aware of the 
cross-cutting interplay of services; reviewing the portfolio of property; enhanced 
focus on security, wellbeing and health and safety, with the whole pandemic 
management being undertaken jointly through the Gold and Silver command 
structures. 

  

Page 167



 

Page 147 of 163 
 

15. The resource implications of the pandemic posed a challenge for the local 
government sector. The Council’s governance experience of COVID-19, shaped 
future planning as it managed the delivery of quality services and democracy 
under COVID-19 conditions: 

• Use of buildings and remote working 

• Business continuity, risk assessment and project planning 

• Fluidity and accountability of decision making 

• Smart use of technology and digital engagement and solutions 

• Financial management 

16. The Council approved a robust recovery strategy “Restart Recover Renew”.  It 
recognised the opportunity to learn from its experience and to transform its 
services for the better as it moved along the Roadmap. 

Partnership Decoupling 
17. In February 2022, Cherwell District Council and Oxfordshire County Council 

agreed to the required six months’ notice for the termination of the Section 113 
Agreement dated 31 August 2018, governing joint working between the two 
councils.  

18. In order to ensure appropriate separation of decision making and to fully serve the 
interests of each council through the termination process, the councils also agreed 
to separate the statutory roles of Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive), 
Monitoring Officer and Section 151 Officer, with immediate effect. As such, for 
each of these roles, each council has either made an interim appointment or the 
substantive post holder has returned to serving only their employing authority.  

19. In the decision agreeing to terminate the agreement, both councils agreed an 
ongoing role of the Joint Shared Services and Personnel Committee (JSSP) with 
revised terms of reference, to provide suitable oversight and decision-taking 
concerning the termination of the agreement.  

20. A Joint Officer Transition Working Group has been established and a programme 
of due diligence and service reviews is underway, with the aim of keeping the best 
interests of residents at the centre of decision making.  

21. Where appropriate for each council, revised partnership arrangements will remain 
in-place within the framework of new agreements.  

22. Full details of the termination are set out in Council Papers for 7 and 8 February 
2022 for Cherwell District Council and Oxfordshire County Council respectively 
and progress on the ongoing programme of work to terminate the agreement is 
reported monthly meetings of the JSSP. 

  

Page 168

https://mycouncil.oxfordshire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=8287


 

Page 148 of 163 
 

Internal Audit in 2021/22 
23. The 2019 CIPFA Statement on the “Role of the Head of Internal Audit in public 

service organisations” outlines the principles that define the core activities and 
behaviours that belong to the role of the ‘Head of Internal Audit’ and the 
governance requirements needed to support them.  The Council's arrangements 
conform with the governance requirements of the CIPFA statement as our Chief 
Internal Auditor as follows: 

• objectively assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of governance 
and management of risks, giving an evidence-based opinion on all 
aspects of governance, risk management and internal control  

• championing best practice in governance and commenting on 
responses to emerging risks and proposed developments.  

• be a senior manager with regular and open engagement across the 
organisation, particularly with the leadership team and with the audit 
committee  

• lead and direct an internal audit service that is resourced appropriately, 
sufficiently and effectively  

• be professionally qualified and suitably experienced.  

24. The Internal Audit Service operates in accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards (PSIAS). The self-assessment against the standards is 
completed on an annual basis. It is a requirement of the PSIAS for an external 
assessment of internal audit to be completed at least every five years. This is 
next due in 2022.  

25. The Chief Internal Auditor prepared an Annual Report on the work of Internal 
Audit which concludes for the 12 months ended 31 March 2022, there is 
satisfactory assurance regarding Cherwell District Council's overall control 
environment and the arrangements for governance, risk management and 
control. Where weaknesses have been identified through internal audit review, 
they have worked with management to agree appropriate corrective action and 
timescale for improvement. 

26. Where Internal Audit identifies areas for improvement, management action plans 
are in place and are routinely monitored by the Internal Audit team and reported 
to the Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee. Managers are required to provide 
positive assurance that actions have been implemented; performance on 
implementation is high, demonstrating that control weaknesses identified by 
Internal Audit are being addressed on a timely basis. 

  

Page 169



 

Page 149 of 163 
 

Financial Management Code  
27. A key goal of the Financial Management Code of Practice (launched by CIPFA in 

November 2019) is to improve the financial resilience of organisations by 
embedding enhanced standards of financial management. Inevitably, the impact of 
COVID-19 has continued to test that financial resilience in 2021/22 and will do so 
in coming years. Since April 2021 authorities have been expected to work towards 
full compliance of the FM Code.  There are clear links between the Financial 
Management Code and the Governance Framework, particularly with its focus on 
achieving sustainable outcomes.  As such, Annex 5 sets out the outcomes of the 
initial assessment of compliance with the Code. As you will see, the picture is 
positive, with the RAG (Red-Amber-Green) rating of compliance showing as Green 
for all of the 19 standards.  A column showing ‘Further Work’ gives an indication of 
improvements that can be made over the current year.  

Our statutory governance roles 
28. The Council is required to appoint to three specific posts, each of which oversees a 

key aspect of the Council’s governance: 

• Head of the Paid Service (HOPS) role – which is the Council’s Chief 
Executive, Yvonne Rees: how the Council’s functions are delivered, the 
appointment and proper management of staff  

• Monitoring Officer – For most of 2021/22 this was Anita Bradley, 
Director of Law and Governance:  responsible for the Council’s 
Constitution, the lawfulness and integrity of its decision-making and the 
quality of its ethical governance. On 9 February 2022 Shahin Ismail, 
was appointed as Interim Monitoring Officer for Cherwell District 
Council, and as of 1 April 2022, the role of Interim Director of Law & 
Governance passed to her also as part of the Oxfordshire/Cherwell 
partnership decoupling process.   

• ‘Section 151 Officer’ – the Chief Finance Officer, was Lorna Baxter 
until 8 February 2022: responsible for the financial management of the 
authority. From 9 February 2022, this role passed to Michael Furness, 
Assistant Director for Finance. 

29. Each of the postholders is an integral member of the Council’s corporate leadership 
team (CLT). As such, they are fully sighted on all of the Council’s objectives, 
workstreams and emerging plans; and their perspectives and voices continue to be 
heard in, and to influence, this senior forum.  

30. The Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer both have open access to the 
Chief Executive at all times. They carry a statutory responsibility to report issues to 
Full Council, if needed. As such, the posts remain pivotal to the Council’s good 
governance.   

  

Page 170



 

Page 150 of 163 
 

Governance Actions – Review of 2021/22 and priorities for 
2022/23 
31. The following two annexes summarise: 

• Annex 1: updates on the priority actions for 2021/22 

• Annex 2: actions identified for 2022/23 
32. The Actions for 2021/22 in Annex 1 highlight certain aspects of emerging 

governance that might not otherwise be apparent from work regularly reported to 
the Council’s Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee. As such, progress reports on 
these actions are reported to the Committee through the year.  
 
The Actions for 2022/23 in Annex 2 will be monitored by the Corporate 
Governance Assurance Group, or any successor governance framework following 
the conclusion of the decoupling project, and the Accounts, Audit and Risk 
Committee. 

 
33. Other governance and audit activity across the Council will continue to be reported 

to Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee through its normal work programmes 

Governance in Outline 
34. Annex 4 sets out the Council’s governance framework in outline. This was updated 

in March 2022, following a review by the Corporate Governance Assurance Group 
and Extended Leadership Team (ELT). 

 
  

Page 171

https://modgov.cherwell.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=118


 
 

Page 151 of 163 
 

Annex 1 – Significant governance issues  
Actions identified for 2021/22 - Update 
35. This is a review of the progress during 2021/22 on the priorities for that year.  

The actions identified were completed in-year 

Actions that were planned for 
2021/22 

Original 
Timescale 

Outcome 

To develop an OCC/CDC 
Procurement Strategy and 
OCC/CDC Social Value Policy with 
CEDR fully sighted on both 
documents. Ensure all staff are fully 
briefed and trained on the content 
and their respective obligations. 
 

• The new Provision Cycle Hub 
and Spoke functional model 
will fully define contract 
management accountability 
across the Councils. To help 
fulfil this accountability the 
council will enhance its 
contract management systems 
and processes and provide a 
training programme to support 
contract management skills 
improvement. 
 

The electronic Contract and 
Supplier Management System 
(eCMS) functionality has been 
enhanced and will continue to be 
reviewed as part of the Provision 
Cycle transformation programme. 
 
 
 
  

• This will include an 
improvement plan with the 
expectation to develop and 
implement improvements that 

A new joint 
procurement 
strategy will be 
presented to 
CEDR by end July 
2021. 
 
The new Social 
Value Policy, 
including Climate 
Change elements, 
will be presented 
to CEDR by July 
2021.  It will be 
implemented as 
appropriate 
across all tenders 
from July 2021. 
 
All contracts will 
be stored in the 
eCMS to 
demonstrate a 
complete Forward 
Plan in terms of 
current active 
contracts and 
renewal 
timescales.  It will 
be a live 
document driving 
procurement 
engagement 
across all service 
areas.  
 

A Social Value Policy has 
been drafted and was 
reviewed at a meeting of the 
Chief Executive’s Direct 
Reports (CEDR, now the 
Corporate Leadership 
Team, CLT), the Council’s 
senior management team. 
The policy was signed off by 
the Executive Board and 
adopted on 7 February 
2022. 
This will apply to all tenders 
above a certain threshold 
value across Cherwell 
District Council (CDC) and 
will involve the use of the 
third-party supplier Social 
Value Portal, who have 
provided this service for 
many other Councils across 
the UK. There is a degree of 
flexibility to ensure that the 
selected topics for Social 
Value are relevant to that 
particular tender and will 
include elements relating to 
Carbon Net Zero: for 
example, reductions in 
carbon emissions and air 
pollution, ensuring that the 
natural environment is 
safeguarded, and that 
resource efficiency and 
circular economy solutions 
are promoted.  
 

Page 172



 

Page 152 of 163 
 

Actions that were planned for 
2021/22 

Original 
Timescale 

Outcome 

will provide management and 
controls across the full cycle 
of Commissioning, 
Procurement and Contract 
Management. 

 

• This will enable a consistent, 
council-wide approach 
enabling 100% visibility of 
requirements throughout the 
provision cycle, ensuring all 
contracts are effectively 
managed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The procurement strategy is 
in draft format, and will 
presented to CLT in due 
course, once the Social 
Value Strategy has been 
approved.  
The Atamis system 
continues to act as the 
central document repository 
for Procurement. All tenders, 
contracts, and extensions 
are stored within it, enabling 
a Forward Plan to be 
created to identify which 
contracts will be up for 
renewal at what point. A 
detailed update was 
presented to Committee 19 
January 2022. 

Review of post-COVID-19 
governance arrangements: 

• The Corporate Governance 
Assurance Group will 
continue to monitor, support 
and engage with Corporate 
Lead areas so as to ensure 
that they are able to continue 
with effective governance 
arrangements. 
  

• The Corporate Governance 
Assurance Group will 
continue to review the 
Council’s governance, 
including its internal controls, 
policies and transparency 
arrangements. 

 

Ongoing 
throughout 
2021/2022 
 
 
Monthly review by 
Corporate 
Governance 
Assurance Group 
 
Paper to ELT and 
CEDR in Q.2 and 
each Quarter 
thereafter to 
update on 
progress 
 
 
 
Local Code of 
Corporate 
Governance 

The Council’s Corporate 
Governance Assurance 
Group has continued to 
meet monthly to oversee 
governance developments. 
The Group consists of the 
Monitoring Officer together 
with key governance officers 
including the Chief Internal 
Auditor, Assistant Finance 
Directors, Deputy Monitoring 
Officer, the Head of Insight 
and Corporate Programmes 
supported by the Council’s 
governance officers.  
 
 
 
 
 
An emphasis has been on 
closer working with CLT and 
the Extended Leadership 

Page 173



 

Page 153 of 163 
 

Actions that were planned for 
2021/22 

Original 
Timescale 

Outcome 

reviewed by ELT 
in Q2 for 
consideration by 
Accounts, Audit 
and Risk 
Committee in 
September or 
November. 
 
Report to 
Accounts, Audit 
and Risk 
Committee at 
September, 
November, 
January and 
March meetings 
on emerging 
governance 
issues post-
Covid-19. 
 
 

Team (ELT), that is, CLT 
plus their direct senior 
manager reports, particularly 
in the development of a 
revised Local Code of 
Corporate Governance. A 
report on the purpose of the 
Code was taken to ELT in 
the summer. In the 
meantime, a Local Code of 
Corporate Governance has 
been drafted with the 
oversight of CGAG and with 
input from ELT 
representatives. CLT have 
reviewed the Code ahead of 
Committee being invited to 
comment on the draft on 25 
May 2022.  

Unlike the Annual 
Governance Statement, 
there is no statutory 
requirement for a Local 
Code of Corporate 
Governance. Rather, the 
Code complements and 
underpins the Annual 
Governance Statement by 
demonstrating, with 
evidence, how the Council 
meets the good governance 
principles set out in the 
Good Governance 
Framework published by the 
Chartered Institute of 
Finance and Accountancy.  
CGAG has worked with 
ELT, and then with CLT, to 
bring forward a draft Annual 
Governance Statement for 
2021/22, which will then be 
brought to Committee on 25 
May 2022.  
The Council has also 
overseen the return to 
physical settings of the 

Page 174



 

Page 154 of 163 
 

Actions that were planned for 
2021/22 

Original 
Timescale 

Outcome 

formal democratic decision-
making meetings of the 
Council, fully compliant with 
public health advice. This 
has been achieved while 
also retaining the virtual 
engagement from the public 
as well as webcasting of 
meetings, with the option for 
the public to attend in 
person.  
Additionally, the Council has 
taken steps to commence a 
Constitution Review as 
noted below.  

Constitution Review 
Undertake an Annual Review of the 
Constitution, as agreed by Council 
in 2020, to take place during the 
Autumn 

The Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee to 
agree the scope 
and means of a 
achieving the 
Annual Review of 
the Constitution 
(October 2021). 
Review to take 
place October-
November 
The Scrutiny 
Committee (Nov 
2021) to make 
recommendations 
for any 
substantive 
change to Council 
(December 2021). 
 

The Constitution Working 
Group advised Committee 
that the timescale in which 
to produce an updated 
Constitution that is fit for 
purpose and understandable 
would not be achievable 
within the initial anticipated 
timescale of 31 March 2022. 
Committee agreed to extend 
the deadline for the review 
until July 2022. 
Update to be provided to 
Committee in due course. 

  

Page 175



 

Page 155 of 163 
 

Financial Management 
Implement budget monitoring that 
considers balance sheet items 
including reserves and 
outstanding debt 

Begin monitoring 
of balance sheet 
items in Period 2 
of 2021/22. 
As the closedown 
process finishes 
enhance the 
process 
throughout the 
year. 

The Council has introduced 
monthly monitoring of its 
reserves with changes in the 
budgeted use of earmarked 
reserves and/or general 
balances requiring approval 
by the Executive. This offers 
the Council far greater 
understanding of its 
reserves position and the 
affordability of agreeing to 
the additional use of 
reserves. 
Additionally, the Council has 
begun to monitor its aged 
debt position on a quarterly 
basis. This allows the 
Council to understand 
whether it is collecting the 
debt it is raised on a timely 
basis. The introduction of 
this monitoring has resulted 
in a review of the aged debt 
the Council holds to identify 
how collectible the debt is. 

  

Page 176



 

Page 156 of 163 
 

Annex 2 – Significant Governance Issues  
Actions identified for 2022/23 

Item Action now planned for 2022/23 Timescale for 
Completion 

Responsible 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Body 

1 
 
 
 

Cherwell-Oxfordshire Decoupling 
Programme 

• Joint Shared 
Services and 
Personnel 
Committee (JSSP) 
with revised terms of 
reference, to provide 
suitable oversight 
and decision-taking 
concerning the 
termination of the 
agreement.  

• A Joint Officer 
Transition Working 
Group will oversee a 
programme of due 
diligence and 
service reviews is 
underway, with the 
aim of keeping the 
best interests of 
residents at the 
centre of decision 
making.  

• Where appropriate for each 
council, revised partnership 
arrangements will remain in-
place within the framework of 
new agreements.  

 

31 August 2022 
 
 

Nathan 
Elvery, Interim 
Corporate 
Director, 
Communities 
and Chief 
Operating 
Officer  
 

Corporate 
Leadership 
Team (CLT) 
and 
Accounts, 
Audit and 
Risk 
Committee 
(AARC) 
 

2 
 
 
 

Schemes of Delegation 
• The Council has implicit 

schemes of delegation 
(authorisation limits) within its 
Unit 4 financial system.  
 
However, these schemes of 
delegation are not formally 
codified within the constitution or 
delegated down from Corporate 

November 2022 Shahin Ismail, 
Interim 
Monitoring 
Officer, and 
Michael 
Furness, 
Assistant 
Director of 
Finance 

AARC 

Page 177



 

Page 157 of 163 
 

  

Directors to specific grades of 
officer. 

• It is acknowledged that the 
monitoring officer will need to 
carry out a review of the 
schemes of delegation as part of 
the Constitution Review. This will 
be addressed as part of the 
constitutional work required on 
de-coupling its arrangements 
with Oxfordshire County Council 

 

3 Constitution Review 
• The Constitution Working 

Group advised Committee that 
the timescale in which to 
produce an updated 
Constitution that is fit for 
purpose and understandable 
would not be achievable within 
the initial anticipated timescale 
of 31 March 2022. 

• Committee agreed to extend 
the deadline for the review until 
July 2022. 

• Update to be provided to 
Committee in due course. 

 

31 July 2022 
 

Shahin Ismail, 
Interim 
Monitoring 
Officer 

AARC 

Page 178



 
 

Page 158 of 163 
 

Annex 3 – Covid-19 Command and Control Structure 

P
age 179



 
 

Page 159 of 163 
 

Annex 4 – Overview of Corporate Governance Assurance Framework

 

P
age 180



 

Page 160 of 163 
 

 

Annex 5 – Summary Financial Management Code Assessment 
Ref CIPFA Financial Management Standards Current Status Further Work Status 
1.Responsibilities of the CFO and Leadership Team 
A The leadership team is able to demonstrate 

that the services provided by the authority 
provide value for money 

All services reviewed to ensure being 
delivered efficiently and appropriate 
savings identified. 
All tenders consider VfM by considering 
the quality of service and not just price.   

Develop a statement of how 
proposals in Executive Reports 
will deliver value for money 
where appropriate 

 

B The authority complies with the CIPFA 
“Statement of the Role of the CFO in Local 
Government” 

The CFO is qualified accountant with 
significant experience working as an 
active member of the leadership team.  
The CFO is a member of CEDR (Chief 
Executive Direct Reports) and has an 
influential role with members of the 
Cabinet, Audit & Governance Committee 
and lead opposition members. 

Set out clear statement of roles 
and responsibilities of CFO, 
CEDR and the Exec. 

 

2. Governance and Financial Management 
Style 

   

C The Leadership Team demonstrates in its 
actions and behaviours responsibility for 
governance and internal control 

The Corporate Governance and 
Assurance Group (CGAG) exists to 
ensure good governance and internal 
control, including driving the production of 
the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 
and Action Plan through the completion 
of Professional Lead Statements and 
engagement with Corporate Directors. 

CGAG to continue to establish 
itself and enhance its workload 
including driving consistency 
across the partnership between 
the County Council and CDC. 

 

P
age 181



 

Page 161 of 163 
 

D The authority applies the CIPFA/SOLACE 
“Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government: Framework (2016)” 

Annual Governance Statement includes 
audit opinion on effectiveness of internal 
control environment and systems of 
internal control. 

Continue to enhance and 
develop the AGS through CGAG. 

 

E The Financial Management style of the 
authority supports financial sustainability 

The Council has adopted a Business 
Partnering model that supports managers 
to deliver financially sustainable services 
by providing strategic advice and support.  
This is underpinned by a Corporate 
Function that manages the strategic 
financing issues and provides the budget 
setting and accounting framework for the 
organisation.   

Continue to develop the skills of 
managers to ensure that they 
have access to performance and 
financial information that enables 
them to deliver services that are 
financially sustainable. 

 

3. Long to Medium-Term Financial 
Management 

   

F The authority has carried out a credible and 
transparent financial resilience assessment 

A Financial Resilience assessment is 
included within the Budget Documents.  
The assessment is consistent with the 
Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
assumptions.   

  

G The authority understands its prospects for 
financial sustainability in the longer term and 
has reported this clearly to members 

MTFS far more transparent than in 
previous years clearly outlining the 
financial challenges facing CDC in the 
Budget and Business Planning Process 
2021/22 – 2025/26 Report 

Continue to update CEDR and 
the Executive throughout year 
and within Budget/MTFS 
documents 

 

H The authority complies with the CIPFA 
“Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities” 

Capital Strategy is produced.  Quarterly 
Treasury Management monitoring 
considered at the Accounts, Audit and 
Risk Committee. 

Develop a profiled five-year 
capital programme.  Provide 
quarterly TM and Prudential 
Indicator updates as part of 
monitoring reports. 

 

P
age 182



 

Page 162 of 163 
 

I The authority has a rolling multi-year medium-
term financial plan consistent with sustainable 
service plans 

CDC has an Integrated Business 
Planning and Budget Process with a five-
year MTFS. 

Ensure services aware of future 
savings plans committed to and 
savings are implemented. 

 

4. The Annual Budget    
J The authority complies with its statutory 

obligations in respect of the budget setting 
process 

The Council produces its annual 
balanced budget and supporting 
documentation. 
 

  

K The budget report includes a statement by the 
CFO on the robustness of the estimates and a 
statement on the adequacy of the proposed 
financial reserves 

Section 25 report accompanies the suite 
of Budget documents.  Enhanced by 
including an assessment of readiness for 
implementing the FM Code 

  

5. Stakeholder Engagement and Business 
Plans 

   

L The authority has engaged where appropriate 
with key stakeholders in developing its long-
term financial strategy, medium-term financial 
plan and annual budget 

Significant consultation on the budget 
proposals as well as ensuring carry out 
the statutory business rate payers’ 
consultation. 

Continue with corporate and 
directorate consultation where 
appropriate.   
 

 

M The authority uses an appropriate documented 
options appraisal methodology to demonstrate 
the value for money of its decisions 
 

A business case is required for all capital 
schemes which sets out alternative 
options, the reasons for discounting them 
and benefits of progressing with the 
scheme.   
All tenders consider VfM by considering 
the quality of service and not just price – 
the appraisal process is documented. 

Agree consistent business case 
templates from outline through to 
full across the partnership 
between the County Council and 
CDC for both revenue and 
capital schemes. 

 

6. Monitoring Financial Performance    
N The Leadership Team takes action using 

reports enabling it to identify and correct 
emerging risks to its budget strategy and 
financial sustainability 

The monthly Performance, Risk and 
Financial Monitoring Report to Executive 
enables CEDR and Executive to respond 
to emerging risks – the effectiveness was 

The Capital Programme 
monitoring element requires 
enhancement to: 

 

P
age 183



 

Page 163 of 163 
 

evidenced during 2020/21 as the Council 
agreed an in-year budget to respond to 
the financial impact of Covid-19.   

• better reflect performance 
and the delivery of 
outcomes linked to the 
completion of capital 
schemes.  

• Explain differences in in-
year slippage and total 
cost variances 

O The Leadership Team monitors the elements 
of its balance sheet that pose a significant risk 
to financial sustainability 

Reserves and balances are monitored 
monthly and changes in budgeted use 
require appropriate approvals before they 
can be assumed. 
Debtor monitoring takes place quarterly 
identifying aged debt of Council debt.  

Review aged debt to consider 
the collectability of this.   

 

7. External Financial Reporting    
P The CFO has personal and statutory 

responsibility for ensuring that the statement of 
accounts produced by the local authority 
complies with the reporting requirements of the 
“Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom” 

The annual accounts are produced in 
compliance with the CIPFA Code.  

  

Q The presentation of the final outturn figures 
and variations from budget allows the 
leadership team to make strategic financial 
decisions 

CEDR and Executive consider outturn 
report and year end variances enabling 
strategic financial decisions to be made 
as necessary.  

  

 

P
age 184



 

 

 

 Ernst & Young 
FAO: Maria Grindley 
EY 
R+, 2 Balgrave St 
Reading 
RG1 1AZ 
 

    Bodicote House 
   Bodicote 
   Banbury 
   Oxfordshire 
   OX15 4AA 

   www.cherwell.gov.uk 

 

Please ask for: Michael Furness Direct Dial: 01295 221845 

Email: Michael.Furness@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk  Our Ref: Letter of Representations 

 

Dear Maria, 

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the consolidated 
and Council financial statements of Cherwell District Council (“the Group and Council”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2022.  We recognise that obtaining representations from us 
concerning the information contained in this letter is a significant procedure in enabling you 
to form an opinion as to whether the consolidated and Council financial statements give a 
true and fair view of the Group and Council financial position of Cherwell District Council 
as of 31 March 2022 and of its financial performance (or operations) and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with, for the Group and Council CIPFA LASAAC Code 
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (as amended by 
the Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes for Infrastructure Assets 
(November 2022).   

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our consolidated and Council financial 
statements is to express an opinion thereon and that your audit was conducted in 
accordance with International Standards on Auditing, which involves an examination of the 
accounting system, internal control and related data to the extent you considered 
necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily be 
expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist. 

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the 
purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:  

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records  

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the 
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with, for the Group and Council 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (as amended by the 

Appendix 4 

Page 185

mailto:Michael.Furness@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk


 

Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes for Infrastructure Assets 
(November 2022).  

2. We acknowledge, as members of management of the Group and Council, our 
responsibility for the fair presentation of the consolidated and Council financial 
statements.  We believe the consolidated and Council financial statements referred to 
above give a true and fair view of  the financial position, financial performance (or 
results of operations) and cash flows of the Group in accordance with [the CIPFA 
LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2021/22 (as amended by the Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes 
for Infrastructure Assets (November 2022) and are free of material misstatements, 
including omissions.  We have approved the consolidated and Council financial 
statements. 

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group and 
Council financial statements are appropriately described in the Group and Council 
financial statements. 

4. As members of management of the Group and Council, we believe that the Group and 
Council have a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of 
accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice 
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (as amended by the 
Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes for Infrastructure Assets 
(November 2022) for the Group and Council that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. We have disclosed to you any significant changes in our 
processes, controls, policies and procedures that we have made to address the effects 
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the effects of the conflicts and related sanctions in 
Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus on our system of internal controls. 

5. We believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the 
accompanying schedule, accumulated by you during the current audit and pertaining 
to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to 
the consolidated and Council financial statements taken as a whole.  

6. We have not corrected the differences identified and brought to our attention by the 
auditor (see accompanying schedule) because they are not material to the financial 
statements and the entries would be complex.[TBC] 

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud  

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible for determining that the Group and Council’s 
activities are conducted in accordance with laws and regulations and that we are 
responsible for identifying and addressing any non-compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations, including fraud. 

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.  

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the 
consolidated and Council financial statements may be materially misstated as a result 
of fraud.

 

 

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or 
regulations, including fraud that may have affected the Group or Council (regardless of 

Page 186



 

the source or form and including without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), 
including non-compliance matters: 

 involving financial statements; 

 related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of 
material amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements; 

 related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be 
fundamental to the operations of the Group or Council’s activities, its ability to 
continue to operate, or to avoid material penalties; 

 involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal 
controls, or others; or  

 in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance 
with laws and regulations communicated by employees, former employees, 
analysts, regulators or others. 

 

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions 

1. We have provided you with: 

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation 
of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

 Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 
audit; and 

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and all material 
transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the consolidated and Council 
financial statements, including those related to the COVID-19 pandemic and including 
those related to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus. 

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Group, and 
committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not 
yet been prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting on the following 
date: [list date] and of the Council, and committees (or summaries of actions of recent 
meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held through the year to the 
most recent meeting on the following date: [list date].   

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of 
related parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Group and Council’s 
related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are 
aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, 
leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no 
consideration for the year ended, as well as related balances due to or from such 
parties at the year end.  These transactions have been appropriately accounted for 
and disclosed in the consolidated and council financial statements. 

Page 187



 

5. We believe that the methods, significant assumptions and the data we used in making 
accounting estimates and related disclosures are appropriate and consistently applied 
to achieve recognition, measurement and disclosure that is in accordance with the 
applicable financial reporting framework. 

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Group and Council has complied with, all aspects 
of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the consolidated and 
council financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, 
conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt. 

7. From the date of our last management representation letter through the date of this 
letter we have disclosed to you any unauthorized access to our information technology 
systems that either occurred or to the best of our knowledge is reasonably likely to 
have occurred based on our investigation, including of reports submitted to us by third 
parties (including regulatory agencies, law enforcement agencies and security 
consultants) , to the extent that such unauthorized access to our information 
technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact on the Group and 
Council financial statements, in each case or in the aggregate, and ransomware 
attacks when we paid or are contemplating paying a ransom, regardless of the 
amount. 

D. Liabilities and Contingencies 

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether 
written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the 
consolidated and council financial statements.   

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or 
not they have been discussed with legal counsel. 

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to litigation 
and claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note 38 to the 
consolidated and council financial statements all guarantees that we have given to 
third parties. 

E. Going Concern for audits of periods ending on or after dd mmm 2024 

1. Note 1.1 to the consolidated and Council financial statements discloses all the matters 
of which we are aware that are relevant to the Group and Council’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans for future 
action, and the feasibility of those plans. 

F. Subsequent Events  

1. There have been no events, including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, and 
including events related to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or 
Belarus, subsequent to year end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the 
consolidated and Council financial statements or notes thereto. 

G. Group audits  
 

1. Necessary adjustments have been made to eliminate all material intra-group unrealised 
profits on transactions amongst council, subsidiary undertakings and associated 
undertakings. 

Page 188



 

2. The Council has two wholly owned companies that it supports financially via a variety 
of financial arrangements: Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd and Crown House Banbury 
Ltd. These are long term arrangements, to which it will remain committed over the 
medium to longer term. The Council has provided loans to both companies which are 
long term in nature, and through these vehicles will remain committed to financially 
supporting these wholly owned companies over the long term. 

 

 H. Other information 

1.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the Annual Governance Statement. 

2.  We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with 
the financial statements. 

I. Climate-related matters 

1. We confirm that to the best of our knowledge all information that is relevant to the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of climate-related matters has 
been considered, including the impact resulting from the commitments made by the 
Group and Council, and reflected in the consolidated and Council financial statements. 

2. The key assumptions used in preparing the consolidated and Council financial 
statements are, to the extent allowable under the requirements of the applicable 
financial reporting framework, aligned with the statements we have made in the other 
information or other public communications made by us (see section H). 

 

Representations required in specific circumstances 

When the comparative information has been restated in the form of a prior year adjustment 

There were five prior year adjusts: 

1. Investment Property operational income and expenditure. This was a classification 
error. This was incorrectly included within "Other Investment Income & Expenditure" 
line in the Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure, note (11) when it 
should have been in "Income & Expenditure in relation to investment properties and 
changes in their Fair Value" line. This has no impact on the bottom line. 

2. Short term creditors £6,789k - Some balances had been classified as ‘Trade 
Payables’ but should have been ‘Other Payable Amounts’. This has no impact on 
the bottom line. 
 

3. Financial Instruments £56,493k – a. Provisions were being disclosed in the financial 
instruments table, but provisions fall outside the scope of IFRS 9.  
 
b. Non-financial debtors and creditors had been disclosed in the fair value tables 
but again fall outside the scope of IFRS 9. This has no impact on the bottom line. 

 

4. Investment properties £58,000k - Assets had been incorrectly classified as 
Investment properties when they did not fit the criteria of investment properties and 

Page 189



 

should have been shown as PPE. 

Minimum Revenue Provision £8,012k - The minimum revenue provision had been 
calculated using a 50 year asset life for all assets rather than taking into account the 
different lives of asset. 

The comparative amounts have been correctly restated to reflect the above matters and 
appropriate note disclosure of these restatements have also been included in the current 
year's consolidated and council financial statements. 

Ownership of Assets 

1. Except for assets recognised as right-of-use assets in accordance with IFRS 16 
Leases, the Group and Council has satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the 
balance sheet(s), and there are no liens or encumbrances on the Group and Council’s 
assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. All assets to which the Group 
and Council has satisfactory title appear in the balance sheet(s). 

2. All agreements and options to buy back assets previously sold have been properly 
recorded and adequately disclosed in the consolidated and Council financial 
statements. 

Reserves 

1. We have properly recorded or disclosed in the consolidated and Council financial statements 
the useable and unusable reserves. 

Use of the Work of a Specialist 

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the IAS 19 
actuarial valuations of the Pensions Liability, the valuation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment and Investment Property and have adequately considered the 
qualifications of the specialists in determining the amounts and disclosures included in 
the consolidated and council financial statements and the underlying accounting 
records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with 
respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are 
not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or 
objectivity of the specialists. 

Pensions Liability, Property, Plant and Equipment, and Investment Property Estimate 

1. We confirm that the significant judgments made in making the IAS 19 actuarial 
valuations of the pensions liability, the valuation of property, plant and equipment, and 
investment property estimates have taken into account all relevant information and the 
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic of which we are aware.  

2. We believe that the selection or application of the methods, assumptions and data 
used by us have been consistently and appropriately applied or used in making the IAS 
19 actuarial valuations of the pensions liability, the valuation of property, plant and 
equipment, and investment property estimates. 

3. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the IAS 19 actuarial 
valuations of the pensions liability, the valuation of property, plant and equipment, and 
investment property estimates appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out 
specific courses of action on behalf of the entity. 

Page 190



 

4. We confirm that the disclosures made in the consolidated and Council entity financial 
statements with respect to the accounting estimates, including those describing 
estimation uncertainty and the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, are complete and 
are reasonable in the context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (as amended by the Update to the 
Code and Specifications for Future Codes for Infrastructure Assets (November 2022). 

5. We confirm that appropriate specialized skills or expertise has been applied in making 
the IAS 19 actuarial valuations of the pensions liability, the valuation of property, plant 
and equipment, and investment property estimates. 

6. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and 
disclosures in the consolidated and parent entity financial statements, including due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Retirement benefits 

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate enquiries, 
we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme liabilities are 
consistent with our knowledge of the business. All significant retirement benefits and 
all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

_______________________  ___________ 

Assistant Director of Finance (S151)  Date 

 

 

_______________________  ___________ 

Chairman of the Audit Committee  Date 

  

Page 191



 

 

Schedule of Uncorrected Misstatements 

 

 [TBC] 

  

Page 192



Cherwell District Council 
 
Accounts Audit and Risk Committee 
 
27 September 2023 
 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/24 
 

Report of the Assistant Director of Finance 
 
 
This report is public 
 
 

Purpose of report 
 
 
The report presents the Internal Audit progress report for 2023/24. Two audits have now 
been completed: Community Development Projects and Climate, both with overall 
conclusions of Amber. Community Development Projects has been finalised and the 
executive summary is included within this report. The plan to address the actions required 
have been agreed with senior management and implementation of those actions are in 
progress. The audit of Climate is at draft report stage and the action plan is currently being 
agreed with senior management. The executive summary from the audit will be brought in 
the next update to the committee. There are three audits currently being undertaken and the 
remaining three are planned in for later in the year.  
 
The implementation status of previously agreed management actions continues to be 
positive across the organisation, with good rates of implementation and evidence that other 
actions are being actively progressed. 
 

1.0 Recommendations 

              
The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To note the progress with the 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan and the outcome of the 

completed audits. 
 

2.0 Introduction 

 
2.1 This report provides an update on the Internal Audit Service, including resources, 

completed and planned audits.  
 
2.2 Each progress report includes the Executive Summaries from the individual Internal 

Audit reports finalised since the previous update to the committee and also an update 
on the implementation of agreed management actions. 

 
 

Page 193

Agenda Item 8



3.0 Report Details 

 
Resources 
 
3.1  A full update on resources was made to the Accounts, Audit & Risk Committee in July 

2023 as part of the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2023/24. One of our Senior 
Auditors has been successfully appointed to the post of Senior Counter Fraud Officer. 
This leaves us with two Senior Auditor vacancies which we are working closely with 
HR on to recruit to.  

 
3.2    We continue to support team members to complete professional training. We are 

supporting a member of staff to complete the Certified Internal Audit Qualification.  
We also have two current apprenticeship posts within the team, one for Counter 
Fraud and one for Internal Audit.  

 
2023/24 Plan Progress 
 
3.3 The 2023/24 Internal Audit Plan, which was agreed at the July 2023 Accounts, Audit 

& Risk Committee, is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.  This shows current 
progress with each audit.  The plan and plan progress are reviewed quarterly with 
senior management. 

 
3.4 Since the last update to the July 2023 committee, the audit of Community 

Development Projects has been completed. The executive summary is included 
within Appendix 3 to this report.   

 
Performance  
 
3.5 The following performance indicators are monitored on a monthly basis. 
  

Performance 
Measure 

Target % 
Performance 
Achieved for 
23/24 audits 
(as at 
14/08/23) 

Comments 

Elapsed time 
between start of 
the audit 
(opening 
meeting) and 
exit meeting. 

Target date agreed for each 
assignment by the Audit 
manager, stated on Terms 
of Reference, but should be 
no more than 3 X the total 
audit assignment days 
(excepting annual leave etc) 

100% Previously 
reported year- 
end figures: 
 
88% 2022/23 
67% 2021/22 
78% 2020/21 

Elapsed time for 
completion of 
audit work from 
exit meeting to 
issue of draft 
report. 

15 days 100% Previously 
reported year- 
end figures: 
 
71% 2022/23 
100% 2021/22 
100% 2020/21 

Page 194



Elapsed Time 
between receipt 
of management 
responses to 
draft report and 
issue of final 
report. 
 

10 days 100% 
 
 

Previously 
reported year- 
end figures: 
 
100% 2022/23 
56% 2021/22 
88% 2020/21 

 
 
3.6 The other performance indicators are: 
 

 % of 2023/24 planned audit activity completed by 30 April 2024 – reported at year 
end. 

 % of management actions implemented – see paragraphs below. 
 
 

Implementation of Agreed Management Actions 
 
3.7 Outstanding management actions from 2018/19 and 2019/20 audits were taken over 

for monitoring from the previous internal audit provider. It should be noted that 
significant progress has been made by officers to address and implement these with 
now only 3 actions still open and in progress. These actions now form part of the 
implementation of the new recruitment and selection module and are planned for 
completion during quarter 3. These will continue to be reviewed and followed up with 
senior management.  

 
3.8 All actions for 2020/21 have now been reported as implemented. We agreed a total 

of 82 actions for the work completed as part of the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan, 67 of 
these actions have been implemented and 2 have been superseded. Of the 
remaining 13 actions, 9 are not yet due for implementation, and 4 have recently 
become due. We agreed a total of 60 actions for the work completed as part of the 
2022/23 internal audit plan, 50 of these actions have been implemented, 9 are not 
yet due for implementation, and 1 has recently become due. For the work completed 
so far during 2023/24, a total of 8 actions have been agreed. Of these 8 actions, 8 
are not yet due for implementation – these will be followed up throughout 2023 and 
2024. 

 

4.0 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 

 
4.1 This report provides a progress update on delivery of the internal audit plan for 

2023/24 and provides an update on the implementation of management actions for 
the committee to consider. The current plan for 2023/24 is on target for delivery by 
the end of April 2024.   

 

5.0 Consultation 

  
 Not applicable. 
 

Page 195



6.0 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 

 
6.1 The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons as 

set out below.  
 

Option 1: No alternative options have been identified as this report is for information 
only.  

 

7.0 Implications 

 
 Financial and Resource Implications  
 
7.1 The are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  
 

Comments checked by:  
Michael Furness, Assistant Director of Finance, 01295 221845 
michael.furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  

 
Legal Implications  

 

7.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.  

 
Comments checked by:  
Shiraz Sheikh, Monitoring Officer & Assistant Director Law and Governance. 
shiraz.sheikeh@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 
 
Risk Implications  

  
7.3 There are no risk management issues arising directly from this report. 
 

Comments checked by: 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance & Insight Team Leader, 01295 221556 
Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  
 
 
Equalities and Inclusion Implications 
 

7.4  There are no equalities and inclusion implications arising directly from this report.  
 

Comments checked by: 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance & Insight Team Leader, 01295 221556 
Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk    
 
  
Sustainability Implications 

 
7.5 There are no sustainability implications arising directly from this report.  

 
 Comments checked by: 

Jo Miskin, Climate Action Manager, 01295 221748,  
jo.miskin@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

Page 196

mailto:michael.furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:shiraz.sheikeh@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:jo.miskin@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


 
 

8.0 Decision Information 

 
Key Decision (N/A) 

 

Financial Threshold Met:   N/A 

 
 Community Impact Threshold Met: N/A 
 

Wards Affected 
 

All 
 

 

Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework 
 

All corporate plan themes. 
  
 

Lead Councillor 
 

Councillor Adam Nell – Portfolio Holder for Finance. 
 

Document Information 

 Appendix number and title 

 Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Plan 2023/24 – Progress Update 

 Appendix 2 – Outstanding Management Actions  

 Appendix 3 – Executive Summaries of finalised audits 
 

 Background papers 
 None  
 

 Report Author and contact details 
 Sarah Cox, Chief Internal Auditor, sarah.cox@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  

Page 197

mailto:sarah.cox@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1: 2023/24 CDC Internal Audit Plan – Progress Report  
 
 

Audit  
  

Planned Qtr Start  Status as at 11/09/23  Conclusion  

Strategic Contract Governance  Qtr 3 Not started   

Utilities Management Qtr 1 / Qtr 2 Fieldwork   

Payroll Qtr 3 / Qtr 4 Not started  

Community Development Projects  Qtr 1  Final Report  Amber 

Climate  Qtr 1 Draft Report  Amber 

Business Continuity  Qtr 1 Fieldwork   

IT - Revenues and Benefits IT Application Review Qtr 2 / Qtr 3 Fieldwork   

IT – IT Governance  Qtr 4 Not Started   

     

Grant Certification  Sept  - - 

 
 
 

P
age 199



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 – Open management actions as at 14 August 2023   
 
2018/19 – outstanding open actions  

Report Title  Total 
outstanding  

Implemented  Superseded  Target date not 
reached or 
extended  

Target date 
reached – overdue 

or being 
implemented  

CDC HR 2018/19 3 - - 3 - 

Totals 3 - - 3 - 

 
2021/22 - all actions 

Report Title  Total agreed Implemented  Superseded  Target date not 
reached or 
extended  

Target date 
reached – overdue 

or being 
implemented  

CDC Key Finance 
Systems 21/22 

10 9 - - 1 

CDC Treasury 
Management 21/22 

5 5 - - - 

CDC Wellbeing and 
Sickness 

Management 21/22 

5 2 - 3 - 

CDC PCI 2021/22 9 6 1 2 - 

CDC IT Remote 
Working 21/22 

11 11 - - - 

CDC GDPR 21/22 9 6 - 3 - 

CDC Cyber 
Security Follow Up 

21/22 

9 8 1 - - 

CDC Payroll 21/22 10 9 - - 1 

CDC Waste Service 
21/22 

14 11 - 1 2 

Totals 82 67 2 9 4 

2022/23 – all actions  

P
age 201



Report Title  Total agreed Implemented  Superseded  Target date not 
reached or 
extended  

Target date 
reached – overdue 

or being 
implemented  

CDC IT 
Infrastructure 22/23 

5 5 - - - 

CDC Cyber 
Security 22/23 

14 14 - - - 

CDC Health & 
Safety 22/23 

20 14 - 6 - 

CDC Contract 
Management 22/23 

4 1 - 3 - 

CDC Capital 
Programme 22/23 

2 1 - - 1 

CDC IT Disaster 
Recovery 22/23 

5 5 - - - 

CDC Temp 
Accommodation 

22/23 

4 4 - - - 

CDC Revs & Bens 
22/23 

6 6 - - - 

Totals 60 50 - 9 1 

 
2023/24 – all actions as at 11/09/23 

Report Title  Total agreed Implemented  Superseded  Target date not 
reached or 
extended  

Target date 
reached – overdue 

or being 
implemented  

CDC Community 
Development 
Projects 23/24 

8 - - 8 - 

Totals 8 - - 8 - 
 

 

P
age 202



APPENDIX 3 – Executive Summaries finalised since last update to 
Accounts, Audit & Risk Committee May 2023 
 
Finalised Audits 23/24:  
 

Community Development Projects 23/24 

Overall conclusion on the system of internal control being 
maintained  

A 

 

RISK AREAS 
AREA 
CONCLUSION 

No of Priority 
1 Management 
Actions 

No of Priority 
2 Management 
Actions 

Governance, Policies and 
Procedures 

A 0 3 

Process & Decision Making G 0 1 

Finance & Monitoring A 0 2 

Management Information A 0 2 

  0 8 

 

Opinion: Amber 
 

Total: 8 Priority 1 = 0 
Priority 2 = 8 

Current Status:  

Implemented 0 

Due not yet actioned 0 

Partially complete 0 

Not yet Due 8 

 

The Wellbeing & Housing Service is responsible for administering a wide range of funding 
and grants to support community development projects and partners.  While some funding 
is obtained from Government grants and other sources, this audit focused solely on projects 
funded by the Council’s core budget.  For 2022/23, this totalled £435k, ranging from £60 to 
£53k.  The audit confirmed all funding sampled was issued in line with Council objectives, 
but noted approaches to how funding is documented, issued, and monitored, vary by project.    

Governance, Policies and Procedures  

The audit observed that there is no overarching grant or funding policy within the team to 
provide a governance structure for the allocation and administration of funding allocated to 
community organisations.  There is also a lack of guidance in place for staff members in 
regard to the key processes involved in allocation of Council funds.   

Sample testing carried out identified that there is no standard letter or standard set of terms 
and conditions issued with funding with the various teams using slightly different formats 
and content.  Instances were also identified in which funding agreements were not issued. 

Process & Decision Making  

Grant application forms include specification of the documents required to support the 
application, for example latest set of annual accounts, organisation constitution, and annual 
reports, however sample testing identified that these are not consistently requested.   

Page 203



The audit also found that “trusted partners” (those who have worked with the Council for a 
long time and receive funding year on year), are not subject to routine due diligence checks 
(for example financial position), the implementation of which, if carried out on a risk-based 
and proportionate basis (depending on the value being awarded), could help to provide 
assurance over the partners’ continued suitability to receive Council funding. 

Finance & Monitoring  

In terms of monitoring spend and outcomes, the audit found the approach applied to 
communicating expectations to those in receipt of funding to vary by project, for example 
how monitoring activities would be undertaken.  From the ten projects sampled, ranging 
from £1,000 to £4,900, seven were found to have some form of funding agreement in place, 
although review of these highlighted one had not been signed or dated by either party, and 
another had been signed and dated two months after the funding had been received. 

The audit noted a wide variety of methods being used to monitor delivery of projects, 
including quarterly monitoring meetings with community groups and organisations, visits to 
activities and sessions, email updates, phone calls, and both interim and final reports, 
showing a good working relationship with the providers and a commitment to ensuring 
projects are successful and deliver the intended outcomes.  When comparing these activities 
to original funding documentation, it was noted they did not always match up with the detail 
provided in the relevant funding agreement, and some delays were noted in both receiving 
and reviewing information provided (for example an annual report expected March 2023, for 
a project that ended January 2023, has not yet been provided by the organisation). 

Management Information  

The audit established that there are regular monthly update meetings with the Portfolio 
Holder for Wellbeing, with attendance from the Chief Executive and Assistant Director 
Wellbeing & Housing.  The meetings provide updates on activity and projects and provides 
the portfolio holder with oversight on the work the team are undertaking, with the opportunity 
to request additional information or figures in particular areas.  

There is also quarterly reporting in the Performance Report to the Executive on the three 
Business Plan measures related to this area of work, providing a narrative update on 
progress against each measure.  For the three reports reviewed (September, December, 
and March) these measures were all reported as delivering to plan and RAG rated Green.  

It was noted that the Service Development Plan contains the milestone actions for each 
Business Plan measure, and the key milestones to be achieved each quarter.  It was 
reported that there are meetings with the team to discuss these actions, although it is noted 
this could be enhanced to capture delivery of the milestones more accurately, such as when 
and how these have been met, to ensure information reported in the above forums is 
accurate and timely.  

The Local Government Transparency Code 2015 requires that details of expenditure over 
£500, including grants to voluntary, community and social enterprise organisations, are 
published annually.  Review of the published spend reports identified that two payments 
from the ten sampled were not included within the report.  This is being followed up and 
corrected by Finance who have identified that one of the omissions was due to a system 
error in which cheque payments were not being included within the system generated report 
following the implementation of the new finance system in 2021.  The other payment that 
was not included in the report is being investigated by Finance. 

 

Page 204



Cherwell District Council 
 

Audit, Accounts and Risk Committee  

27 September 2023 

Risk Monitoring Report July 2023  
 

Report of Assistant Director – Customer Focus 
 
This report is public. 

 

Purpose of report 
 
To update the committee on how well the council is managing its Strategic Risks.  

 

1.0 Recommendations 

              
         The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To note the Risk Monitoring Report for July 2023. 

 

2.0     Introduction 

2.1     The Council carries out regular reviews to identify risks at the earliest 
opportunity so that it can assess and mitigate them as soon as possible.  

 
2.2      Risks that may affect the Council’s performance as a whole, and particularly, 

on its ability to deliver its corporate priorities are captured in its Leadership 
Risk Register. 

 
2.3     The Leadership Risk Register is reviewed by the Corporate Leadership Team 

and Executive Committees every month; however, this is a live document and 
therefore updated as and when required, to manage risk effectively. 

 
2.4        The Councils approach to risk management is set out in its Risk Management 

Strategy. The Audit, Accounts and Risk Committee is responsible for 
reviewing the leadership risk register and making recommendations to the 
Executive Committee for their consideration. 

 
 

 

3.0  Risk Update – July 2023. 
 

3.2    There were no changes to any of the risk scores in the Leadership Risk 
Register in July 2023. The scores for current risks remain as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 205

Agenda Item 9



  Probability 

1 - Remote  2 - Unlikely 3 - Possible  4 - Probable 5 - Highly  
Probable 

Im
p

a
c
t 

 5 - Catastrophic 
 
 

 L08    

 4 - Major  L09 
L03-L06-L07  

L11-L14 
L01 

  

 3 - Moderate  L04-L05-L10 L02-L12 L13   

 2 - Minor 
 
 

     

 1 - Insignificant       

 
 

 
3.3   There were however changes to the mitigating actions for the following risk: 

 
 

 Risk Score Latest Update 

L12 Corporate Governance 9 Low Risk 

Mitigating actions updated:- 
The Annual Governance Statement was 
produced and has been published and 
approved by the Audit, Accounts and Risk 
Committee. The Corporate Governance 
Assurance Group continues to map 
governance processes to ensure visibility 
and to refresh them. 

 

 

4.0  Conclusion 
 

           This report provides an update on how well the council is managing its Strategic 
Risks up to the end the fourth month of the financial year. 

 

 

5.0   Consultation 

           N/A 
 

 

6.0   Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 
 

   N/A 
 

 

7.0   Implications 
 
      Financial and Resource Implications 

 
7.1    There are no financial and resource implications arising directly from this report. 
          Comments checked by: 
          Michael Furness, Assistant Director of Finance/Section 151, Tel: 01295 221845    

Michael.Furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

       Figure 1: Risk scorecard showing the risk scores in the Leadership Risk Register for July2023. 

Page 206

mailto:Michael.Furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


          Legal Implications 
 
7.2     There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 

  Comments checked by: 
  Shiraz Sheik, Assistant Director for Law and Governance, Tel: 01295 221651                                 

Shiraz.Sheik@cherwell-dc.gov.uk,  

         

          Risk Implications 

 
              7.3     This report contains a full update with regards to the Council’s risk position at 

the end of July 2023. There are no risk implications arising directly from this 
report. 
Comments checked by: 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance & Insight Team Leader, Tel: 01295 221556                                 
Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

                   

                        Equalities and Inclusion Implications 
 

7.4    There are no equalities nor inclusion implications arising directly from this 
report. 
Comments checked by: 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance & Insight Team Leader.                         
Tel: 01295 221556  Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 

 

 

8.0    Decision Information 
 

Key Decision 
 

Financial Threshold Met: No 
 
Community Impact Threshold Met: No 
 

Wards Affected: All 
 

Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework 
 
This report supports all Corporate Priorities 
 

Lead Councillor 
 

Councillor Richard Mould – Lead member for Corporate Services                          

 Document Information 

Appendix number and title 

 Appendix 1 – Leadership Risk Register July 2023 

 
Background papers 
None 
 

Report Author and contact details. 
Celia Prado-Teeling, Performance & Insight Team Leader. Tel: 01295 221556 
Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  Page 207

mailto:Shiraz.Sheik@cherwell-dc.gov.uk,
mailto:Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 - Leadership Risk Register July 2023

Table 1 – Summary of all risks in the Leadership Risk Register with residual scores (after controls) and rating for July 2023.

High Risk (16-25) – requires active management to 
bring score down when possible and maintain it at an acceptable
level.

Medium Risk (10 -15) - a robust contingency plan may suffice,
together with early warning mechanisms to detect any deviation
from the profile.

Low Risk (1-9) - good housekeeping may require some controls to
reduce the probability if this can be done cost effectively, but
management to ensure the impact remains low should be adequate.
Re-asses frequently to ensure condition remains the same.

Risk Name
Risk July

Residual Score Rating
L01 Financial resilience 16
L08 Cyber Security 15
L03 CDC Local Plan 12
L06 Safeguarding the Vulnerable - Operational and partnership actions- 12
L07 Health and safety 12
L11 Financial sustainability 12
L13 Major Infrastructure Projects and Programmes 12
L14 Workforce Strategy 12
L02 Statutory functions 09
L12 Corporate Governance 09
L09 Safeguarding the vulnerable - Internal procedures- 08
L04 Business Continuity 06
L05 Emergency Planning (EP) 06
L10 Sustainability of Council owned companies and delivery of planned financial
and other objectives

06

Table 2 - Overall position of all the risks contained within the Leadership Risk Register for July 2023 including their impact and probability scores (after controls).

Probability
1 - Remote 2 - Unlikely 3 - Possible 4 - Probable 5 - Highly Probable

Impact

5 - Catastrophic L08
4 - Major L09 L03-L06-L07-L11-L14 L01
3 - Moderate L04-L05-L10 L02-L12 L13
2 - Minor
1 - Insignificant

1

P
age 209



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Reduced medium and long term financial 
viability

Medium Term Revenue Plan reported regularly to 
members.

Budget setting will not be an annual event

Reduction in services to customers Balanced medium term and dynamic ability to 
prioritise resources

Finance support and engagement with programme 
management processes

Increased volatility and inability to manage 
and respond to changes in funding levels

Highly professional, competent, qualified  staff

Reduced financial returns (or losses) on 
investments/assets such as in subsidiaries.

Good networks established locally, regionally and 
nationally.

Inability to deliver financial efficiencies Strong shareholder function and relationships with 
subsidiaries

Integration and continued development of 
Performance, Finance and Risk reporting

Exposure to commercial pressures in relation 
to regeneration projects.

Financial returns from the subsidiaries are not 
included in the MTFS until they are reasonably 
assured to materialise.

Internal Audits being undertaken for core financial 
activity and capital as well as service activity

Poor customer service and satisfaction National guidance interpreting legislation available 
and used regularly.

Introduction and implementation of an Asset 
Management Strategy

Increased complexity in governance 
arrangements

Progress regeneration plans in a coordinated 
manner. Participate in Oxfordshire Treasurers' 
Association's work streams.

Investment Strategy agreed annually

Lack of officer capacity to meet service 
demand

Review of best practice guidance from bodies 
such as CIPFA, LGA and NAO.

Posts are filled by appropriately qualified individuals

Lack of financial awareness and 
understanding throughout the council

Treasury management and capital strategies in 
place Investment strategies in place Regular 
financial and performance monitoring in place.

Regular involvement and engagement with colleagues 
across the county

Increased inflation in the costs of capital 
schemes

Independent third party advisers in place Regular 
bulletins and advice received from advisers 
Property portfolio income monitored through 
financial management arrangements on a regular 

Regular member training and support

Independent third party advisers in place Regular utilisation of advisors as appropriate

Asset Management Strategy in place and 
embedded

Summarise and distribute announcements to CLT

Timely and good quality budget monitoring reports, 
particularly property income and capital

Work is underway to maximise the impact of the 
available space in Banbury town centre

Risk reviewed 
07/08/2023 - 
No changes

Financial forecasts of resources for 2024/25 and 
2025/26 have assumed a reduction in resources 
compared to February 2023 assumptions. The budget 
for 2023/24 was agreed with savings proposals 
identified to contribute to addressing these reductions. 
Close monitoring of the delivery of the savings 
programme will take place throughout 2023/24 with 
mitigations required if slippage was identified.

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

16444 Michael 
Furness

Joanne 
Kaye

164

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Transformation Programme in place to deliver 
efficiencies and increased income in the future

L01 - Financial 
resilience – 
Failure to react 
to external 
financial 
impacts, new 
policy and 
increased 
service demand. 
Poor investment 
and asset 
management 
decisions.

Councillor 
A Nell

Increased inflation in revenue costs

P
age 210



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Legal challenge Embedded system of legislation and policy 
tracking In place, with clear accountabilities, 
reviewed regularly by Directors.

Ensure Committee forward plans are reviewed 
regularly by senior officers.

Loss of opportunity to influence national policy 
/ legislation

Clear accountability for responding to 
consultations with defined process to ensure 
Member engagement

Ensure Internal Audit plan focusses on key leadership 
risks.

Financial penalties National guidance interpreting legislation available 
and used regularly

Establish corporate repository and accountability for 
policy/legislative changes taking into consideration all 
of the Council's functions.

Reduced service to customers Risks and issues associated with Statutory 
functions incorporated into Directorate Risk 
Registers and regularly reviewed.

External support secured for key corporate projects 
including Growth Deal and IT Transformation 
Programme.

Inability to deliver council’s plans Clear accountability for horizon scanning, risk 
identification / categorisation / escalation and 
policy interpretation in place

Exposure to commercial pressures Robust Committee forward plans to allow 
member oversight of policy issues and risk 
management, including Scrutiny and Audit

Reduced resilience and business continuity Internal Audit Plan risk based to provide 
necessary assurances

Review Directorate/Service risk registers.

Strong networks established locally, regionally 
and nationally to ensure influence on policy 
issues. In addition two Directors hold leading 
national roles

Ensure Committee forward plans are reviewed 
regularly by senior officers.

Senior Members aware and briefed regularly in 
1:1s by Directors

Ensure Internal Audit plan focusses on key leadership 
risks.

Arrangements in place to source appropriate 
interim resource if needed

Establish corporate repository and accountability for 
policy/legislative changes taking into consideration all 
of the Council's functions.

Ongoing programme of internal communication External support secured for key corporate projects 
including Growth Deal and IT Transformation 

Programme Boards in place to oversee key 
corporate projects and ensure resources are 
allocated as required.

Review Directorate/Service risk registers.

3 3 9 Risk reviewed 
08/08/2023 - 
No changes

Learning and development opportunities identified and 
promoted by the Chief Executive and Directors. First 
tranche of Senior Leadership training/development 
begins in August, and is cascaded throughout 2022/23. 
Staff briefings on rules and procedures by MO

Learning and development opportunities identified and 
promoted by the Chief Executive and Directors. First 
tranche of Senior Leadership training/development 
begins in August, and is cascaded throughout 2022/23. 
Staff briefings on rules and procedures by MO

L02 - Statutory 
functions – 
Failure to meet 
statutory 
obligations and 
policy and 
legislative 
changes are not 
anticipated or 
planned for.

3 4 12 Councillor 
S 

Dallimore

Stephen 
Hinds

Shiraz 
Sheikh

Extended Leadership Team (ELT) Meetings 
established to oversee and provide assurance on 
key organisational matters including resourcing.

Reduced staff morale, increased workload 
and uncertainty may lead to loss of good 
people

P
age 211



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Poor planning decisions leading to 
inappropriate growth in inappropriate place.

Local Development Scheme (LDS) is actively 
managed and reviewed, built into Service Plan, 
and integral to staff appraisals of all those 
significantly involved in Plan preparation and 

Annual (Authority) Monitoring Reports presented to the 
Executive on plan making and policy effectiveness. A 
report will be prepared at the end of the calendar year.

Negative (or failure to optimise) economic, 
social, community and environmental gain

An updated LDS is scheduled to be presented to the 
Executive in September.

Negative impact on the council’s ability to 
deliver its strategic objectives, including its 
commitments within the Oxfordshire Housing 
& Growth Deal

Programme built into Directorate level objectives (e.g. 
via Service Plans) and staff appraisals; on-going 
preparation of the Local Plan is a service priority.

Increased costs in planning appeals A draft Plan is being presented to the Executive in 
September. Project management of the Local Plan 
process continues.

Inability to deliver critical services to 
customers/residents

Business continuity strategy, statement of intent 
and framework in place and all arrangements 
overseen by a Business Continuity Steering 

BC exercises to be arranged

Financial loss/ increased costs Services prioritised and ICT recovery plans reflect 
those priorities and the requirements of critical 
services

BC Impact assessments and BCPs being updated and 
reviewed by OCC's Emergency Planning team with 
supporting document management system being 
implemented.

Loss of important data ICT disaster recovery arrangements in place with 
data centre and cloud services reducing likelihood 
of ICT loss and data loss

Business Continuity Statement of Intent and 
Framework due to be reviewed to align with new 
incident management framework

Inability to recover sufficiently to restore non-
critical services before they become critical

Incident management team identified in Business 
Continuity Framework

Loss of reputation All services undertake annual business impact 
assessments and updates of business continuity 
plans

Reduced service delivery capacity in medium 
term due to recovery activity

Team capacity and capability kept under continual 
review with gaps and pressures identified and 
managed at the earliest opportunity.

4 4 16 David 
Peckford

Cross-council Business Continuity Steering Group 
meets regularly to identify Business Continuity 
improvements needed

Ian Boll

Ian Boll Tim Hughes

3 4

62 Risk 
Reviewed 
07/08/2023 - 
No change

3

Cross-council BC Steering Group meets regularly to 
identify BC improvements needed; BC Steering Group 
has been reconvened, need to ensure engagement 
across all service areas.

Risk reviewed 
01/08/2023 -
Comments 
updated 

12 A consultation draft of the emerging 
Local Plan is scheduled to be 
presented to the Council's Executive in 
September 2023. This follows its 
deferment by the Executive in January 
2023.

Regular Corporate Director, Lead Member and 
Members Advisory Group briefings

L03 - CDC 
Local Plan - 
Failure to ensure 
sound, up to 
date local plan 
remains in place 
for Cherwell 
resulting in poor 
planning 
decisions such 
as development 
in inappropriate 
locations, 
inability to 
demonstrate an 
adequate supply 
of land for 
housing and 
planning by 
appeal 

Reputational damage with investor community 
of Cherwell as  a good place to do business 
created by uncertainty/ lack of policy clarity

On-going review of planning appeal decisions to 
assess robustness and relevance of Local Plan 
policies 

Councillor 
D Sames

L04 - Business 
Continuity - 
Failure to ensure 
that critical 
services can be 
maintained in 
the event of a 
short or long 
term incident 
impacting on the 
delivery of the 
Council's 
operations

16 Councillor 
P 

Chapman

4 4

P
age 212



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Inability of council to respond effectively to an 
emergency

Incident Management Framework in place and 
key contact lists updated monthly.

Emergency plan contacts list updated monthly and 
reissued to all duty managers periodically. Available on 
ELT Teams channel.

Unnecessary hardship to residents and/or 
communities

Emergency Planning Lead Officer defined with 
responsibility to review, test and exercise plan 
and to establish, monitor and ensure all elements 
are coveredRisk to human welfare and the environment Expert advice and support provided by
Oxfordshire County Council's Emergency 
Planning Team under partnership arrangements.

Legal challenge Council Duty Directors attend training relating to 
role prior to joining duty director rota and have 
refresh training annually

Potential financial loss through compensation 
claims

Multi agency emergency exercises conducted to 
ensure readiness

Ineffective Cat 1 partnership relationships Active participation in Local Resilience Forum 
(LRF) activities

Reputational damage On-call rota being maintained and updated to 
reflect recent staffing changes

Increased harm and distress caused to 
vulnerable individuals and their families.

Engagement with the Oxfordshire partnerships 
protocol review to identify improvements to local 
arrangements in support of the strategic 
partnerships. Outcomes of review to be 

Need to re-engage with Oxfordshire partnerships 
protocol review to ensure outcomes relevant to CDC to 
be implemented

Council subject to external reviews Child Exploitation prevalence report reviewed with 
LPA Commander following each CE sub-group 
meeting.

Criminal investigations potentially 
compromised

Potential financial liability if council deemed to 
be negligent.

Community based exploitation disruption 
coordinated through the Joint Agency Tasking 
and Coordination Process.

Reputational damage to the council.

Councillor 
P 

Chapman

16

4

Tim Hughes

Tim Hughes

Supporting officers for incident response reviewed and 
identified across some areas, to ensure they are 
reviewed and updated across all service areas.

Ian Boll

Ian Boll Risk 
Reviewed 
07/08/2023 - 
No change

62 3

Risk 
Reviewed 
07/08/2023 - 
No changes

3 4 12

Exploitation concerns and actions discussed routinely 
at Joint Agency Tasking and Co-ordination meetings 
on a monthly basis

4L05 - 
Emergency 
Planning (EP) - 
Failure to ensure 
that the local 
authority has 
plans in place to 
respond 
appropriately to 
a civil 
emergency 
fulfilling its duty 
as a category 
one responder

Councillor 
P 

Chapman

16

L06 - 
Safeguarding 
the Vulnerable 
– Operational
and partnership 
actions-Failure
to work
effectively with
partners to
identify and
protect
vulnerable
people in the
district and
disrupt
exploitation
leaving
vulnerable
people at risk or
subject to
exploitation.

4 4P
age 213



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

 Unsafe services leading to fatality,  serious 
injury & ill health to employees, service users 
or members of the public

Corporate H&S governance arrangements and 
policies are regularly reviewed and updated by the 
Corporate H&S Team and monitored by the H&S 
Assurance Board.

Corporate H&S Auditing and Inspection programme on 
track. Reports issued to managers and actions tracked 
for completion. Work ongoing with 2 audits per 
calendar month.

Criminal prosecution for failings Breach of 
legislation and potential for enforcement 
action.

Directors and service leads are responsible for 
ensuring H&S arrangements are in place within 
their areas or responsibility. Managers are 
responsible for ensuring operational health and 
safety risks are assessed and effective control 
measures implemented.

Work still in progress with service areas around the 
corporate H&S register, which will be managed and 
monitored with a focus on the depots as our highest 
risk areas.

Financial impact (compensation or 
improvement actions)

Consultation with employee representatives via 
employer and union consultative committees 
(Unison)

Post decoupling senior management will have monthly 
monitoring of H&S matters as a standing item at senior 
management meetings.

Corporate H&S Training provided via corporate 
learning and development programme. Training 
for operational risks may be organised by 
services.

Relevant and required policies and procedures are 
being reviewed.

H&S performance monitored by accident and 
incident reports and corporate H&S auditing and 
inspection programme.
H&S information is disseminated via internal 
communications and updates to ELT and other 
relevant meetings.

Reputational Impact

20 Ruth 
Wooldridge

Claire 
Cox

Risk reviewed 
04/08/2023 - 
No changes

3 124

Working with service areas to ensure that suitable risk 
assessments are in place.

L07 - Health 
and safety
 Failure to 
ensure effective 
arrangements 
are in place for 
Health and 
Safety.

5 4 Councillor 
S 

Dallimore

P
age 214



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Financial loss / fine  File and data encryption on computer devices A series of all-Council staff awareness sessions and 
members given presentations with the Police Cyber 
Security Advisor.

Prosecution – penalties imposed Managing access permissions and privileged 
users through AD and individual applications

All staff reminded to be vigilant to unexpected emails 
due to the heightened risk of cyber-attack due to 
escalating tensions in Eastern Europe and at critical 
periods such as the run up to Elections

Individuals could be placed at risk of harm Schedule of regular security patching Cyber Security advice and guidance regularly 
highlighted to all staff.

Reduced capability to deliver customer facing 
services

Vulnerability scanning Cyber Security is mandatory e-learning for all staff to 
be completed annually and is part of new starters 
induction training.

Unlawful disclosure of sensitive information Malware protection and detection Cyber Security Officer has reviewed advice and 
provided assurance on our compliance.

Inability to share services or work with 
partners

Effective information management and security 
training and awareness programme for staff

External Health Check undertaken each year and 
Cabinet Office PSN compliance reviewed and certified 
each year to ensure the infrastructure is secure to 
connect to the PSN.

Loss of reputation Password and Multi Factor Authentication security 
controls in place

Internal Audit completed cyber audits with no major 
issues or significant risks identified.

Robust information and data related incident 
management procedures in place

IT implemented an intrusion prevention and detection 
system which is monitored, and regular actions are 
implemented from the resulting reports.

Appropriate robust contractual arrangements in 
place with all third parties that supply systems or 
data processing services

IT Officer has specific responsibility for Cyber Security 
and we have engaged a specialist partner to advise on 
industry best practices and standards.

Appropriate plans in place to ensure ongoing PSN 
compliance
Adequate preventative measures in place to 
mitigate insider threat, including physical and 
system security

A complete restructure and update of the 
technical approach for the infrastructure has 
resulted in a move to a zero trust model. 
Advice received from NCSC on specific activity 
alerts, the increased threat of globalised 
ransomware and malware attacks.

Increased threat to security due to most staff 
working from home

Stephen 
Hinds

David 
Spilsbury

20 Councillor 
S 

Dallimore

Risk reviewed 
30/07/2023 - 
No changes

1553

Microsoft Multi-Factor Authentication is embedded to 
authenticate users providing an enhanced level of 
cyber security.

L08 - Cyber 
Security -If 
there is 
insufficient 
security with 
regards to the 
data held and IT 
systems used by 
the councils and 
insufficient 
protection 
against 
malicious 
attacks on 
council’s 
systems then 
there is a risk of: 
a data breach, a 
loss of service, 
cyber- ransom.

4 5

Insider threat mitigated through recruitment and 
line management processes

P
age 215



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Increased harm and distress caused to 
vulnerable individuals and their families

Safeguarding lead in place and clear lines of 
responsibility established

Action plan acted upon and shared with Overview and 
scrutiny committee once a year

Council could face criminal prosecution Safeguarding Policy and procedures in place Annual refresher and new training programmes 
including training for new members

 Criminal investigations potentially 
compromised

Information on the intranet on how to escalate a 
concern

Continue to attend safeguarding board sub groups as 
necessary to maintain high levels of awareness within 

Potential financial liability if council deemed to 
be negligent

Mandatory training and awareness raising 
sessions are now in place for all staff.

Corporate monitoring of all referrals

Reputational damage to the council Ensure web pages remain up to date

Data sharing agreement with other partners

Attendance at Children and Young People 
Partnership Board (CYPPB)

Unclear governance leading to lack of clarity 
and oversight in terms of financial and 
business outcomes

Annual business planning in place for all 
companies to include understanding of the link 
between the Council's strategic objectives being 
delivered and financial impact for the council. A 
regular Shareholder Representative meeting 
takes place, a Shareholder Liaison Meeting 
including the S.151 Officer and Monitoring Officer 
takes place on a quarterly basis and a 
Shareholder Committee meeting on a quarterly 
basis. A governance review is being undertaken 
and initial recommendations have been approved 
by the Shareholder Committee.

A Shareholder Representative was appointed and 
regular governance arrangements are in place.

Failure of council owned companies to 
achieve their intended outcomes or fail to 
meet financial objectives

Regular meetings are in place between the 
Council's S.151 Officer and the relevant company 
Finance Directors. Financial planning for the 
companies undertaken that will then be included 
within our own Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
Financial risks are routinely reported by the 
Shareholder Representative to the Shareholder 
Committee.

Resilience and support being developed across 
business to support and enhance knowledge around 
council companies.

Clear governance arrangements are in place. Skills and experience being enhanced to deliver and 
support development, challenge and oversight.

Sound monitoring in place of both business and 
financial aspects of the companies and the impact 
on overall council performance through the 
Shareholder Representative meetings and 
through the reporting to the Corporate Leadership 
Team monthly. 
Training in place for those undertaking Director 
roles relating to the companies.

Nicola RileyYvonne 
Rees

Stephen 
Hinds

Yvonne 
Rees

2 3

Safer recruitment practices and DBS checks for 
staff with direct contact

164

5

4 Risk reviewed 
30/07/2023  - 
No changes

82

Monitoring of implementation of corporate policies and 
procedures to ensure fully embedded

Regular internal cross departmental meetings to 
discuss safeguarding practice

Councillor 
P 

Chapman

L09 - 
Safeguarding 
the vulnerable - 
Internal 
procedures-  
Failure to follow 
our internal 
policies and 
procedures in 
relation to 
safeguarding 
vulnerable adults 
and children or 
raising concerns 
about their 
welfare.

4

3

Lack of understanding at officer and member 
level about the different roles of 
responsibilities required when managing 
council owned companies

6

Work with one company to ensure long term support 
arrangements are put in place.

L10 - 
Sustainability 
of Council 
owned 
companies and 
delivery of 
planned 
financial and 
other 
objectives - 
Failure of 
council owned 
companies to 
achieve their 
intended 
outcomes or 
fail to meet 
financial 
objectives

Councillor 
A  Nell

Annual Section 11 return compiled and submitted 
as required by legislation.

Risk reviewed 
09/08/2023 - 
No change

15

P
age 216



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Ensure contract management in place review and 
anticipate problems within key service suppliers 
and partners

Creditsafe UK tool purchased to allow Procurement to 
carry out supplier credit checks when required.

Business continuity planning arrangements in 
place in regards to key suppliers

Ensuring that proactive review and monitoring is 
in place for key suppliers to ensure we are able to 
anticipate any potential service failures

Reduced resilience and business continuity Intelligence unit set up procurement Hub to 
monitor supplier and contractor market

Increased complaints and/or customer 
dissatisfaction

Threat to service delivery and performance if 
good management practices and controls are 
not adhered to. 

Clear and robust control framework including: 
constitution, scheme of delegation, ethical walls 
policy etc.

Risk of ultra vires activity or lack of legal 
compliance

Clear accountability and resource for corporate 
governance (including the shareholder role).

Risk of fraud or corruption Integrated budget, performance and risk reporting 
framework.

Risk to financial sustainability if lack of 
governance results in poor investment 
decisions or budgetary control.

Corporate programme office and project 
management framework. Includes project and 
programme governance. 

Failure of corporate governance in terms of 
major projects, budgets or council owned 
companies impacts upon financial 
sustainability of the council.  

Internal audit programme aligned to leadership 
risk register. 

Inability to support Council's democratic 
functions / obligations (e.g. return to physical 
public meetings and public access to 
meetings). 

Training and development resource targeted to 
address priority issues; examples include GDPR, 
safeguarding etc. 

HR policy framework.

Annual Review of the Constitution by the MO with 
member involvement and approval by the Full 
Council    

Councillor 
A Nell

Analysis of third party spend undertaken to 
identify and risk assess key suppliers/contractors

Risk 
Reviewed - 
07/08/2023 - 
Mitigating 
actions 
updated

3 9 The Annual Governance Statement was produced and 
has been published and approved by the Audit, 
Accounts and Risk Committee. The Corporate 
Governance Assurance Group continues to map 
governance processes to ensure visibility and to 
refresh them.

Risk reviewed 
07/08/2023 - 
No change

3Councillor 
S 

Dallimore

16

4

L12 - Corporate 
Governance - 
Failure of 
corporate 
governance 
leads to negative 
impact on 
service delivery 
or the 
implementation 
of major projects 
providing value 
to customers. 

Elements of the COVID-19 response and 
recovery work may be compromised, delayed 
or not taken forwards.

The financial failure of a third party supplier 
and contractors results in the inability or 
reduced ability to deliver a service to 
customers or provide goods needed. A 
reduced supply market could also result in 
increased costs due to the council's' loss of 
competitive advantage.

Increased costs and/or financial exposure to 
the Council due to having to cover costs or 
provide service due to failure of third party 
supplier of contractor

L11 - Financial 
sustainability 
of third-party 
suppliers and 
contractors

3

Annual governance statement process 
undertaken for 2021/22  connects more fully and 
earlier with ELT and CLT.

4 4 Stephen 
Hinds

Shiraz 
Sheikh

Michael 
Sullivan

Shiraz 
Sheikh

Service areas to ensure supplier suitability checks 
have been carried out prior to award of contract and 
hold meetings as required with suppliers to review 
higher risk areas and ensure risks are being managed. 
Reminders to be sent to all who have 
Procurement/Contract Management responsibility to 
regularly meet with key suppliers and partners to gain 
early understanding of any issues arising.

3 4 12

Services areas to keep the key suppliers under regular 
check including running financial checks.

12

P
age 217



Name and 
Description of 

risk
Potential impact Controls Lead 

Member
Risk 

owner
Risk 

manager
Mitigating actions 

(to address control issues) Comments Last 
updated

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Pr
ob

ab
ilit

y
Im

pa
ct

R
at

in
g

Residual 
risk level 

(after 
existing 
controls)

Inherent 
(gross) 

risk level 
(no 

Controls)

Need to establish appropriate officer and 
stakeholder governance structures to support 
effective programme delivery.

Establishment of appropriate officer and stakeholder 
governance structures to support effective programme 
delivery

 Limit our ability to recruit, retain and develop 
staff

 Analysis of workforce data and on-going 
monitoring of issues. 

There are indications that specific service areas are 
beginning to experience recruitment difficulties for 
professional roles. HR is working with the relevant 
directors to consider alternative resourcing methods.

Impact on our ability to deliver high quality 
services

Key staff in post to address risks (e.g. strategic 
HR business partners)

Development of new L&D strategy, including 
apprenticeships.
Development of relevant workforce plans.

Development of specific recruitment and retention 
strategies. It is planned for CDC to develop a 
framework that suits the needs of all services ensuring 
that the Council has access to a much wider pool of 
staffing agencies at competitive rates.

Additional training and development costs Ongoing service redesign will set out long term 
service requirements

The new IT system has been implemented to improve 
our workforce data and continues to be develop to 
improve our ability to interrogate and access key data 
(ongoing) in order to inform workforce strategies.

Need to institute regular and effective dialogue 
with developers.

Failure to actively manage the various 
Infrastructure Projects and Programmes, 
particularly in relation to those being delivered 
by Oxfordshire County Council, could lead to 
delays or failure to deliver timely obligations, 
which could lead to HM Government holding 
back some or all of its funding, or requiring 
repayment.

Delivery of Infrastructure projects fail to 
accelerate housing delivery as commercial 
pressures impact house builders

Claire Cox

Robert 
Jolley

Institute regular and effective dialogue with developers

34

43

205L13 - 
Monitoring and 
management of  
Major 
Infrastructure 
Projects and 
Programmes - 
Failure to 
properly manage 
and monitor the 
various residual 
Oxfordshire  
Housing and 
Growth Deal 
infrastructure 
projects.

4

Overreliance on temporary staff

3L14 - Workforce 
Strategy              
The lack of 
effective 
workforce 
strategies could 
impact on our 
ability to deliver 
Council priorities 
and services.

4 12 12Councillor 
S 

Dallimore

Yvonne 
Rees

Weekly Vacancy Management process in place

Councillor 
D Ford

Ian Boll

Risk reviewed 
03/08/2023 - 
No changes.

Risk reviewed 
31/07/2023 - 
No change 

12

P
age 218



Cherwell District Council 
 
Account Audit & Risk Committee 
 
27 September 2023 
 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Report 2022/23 
 

Report of the Monitoring Officer 

 
This report is public 
 
 

Purpose of report 
 

To provide Council with the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman’s annual 
report on Cherwell District Council for the financial year 2022/23. 
 

1.0 Recommendations 

              
The meeting is recommended: 
 
1.1 To receive the report and comment on the Local Government and Social Care 

Ombudsman’s Annual Review of Cherwell District Council for 2022/23. 
 

2.0 Introduction 

 
2.1 Each year, the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) issues 

an Annual Review Report about each Council. This report attached at Appendix 1 
details the complaints that were considered by the Ombudsman up to 31 March 
2023.  
 

3.0 Report Details 

 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) 
 

3.1 The LGSCO is the final stage for individual complaints about councils, all adult social 
care providers (including care homes and home care agencies) and some other 
organisations providing local public services. They are a free service provided to 
people who have completed all stages of the Council’s own complaints procedure 
and remain unhappy with the outcome. The LGSCO have guidelines regarding what 
they can investigate. Complainants must have complained to the Council within 12 
months of becoming aware of the matter and been directly affected by the matter 
resulting in 'personal injustice'. Not all complaints will be investigated, for example if 
the Ombudsman does not feel they will find fault regarding the Council. Further 
information is available at: lgo.org.uk  

 
 Summary of Complaints and enquiries received by the LGSCO Page 219

Agenda Item 10

https://www.lgo.org.uk/


 
3.2 The LGSCO received a total of 13 complaints and enquiries against Cherwell District 

Council for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023, this compares to 16 
complaints and enquiries against Cherwell District Council for the period 1 April 
2021 – 31 March 2022. 

 
3.3 The number of complaints received by service area as categorised by the LGSCO 

for the period 1 April 2022 – 31 March 2023 are as follows: 
 

By LGSCO Category Number of complaints received by the 
LGSCO 

Planning & Development 2 

Corporate & Other Services  1 

Environment Services & Public 
Protection & Regulation 

2 

Benefits & Tax 7 

Housing 1 

 
 Decisions made by the Ombudsman 
 
3.4 The LGSCO returned decisions on 13 complaints against Cherwell District Council 

for the period 1 April 2022 – 31 March 2023.  It should be noted that decisions may 
relate to complaints made in the previous year 2021-2022, investigations may not 
have been completed on all complaints received during the 2022-2023 period 
therefore a decision would not have yet been received. The number of complaints 
received, and decisions made in the one year period will always differ.  

 
3.5 The 13 complaint decisions received against Cherwell District Council were 

categorised by the LGSCO as follows: 
 

Referred to the Council for 
resolution 

4 

Closed after initial Enquiries 7 

Upheld 1 

Not Upheld 1 

 
3.6 This means that Investigations were carried out on 2 complaints, 1 more than in 

2021-2022 period. The LGSCO report indicates that 50% of the 2 investigations 
were upheld, this compares to an average of 59% in similar authorities. 

 
3.7 A summary of the complaints investigated are set out in Appendix 2.  While every 

opportunity is taken by the Council to learn any corporate lessons from its handling 
of complaints there are no particular points to bring to Members’ attention from the 
one complaint that were investigated by the LGSCO.    

 
 General comment by the Ombudsman 

 
3.8 Over the past two years, we have reviewed our processes to ensure we do the most 

we can with the resources we have. One outcome is that we are more selective 
about the complaints we look at in detail, prioritising where it is in the public interest 
to investigate. While providing a more sustainable way for us to work, it has meant 
that changes in uphold rates this year are not solely down to the nature of the cases 

Page 220



coming to us. We are less likely to carry out investigations on ‘borderline’ issues, so 
we are naturally finding a higher proportion of fault overall. 

 
3.9 In the case of Cherwell District Council, the Council clearly publishes 

its complaints processes and signposts the rights of appeal to the next stages in 
each response, including the right of reference to the Ombudsman. 

 
Comparison Information: Complaints and enquiries received by the LGSCO 
and decisions 

 
3.10 As detailed in sections 3.2 and 3.3, the LGSCO received 13 complaints and 

enquiries against Cherwell District Council during 2022-2023.  For information and 
comparison, the table below sets out the number of complaints and enquiries 
received by the LGSCO in the four preceding years.  
 

LGSCO Category  2022/23 2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 

Planning and Development 2 8 5 6 5 

Corporate Complaints (i.e. 
non-social care) 

1 1 1 3 0 

Environment Services & 
Public Protection & 
Regulation 

2 2 2 6 0 

Benefits & Tax 7 2 0 2 5 

Highways & Transport 0 0 0 1 2 

Housing 1 3 0 1 0 

      

(* LGSCO stopped accepting new complaints between March and June 2020) 
 
3.11   For information, the following table sets out comparative data on the number of 

decisions in the preceding years. 
 

LGSCO Decision 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21* 2019/20* 2019/20* 

Complaints upheld  1 0 0 3 4 

Complaints not upheld 1 1 3 2 3 

Referred to the Council for 
resolution 

4 4 1 2 3 

Closed after initial Enquiries 7 9 6 11 4 

Incomplete/Invalid 0 1 0 0 0 

Total decisions  13 15 10 18 14 

 (* LGSCO stopped investigating existing cases between March and June 2020) 
 
  

4.0 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 

 
4.1 This is an annual report and provides Members with information with regard to the 

number of complaints received by the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman against the Council and the decisions regarding complaints. 

 

5.0 Consultation 

 None 
 Page 221



6.0 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection 

 
6.1 The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons as 

set out below.  
 

None as this report is submitted for information and comment only.  
 

7.0 Implications 

 
 Financial and Resource Implications  
 
7.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 
 

Comments checked by: 
Michael Furness, Assistant Director of Finance (S151 Officer), 01295 221845, 
michael.furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  
 
  
Legal Implications  

 
7.2 There are no legal implications directly arising from the contents of this report.  
 

Comments checked by:  
Alison Coles, Legal Services Operations Manager, 01295 221754 
Alison.coles@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  
 

 
Risk Implications  

  
7.3 There are no risk implications arising directly from this report. If any risk arise, this 

will be managed through the service operational risk and escalated to the leadership 
risk register as and when necessary.   
 
Comments checked by:  
Celia Prado-Teeling , Performance and Insight Team Leader, 01295 221556 
Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Equalities and Inclusion Implications 
 

7.4  There are no equalities implications directly arising from the contents of this report. 
 

Comments checked by:  
Celia Prado-Teeling , Performance and Insight Team Leader, 01295 221556 
Celia.prado-teeling@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Sustainability Implications 

 
7.5  There are no sustainability implications arising directly from this report.  Page 222

mailto:michael.furness@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:Alison.coles@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


  
Comments checked by: 
Jo Miskin, Climate Action manager, 01295221748 
Jo.miskin@cherwell-dc.gov.uk 
 
 

8.0 Decision Information 

 
Key Decision  
 

Financial Threshold Met:   N/A 

 
 Community Impact Threshold Met: N/A 

 

Wards Affected    ALL 
 
 

 

Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework 
 

N/A 
  

Lead Councillor 
 

Councillor Sandy Dallimore, Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services 
 

Document Information 

 Appendix number and title 

 Appendix 1 – Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual 
Review Letter 

 Appendix 2 - Summary of Cases Investigated by the Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman  

 

 Background papers 
  None 
 

 Report Author and contact details 
 Democratic and Elections Team,  
Tel: 01295 221534, democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk  

 

Page 223

mailto:Jo.miskin@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
mailto:democracy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



19 July 2023 

By email 

Ms Rees 
Chief Executive 
Cherwell District Council 

Dear Ms Rees 

Annual Review letter 2022-23 

I write to you with your annual summary of complaint statistics from the Local Government and 

Social Care Ombudsman for the year ending 31 March 2023. The information offers valuable 

insight about your organisation’s approach to complaints. As always, I would encourage you to 

consider it as part of your corporate governance processes. As such, I have sought to share this 

letter with the Leader of your Council and Chair of the appropriate Scrutiny Committee, to 

encourage effective ownership and oversight of complaint outcomes, which offer such valuable 

opportunities to learn and improve.  

The end of the reporting year, saw the retirement of Michael King, drawing his tenure as Local 

Government Ombudsman to a close. I was delighted to be appointed to the role of Interim 

Ombudsman in April and look forward to working with you and colleagues across the local 

government sector in the coming months. I will be building on the strong foundations already in 

place and will continue to focus on promoting improvement through our work. 

Complaint statistics 

Our statistics focus on three key areas that help to assess your organisation’s commitment to 

putting things right when they go wrong: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find fault in an organisation’s actions, 

including where the organisation accepted fault before we investigated. We include the total 

number of investigations completed to provide important context for the statistic.  

Over the past two years, we have reviewed our processes to ensure we do the most we can with 

the resources we have. One outcome is that we are more selective about the complaints we look 

at in detail, prioritising where it is in the public interest to investigate. While providing a more 

sustainable way for us to work, it has meant that changes in uphold rates this year are not solely 

down to the nature of the cases coming to us. We are less likely to carry out investigations on 

‘borderline’ issues, so we are naturally finding a higher proportion of fault overall.  

Appendix one

Page 225



Our average uphold rate for all investigations has increased this year and you may find that your 

organisation’s uphold rate is higher than previous years. This means that comparing uphold rates 

with previous years carries a note of caution. Therefore, I recommend comparing this statistic with 

that of similar organisations, rather than previous years, to better understand your organisation’s 

performance. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for organisations to put things right 

when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 

Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern.  

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the organisation upheld the 

complaint and we were satisfied with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early 

resolution of complaints and credit organisations that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put 

things right.  

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your organisation with similar authorities to 

provide an average marker of performance. We do this for County Councils, District Councils, 

Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Your annual data, and a copy of this letter, will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s 

performance, on 26 July 2023. This useful tool places all our data and information about councils 

in one place. You can find the detail of the decisions we have made about your Council, read the 

public reports we have issued, and view the service improvements your Council has agreed to 

make as a result of our investigations, as well as previous annual review letters.  

Supporting complaint and service improvement 

I know that complaints offer organisations a rich source of intelligence and insight that has the 

potential to be transformational. These insights can indicate a problem with a specific area of 

service delivery or, more broadly, provide a perspective on an organisation’s culture and ability to 

learn. To realise the potential complaints have to support service improvements, organisations 

need to have the fundamentals of complaint handling in place. To support you to do so, we have 

continued our work with the Housing Ombudsman Service to develop a joint complaint handling 

code that will provide a standard for organisations to work to. We will consult on the code and its 

implications prior to launch and will be in touch with further details. 

In addition, our successful training programme includes practical interactive workshops that help 

participants develop their complaint handling skills. We can also offer tailored support and 

bespoke training to target specific issues your organisation might have identified. We delivered 

105 online workshops during the year, reaching more than 1350 people. To find out more visit 

www.lgo.org.uk/training or get in touch at training@lgo.org.uk. 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Paul Najsarek 

Interim Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Interim Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England

Page 226



Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 - Summary of cases Investigated by LGSCO 
 
The LGO investigated 2 complaints in 2022/23, a summary of the complaint and the 
decision of the LGSCO is as follows. 
 

LGO Case Number 21 012 667 
Benefits and Tax 
LGSCO Decision: Upheld  

1 Summary of Complaint: 
Ms X informed that monies was owed, the time period was when I had 
transferred over to UC and there was a delay in processing the claim. I sent 
evidence twice on 07/21 I received a letter from Bristow Suitor saying they 
were chasing the debt. I submitted a complaint on the 13/09/21. I received a 
response on the 24/09/21  I telephoned Cherwell and spoke to someone who 
said I would receive a call from the complaints team. I never did. I have since 
attempted to make contact and no-one has responded to my emails. 

2 LGSCO Decision Summary: 
Ms X complains about the Council’s decision to take enforcement action for 
historic council tax arrears and the handling of her vulnerability as a debtor. 
We do not find fault in the Council’s decision to pursue the historic debts. 
However, we have found fault in the Council’s handling of Ms X’s vulnerability 
as a debtor. To remedy this, the Council has agreed to apologise to Ms X, 
review Ms X’s case with the bailiffs and make a service improvement. 

3 Agreed Action: 
Within four weeks of my final decision, the Council has agreed to: 
a) apologise to Ms X for the fault causing injustice; 
b) make Ms X a payment of £100 for the distress caused. This payment is in 
line with the Ombudsman’s published guidance on remedies; and, 
c) consider Ms X and her daughter’s vulnerability and review her case with 
the Bailiff to decide what action, if any should be taken, in enforcing her debt. 
 The Council should write to Ms X with the reasons for any decision made. 
54. Within two months of my final decision, the Council has agreed to 
circulate guidance to staff on how to assess and handle potential vulnerability 
of debtors 

4 Agreed Action Completed Evidence to LGO 
a) 20 July 2022 Letter of apology sent to Ms X and request bank details make 

LGO recommended payment of £100. 
b) 19 August 2022 – LGO advised of the guidance that has been circulated to 

the team regarding vulnerability and enforcement action and advised that 
the team had also attended a course hosted by IRRV – Institute of 
Revenues Rating and Valuation with link to presentation 

c) Ms X had still not responded re Bank details 

5 LGO Satisfaction confirmation 
We are satisfied you have taken reasonable steps to carry out the agreed 
actions and accept it has not been possible to fully implement the remedy 
on this occasion. We have ended our involvement with this case and 
recorded an outcome of ‘Remedy not complete but satisfied’. Remedy not 
completed as Bank details not received from Ms X 

 
  

Page 229



LGO Case Number 21 015 015 
Planning and Development 
Decision: Not Upheld 

1 Summary of Complaint 
Mrs F has made a complaint about the Councils approach to planning 
and the development of land in her local area. In general terms, she 
complains about flawed decisions by the Council relating to policy, 
planning conditions and enforcement actions, Mrs F alleges the 
primary injustice to her is harm to the natural wildlife in her local area. 
She also explains the councils decisions have failed to mitigate harm to 
the character of the area she lives in. 
 

2 LGSCO Decision Summary: 
We found the majority of issues raised by Mrs F are late and that the 
Ombudsman has no legal jurisdiction to investigate them. Moreover we 
have no means to assess the primary injustice alleged by Mrs F. We 
also do not consider it is likely that there has been any fault by the 
Council with respect to its consideration of taking enforcement action. 
For these reasons we have discontinued our investigation. 
 

 

Page 230



Date Agenda Items

14-Nov-23 Performance, Finance and Risk Monitoring Report - Q2  2022/23
Local Code of Corporate Governance
Housing Benefit Subsidy Audit 2020/21
Counter Fraud Update
FM Code Update
Final 2021/22 Annual Audit Letter 
External Audit - Annual Audit Opinion 2021/22  
Final Letter of Representation 2021/22 
Treasury Management Q2 Update
Chief Internal Auditor - Private Session
External Auditor - Private Session
Work Programme Update

17-Jan-24 Internal Audit Progress Update
External Audit slot
AGS 2022/23 Actions Update
Treasury Management Q3
Draft Capital and Investment Strategy and Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2024/25
2022/23 External Audit Plan
Work Programme Update

20-Mar-24 Counter Fraud Update
External Audit slot
Annual Report of AARC
Performance, Finance and Risk Monitoring Report - Q3
Housing Benefit Subsidy Audit
Housing Benefit Risk Based Verification Policy
Work Programme Update

Accounts, Audit and Risk Committee
Work Programme 2023/24

Page 231

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Statement of Accounts 2021/22
	Appendix 1 – Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - Revised
	Appendix 2 – Balance Sheet – Revised
	Appendix 3 - Draft Statement of Accounts 2021-22
	Contents
	Introduction
	Narrative Statement – Overview of 2021/22
	Executive Member’s Narrative
	Assistant Director of Finance’s Narrative
	Introduction
	About the District

	Strategic priorities for Cherwell District Council
	Our strategic priorities for 2021/22 reflect the Council’s commitment for the district to achieve:
	Housing that meets your needs
	Leading on environmental sustainability
	An enterprising economy with strong and vibrant local centres
	Healthy, resilient and engaged communities
	Themes

	Annual review of priorities
	Housing that meets your needs
	Leading in environmental sustainability
	An enterprising economy with strong and vibrant local centres
	Healthy, resilient and engaged communities


	Our Leadership and workforce
	Risk management
	Financial Overview
	Financial Performance
	Resources
	Pension Liabilities
	Contingencies
	Council Funding 2021/22
	Revenue Financial Outturn Position
	COVID-19 Impact
	Business Grants
	Individual Funding
	Test and Trace Grant Payments


	Financial Position
	Capital Programme
	Capital investment plans for 2021/22
	Castle Quay and Castle Quay Waterfront
	Basis of Preparation and Presentation
	Financial Outlook

	The Financial Statements
	Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
	The Council’s Responsibilities
	Section 151 Officer’s Certificate:

	Expenditure and Funding Analysis
	Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure Statement
	Movement in Reserves Statement
	Balance Sheet
	Cash Flow Statement
	Notes
	Note 1 – Accounting Policies
	1.1 Going Concern
	Accruals of Income and Expenditure
	Cash and Cash Equivalents
	Changes in accounting policy no longer need to be material to result in a Prior Period Adjustment.
	Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets
	Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account
	Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates
	Accounting for Council Tax and NDR
	Exceptional Items

	1.2 Employee Benefits
	Benefits Payable during Employment
	Termination Benefit
	Post-Employment Benefits
	Re-measurements comprising:
	Discretionary Benefits
	Events after the Reporting Period
	Financial Instruments
	Financial Liabilities
	Financial Assets
	Available-for-Sale Assets
	Foreign Currency Translation
	Government Grants and Contributions
	Heritage Assets–measurement and valuation
	Intangible Assets
	Interests in Companies and Other Entities
	Inventories and Long-Term Contracts
	Investment Property
	Joint Operations
	Leases

	1.3 The Council as Lessee
	Finance Leases
	Operating Leases

	1.4 The Council as Lessor
	Finance Leases
	Operating Leases
	Fair Value
	Property, Plant and Equipment
	Recognition
	Measurement
	Impairment
	Depreciation
	Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale
	Fair Value Measurement
	Minimum Revenue Provision

	1.5 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
	Provisions
	Contingent Assets
	Contingent Liabilities
	Reserves
	Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS)
	VAT
	Rounding


	Note 2 – Accounting Standards Issued, Not Adopted
	Note 3 – Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
	Lease Accounting
	Provision for Outstanding Business Rates Appeals

	Note 4 – Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
	Note 5 - Material Items of Income and Expense
	Pensions
	Prior Year Adjustments

	Note 6 – Events after the Balance Sheet Date
	Note 7a – Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis
	Net Capital Statutory Adjustments
	Net Pensions Statutory Adjustments
	Other Statutory Adjustments
	Other Non-statutory Adjustments

	Note 7b – Segmental Analysis of Income and Expenditure
	Note 8 - Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 2021/22
	General Fund Balance
	Capital Receipts Reserve
	Capital Grants Unapplied

	Note 9 - Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
	Note 10 - Other Operating Expenditure
	Note 11 - Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
	Note 12 - Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
	Note 13 – Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature
	Note 14 – Property, Plant and Equipment
	Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluations

	Note 15 – Investment Properties
	Valuation Techniques used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment Properties:
	Tramway Industrial Estate
	Castle Quay Shopping Centre
	Castle Quay Waterfront Development

	Note 16 – Intangible Assets
	Note 17 – Financial Instruments
	Note 17.1 - Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

	Note 18 – Inventories
	Note 19a – Short Term Debtors
	Note 19b Short Term Debtors for Local Taxation
	Note 20 – Cash and Cash Equivalents
	Note 21– Assets Held for Sale
	Note 22 – Short Term Creditors
	Note 23 – Provisions
	Current Provisions
	Long Term Provisions
	Total Provisions

	Note 24 – Usable Reserves
	General Fund Reserve
	Earmarked Reserves
	Capital Receipts Reserve
	Capital Grants Unapplied

	Note 25 - Unusable Reserves
	Revaluation Reserve
	Capital Adjustment Account
	Pension Reserve
	Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve
	Collection Fund Adjustment Account
	Accumulated Absences Account

	Note 26 - Members’ Allowances
	Note 27 - Officers’ Remuneration
	Note 28 - External Audit Costs
	Note 29 – Grant Income
	Note 30 - Related Parties
	Central Government
	Local Government
	Shared Resource
	Other Public Bodies
	Officers
	Members
	Subsidiaries and Joint Operations
	Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority

	Note 31 – Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
	Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

	Note 32 – Leases
	32.1 Authority as Lessee - Finance Leases
	32.2 Authority as Lessee - Operating Leases
	32.3 Authority as Lessor - Finance Leases
	32.4 Authority as Lessor - Operating Leases

	Note 33 - Impairment Losses
	Note 34 - Termination Benefits
	Note 35 - Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
	35.1 Participation in Pension Schemes
	35.2 Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits
	35.3 Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet
	35.4 Assets and Liabilities in relation to Retirement Benefits
	Impact on the Council’s cash Flow
	Sensitivity Analysis
	Measurement of Pension Liability

	35.5 Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities
	35.6 Other factors arising from recent court cases

	Note 36 - Contingent Liabilities
	Note 37 - Contingent Assets
	Collection Fund Accounts

	Notes (1 – 4) to the Collection Fund
	Note 1. General
	Note 2. Business Rates
	Note 3.  Provision for Un-collectable Amounts
	Note 4.  Council Tax Base

	Group Accounts and Explanatory Notes
	Introduction
	Results of the Subsidiaries
	Graven Hill Village Holdings Ltd
	Graven Hill Village Development Company Ltd
	Graven Hill Management Company Ltd
	Graven Hill Management Company Block E Ltd
	Crown House Banbury Ltd
	Crown Apartments Banbury Ltd
	Summary of Group

	Note 1 Accounting Policies of for the Group
	Note 2 Group Property Plant and Equipment
	Note 3 Group Inventories


	Annual Governance Statement 2021/22
	Introduction
	Statement of Opinion
	Reviewing our effectiveness during 2021/22
	Overview
	Generally:
	During COVID-19
	Impact
	Command structure
	Beyond COVID-19
	Partnership Decoupling
	Internal Audit in 2021/22
	Financial Management Code
	Our statutory governance roles
	Governance Actions – Review of 2021/22 and priorities for 2022/23
	Governance in Outline
	Annex 1 – Significant governance issues
	Annex 2 – Significant Governance Issues
	Annex 3 – Covid-19 Command and Control Structure
	Annex 4 – Overview of Corporate Governance Assurance Framework
	Annex 5 – Summary Financial Management Code Assessment



	Appendix 4 - Draft Letter of Representations 2021-22

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report 2023/24
	Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Plan – Progress Report
	Appendix 2 - Outstanding Management Actions
	Appendix 3 – Executive Summaries of finalised audits

	9 Risk Monitoring Report July 2023
	Appendix 1 - Leadership Risk Register July 23
	Appendix 1 - Leadership Risk Register July 23
	Appendix 9 - Leadership Risk Register JULY 23
	Appendix 8 - Leadership Risk Register July 2023


	Appendix 9 - Leadership Risk Register July 23


	10 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Report 2022/23
	Appendix 1 - Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Annual Review Letter
	Appendix 2 - Summary of cases Investigated by LGSCO 22-23

	12 Work Programme
	AARC




